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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
RBC Bearings Incorporated

We are an international manufacturer and markdtéighly engineered precision plain, roller andlidarings. Bearings, which i
integral to the manufacture and operation of moathines and mechanical systems, reduce wear tong@arts, facilitate proper pov
transmission and reduce damage and energy losedcchysfriction. While we manufacture products inrahjor bearing categories, we fo
primarily on highly technical or regulated bearimgpducts for specialized markets that require simlsited design, testing and manufactt
capabilities. We believe our unique expertise hesbked us to garner leading positions in many efgloduct markets in which we prima
compete. We have been providing bearing solutiorsut customers since 1919. Over the past ten yeardiave significantly broadened
end markets, products, customer base and geogregdit. We currently have 25 facilities of which &2 manufacturing facilities in fc
countries.

The Bearing Industry

The bearing industry is a highly fragmented mhitiion dollar market. Purchasers of bearings idelyproducers of commercial ¢
military aerospace equipment, automotive and comiaetruck manufacturers, industrial equipment amathinery manufacturers, agricultt
machinery manufacturers and construction, minirdyspecialized equipment manufacturers.

Demand for bearings in the diversified industriahrket is being influenced by growth in industriabechinery and equipme
shipments and nonresidential construction and mimiativity. In addition, increased usage of exigtmachinery will improve aftermark
demand for replacement bearing products. In thespace market, aging of the existing commercialrait fleet along with carrier trafi
growth is expected to continue to expand demandotor bearing solutions. Lastly, growth in the defemarket is being influenced
modernization programs necessitating increaseddapgion new equipment, as well as continued utitiraof deployed equipment support
aftermarket demand for replacement bearings.

Customers and Markets

We serve a broad range of end markets where weaddrvalue with our specialty, precision bearingdoiis and applications. \
classify our customers into two principal categeridiversified industrial and aerospace and defeRsese principal end markets utilize a I
number of both commercial and specialized bearirgglycts. Although we provide a relatively small qgeattage of total bearing prodi
supplied to each of our overall principal market®, believe we have leading market positions in mahyhe specialized bearing prod
markets in which we primarily compete. Financidbinmation regarding geographic areas is set fortlieim 8, Note 21.

» Diversified Industrial Market (47% of net sales for the fiscal year ended March 29, 2008)

We manufacture bearing products for a wide rangdiwarsified industrial markets, including constion and mining, oil and natu
resource extraction, heavy truck, packaging andigemuctor machinery. Nearly all mechanical devieesl machinery require bearings
relieve friction where one part moves relative twther. Our products target existing market apgibos in which our engineering &
manufacturing capabilities provide us with a coritjwet advantage in the marketplace.

Our largest diversified industrial customers inéu@aterpillar, Federal Mogul, Komatsu America, Ratftannifin Corporation ar
various aftermarket distributors including Appliettlustrial, Kaman Corporation and Motion Industridge believe that the diversification
our sales among the various segments of the induls&arings market reduces our exposure to dowstur any individual market. We belie
opportunities exist for growth and margin improveini@ this market as a result of increasing denfanéhdustrial machinery, the introducti
of new products and the expansion of aftermarkessa

» Aerospace and Defense Market (53% of net salesfor the fiscal year ended March 29, 2008)

We supply bearings for use in commercial and peiatcraft. We supply bearings for many of the cagial aircraft current
operating worldwide and are the primary suppliemi@any of their product lines. This includes mititwontractors for airplanes, helicopters
missile systems. Commercial aerospace customeeya@bnrequire precision products, often of speaigterials, made to unique designs
specifications. Many of our aerospace bearing prtsdare designed and certified during the origdelelopment of the aircraft being sen
which often makes us the primary bearing suppbettie life of the aircraft.






We manufacture bearing products used by the U.pabment of Defense and certain foreign governmiamtase in fighter jets, troc
transports, naval vessels, helicopters, gas turbiggnes, armored vehicles, guided weaponry arelligeg. We manufacture an extensive
of standard products that conform to many domesilitary application requirements, as well as cositted products designed for uni
applications. We specialize in the manufactureigh lprecision ball and roller bearings, commerbiall bearings and metal-to-metal and self-
lubricating plain bearings for the defense mark®tr bearing products are manufactured to conforr.®. military specifications and
typically custom designed during the original proddesign phase, which often makes us the soleimapy bearing supplier for the life of t
product. In addition to products that meet militapecifications, these customers often requireigicet products made of specialized mate
to custom designs and specifications. Product aprfor use on military equipment is often a lengtitocess ranging from six months to
years.

Our largest aerospace and defense customers ingidoles, Boeing, Embraer, General Electric, Lockh®artin, Raytheon, Sneci
Group, Textron, U.S. Department of Defense, Unifedhnologies and various aftermarket channels. $enate that over 58% of aerosp
net sales are actually used as replacement partbearings are regularly replaced on aircraft injuaction with routine maintenan
procedures. We believe our strong relationships V@EMSs help drive our aftermarket sales since aigorof OEM sales are ultimate
intended for use as replacement parts. We bellgategrowth and margin expansion in this segmeritheildriven primarily by expanding ¢
international presence, growth in the commercialraft build rates, and the refurbishment and nemiabce of existing commercial aircraft.
Products

Bearings are employed to fulfill several functiansluding reduction of friction, transfer of moti@nd carriage of loads. We des
manufacture and market a broad portfolio of beaprglucts. The following table provides a summdrgwr product segments:

Net Sales for the Fiscal Year Ended

Segment March 29, 200¢ March 31, 200" April 1, 2006 Representative Applications
Plain Bearings $ 154,53 $ 143,900 $ 115,09:  « Aircraft engine controls and landing gear
(46.7)% 47.0% (41.9% o Missile launchers
» Mining and construction equipment
Roller Bearings $ 97,01¢ $ 92,12: $ 96,46¢ * Aircraft hydraulics
(29.9% (30.1% (35.1)% ¢ Military and commercial truck chassis
» Packaging machinery and gear pumps
Ball Bearings $ 56,677 $ 50,46¢ $ 46,37¢  « Radar and night vision systems
(17.1% (16.5% (16.9% « Airframe control and actuation
» Semiconductor equipment
Other $ 22,36¢ $ 19,56¢ $ 16,574  « Precision ground ball screws for robotic
(6.89% (6.49% (6.1)% handling and missile guidan

* Collets for machine tools

Plain Bearings. Plain bearings are primarily used to rectify inable misalignments in various mechanical componenish as aircre
controls, helicopter rotors, or in heavy mining ar@hstruction equipment. Such misalignments ateeeitiue to machining inaccuracies
result when components change position relativeatdh other. Plain bearings are produced with egbidubricating or metal-tonetal desigr
and consist of several saasses, including rod end bearings, sphericahfaiarings and journal bearings. Sales of plaimithgs accounte
for 46.7% of our net sales in fiscal 2008.

Roller Bearings. Roller bearings are anfiiction products that utilize cylindrical rollinglements. We produce three main des
tapered roller bearings, needle roller bearings @eedle bearing track rollers and cam followers. pieduce medium sized tapered rc
bearings used primarily in heavy truck axle appi@s. We offer several needle roller bearing desighat are used in both indusi
applications and certain U.S. military aircrafttfdams. These products are generally specifiedifar where there are high loads and the d
is constrained by space considerations. A signifigertion of the sales of this product is to tfiteranarket. Needle bearing track rollers
cam followers have wide and diversified use in ithdustrial market and are often prescribed as mgm component in articulated airc
wings. We believe we are the world's largest preded aircraft needle bearing track rollers. Thie d roller bearings accounted for 29.49
our net sales in fiscal 2008.




Ball Bearings. Ball bearings are devices which utilize high prexcisball elements to reduce friction in high spegyplications. W
specialize in four main types of ball bearings:hhigecision aerospace, airframe control, thin sactind industrial ball bearings. High precit
aerospace bearings are primarily sold to custoinetse defense industry that require more techlyicphisticated bearing products, suc
missile guidance systems, providing higher degodédault tolerance given the criticality of the digptions in which they are used. Airfra
control ball bearings are precision ball beaririyst tare plated to resist corrosion and are qudlifieder a military specification. Thin sect
ball bearings are specialized bearings that usemxedy thin cross sections and give specializedhingcy manufacturers many advantages
produce a general line of industrial ball bearisghl primarily to the aftermarket. Ball bearinge@ented for 17.1% of our net sales in fi
2008.

Other. Our other products consist primarily of precisiorear products and machine tool collets. Precisi@ar products are precisi
ground ball bearing screws that offer repeatabktipming accuracy in defense, machine tools, ricbwandling and semiconductor equipm
Machine tool collets are corsiraped metal sleeves, used for holding circulaodlike pieces in a lathe or other machine thatioe effective
part holding and accurate part location during nrdol operations. Our other products accountedf8® of our net sales in fiscal 2008.

Product Design and Development

We produce specialized bearings that are ofteortall to the specifications of a customer or apptica Our sales professionals
highly experienced engineers who collaborate with @istomers on a continual basis to develop bgawhutions. The product developm
cycle can follow many paths which are dependenthenend market or sales channel. The process rigriaées between 8-years fror
concept to sale depending upon the applicationth@dnarket. A common route that is used for majaMOprojects begins when our des
engineers meet with their customer counterpariseatnachine design conceptualization stage and withkthem through the conclusion of
product development.

Often, at the early stage, a bearing design corisgpibduced that addresses the expected demarhs application. Environmen
demands are many but normally include load, stiesst, thermal gradients, vibration, lubricant dypporrosion resistance, with one or twe
these environmental constraints being predominarihé design consideration. A bearing design masfopm reliably for a period of tin
specified by the customer's product objectives.

Once a bearing is designed, a mathematical simulasi created to replicate the expected applicatiovironment and thereby all
optimization with respect to these design variabléison conclusion of the design and simulation phaamples are produced and labor:
testing commences at one of our test laboratofies.purpose of this testing phase is not only tifywéhe design and the simulation model
also to allow further design improvement where reedrinally, upon successful field testing by thstomer, the product is ready for sale.

For the majority of our products, the culminatidntitis lengthy process is the receipt of a prodpproval or certification, genera
obtained from either the OEM, the Department ofddst or the Federal Aviation Administration, or &A which allows us to supply t
product to the customer. We currently have in ex@#s32,000 of such approvals, which often givea gggynificant competitive advantage,
in many of these instances we are the only appreupgdlier of a given bearing product.

Manufacturing and Operations

Our manufacturing strategies are focused on prodel@bility, quality and service. Custom and st products are produc
according to manufacturing schedules that ensurénmuan availability of popular items for immediatals while carefully considering t
economies of lot production and special productapital programs and manufacturing methods developnage focused on qual
improvement and low production costs. A monthlyieawv of product line production performance assumasenvironment of continua
attainment of profitability goals.

Capacity. Our plants currently run on a single shift, andiligecond and third shifts at selected locatiamsnéet the demands of «
customers. We believe that current capacity leaetsfuture annual estimated capital expendituresquipment up to approximately 4% of
sales should permit us to effectively meet demandl$ for the foreseeable future.

Inventory Management. Our increasing emphasis on the distributor/afteketasector has required us to maintain greatemitovees o
a broader range of products than the OEM marképiigslly demanded. We operate an inventory managerprogram designed to bala
customer delivery requirements with economicallyiropl inventory levels. In this program, each prods categorized based on characteri
including order frequency, number of customers salds volume. Using this classification system,mimary goal is to maintain a sufficit
supply of standard items while minimizing warehogscosts. In addition, production cost savingsaafgeved by optimizing plant schedul
around inventory levels and customer delivery regsyuents. This leads to more efficient utilizatidnneanufacturing facilities and minimiz
plant production changes while maintaining suffitimventories to service customer needs.






Sales, Marketing and Distribution

Our marketing strategy is aimed at increasing saiéisin our two primary markets, targeting specidipplications in which we ¢
exploit our competitive strengths. To effect thimtegy, we seek to expand into geographic aregrewiously served by us and we contint
capitalize on new markets and industries for existind new products. We employ a technically pieficsales force and utilize market
managers, product managers, customer service egpatives and product application engineers inselling efforts.

We have accelerated the development of our sates through the hiring of sales personnel with phearing industry experien:
complemented by an iheuse training program. We intend to continue te land develop expert sales professionals ancegically locat
them to implement our expansion strategy. Today,dinect sales force is located to service Northefica, Europe and Latin America an
responsible for selling all of our products. Thidliag model leverages our relationship with kegtouners and provides opportunities to me
multiple product lines to both established and ptigé¢ customers. We also sell our products throaghell-established, global network
industrial and aerospace distributors. This chapretarily provides our products to smaller OEM tamsers and the end users of bearings
require local inventory and service. In additiopedfic larger OEM customers are also serviceduihothis channel to facilitate requireme
for "Just In Time" deliveries or "Kan Ban" systen@ur worldwide distributor network provides our taraers with more than 2,000 points
sale for our products. We intend to continue tauoon building distributor sales volume.

The sale of our products is supported by a wallhed and experienced customer service orgaaizafihis organization provid
customers with instant access to key informatiayarding their bearing purchase and delivery requéras. We also provide customers \
updated information through our website, and weehdeveloped ofine integration with specific customers, enablingre efficient orderin
and timely order fulfilment for those customers.

We store product inventory in six compaowned and operated warehouses located on the BédiVast coasts of the U.S., an
France and Switzerland. The inventory is locatethase warehouses based on analysis of customendeto provide superior service i
product availability.

Competition

Our principal competitors include Kaydon CorporafitNew Hampshire Ball Bearings and McGill Manufagty Company, Inc
although we compete with different companies fazheaf our product lines. We believe that for thejority of our products, the princig
competitive factors affecting our business are pebdjualifications, product line breadth, servios grice. Although some of our current
potential competitors may have greater financiadrkating, personnel and other resources than udehleve that we are well positionec
compete with regard to each of these factors ih edthe markets in which we operate.

Product Qualifications. Many of the products we produce are qualified fog tapplication by the OEM, the U.S. Departmer
Defense, the FAA or a combination of these agendiesse credentials have been achieved for thoasafrdistinct items after years of des
testing and improvement. In many cases patent gfotepresides, in all cases there is strong brdedtity and in numerous cases we havt
exclusive product for the application.

Product Line Breadth. Our products encompass an extraordinarily broadjgasf designs which often create a critical mas
complementary bearings and components for our nwrRdis position allows many of our industrial asidcraft customers the ability fo
single manufacturer to provide the engineeringiserand product breadth needed to achieve a sefri@&EM design objectives or aftermar
requirements. This ability enhances our value ¢é0QEM considerably while strengthening our overarket position.

Service. Product design, performance, reliability, availapjlquality, technical and administrative supparé elements that define
service standard for this business. Our custonrers@histicated and demanding, as our producteiadamental and enabling componen
the construction or operating of their machinerye Waintain inventory levels of our most populamigefor immediate sale and service \
over 15,000 voice and electronic contacts per mo@tr customers have high expectations regardinogymt availability, and the prime
emphasis of our service efforts is to ensure thdestipossible range of available products and eléfig them on a timely basis.




Price. We believe our products are priced competitivelyhia markets we serve. We continually evaluatensamufacturing and oth
operations to maximize efficiencies in order toussl costs, eliminate unprofitable products from mantfolio and maximize our profit margil
While we compete with larger bearing manufacturens direct the majority of their business actidtinvestments and expertise towarc
automotive industries, our sales in this industey@nly a small percentage of our business. Wesins@nsiderable effort to develop our pric
value algorithms and we price to market levels whequired by competitive pressures.

Suppliers and Raw Materials

We obtain raw materials, component parts and sepgtom a variety of sources and generally fromembian one supplier. C
principal raw material is steel. Our suppliers @odrces of raw materials are based in the U.Sgpeuand Asia. We purchase steel at mi
prices, which during the past three years havesasad to historical highs as a result of a reltilev level of supply and a relatively hi
level of demand. To date, we have generally managexhss through these raw material price incretsesir customers by assessing ¢
surcharges on, or price increases of, our bearioguets. However, we have from time to time experé a time lag of up to 3 months or n
in our ability to pass through steel surchargesuoncustomers which has negatively impacted ousgyroargins. We will continue to pass
raw material price increases as competitive cooalitiallow.

Backlog

As of March 29, 2008, we had order backlog of $21iillion compared to a backlog of $176.6 millionthe prior year. The amot
of backlog includes orders which we estimate wallfbifilled within the next 12 months; however, erd included in our backlog are subjec
cancellation, delay or other modifications by owstomers prior to fulfillment. We sell many of oproducts pursuant to contract
agreements, single source relationships or teng+ purchase orders, each of which may permiydarmination by the customer. Howey
due to the nature of many of the products supgbiedis and the lack of availability of alternativeppliers to meet the demands of <
customers' orders in a timely manner, we beliea¢ ithis not practical or prudent for most of owstomers to shift their bearing busines
other suppliers.

Employees

We had 1,453 hourly employees and 693 salaried@mapt as of March 29, 2008, of whom 409 were engaloy our European a
Mexican operations. As of March 29, 2008, 182 of lmourly employees were represented by unionsentls. We believe that our emplo
relations are satisfactory.

We are subject tahree collective bargaining agreements with theté¢hiAuto Workers covering substantially all of theurly
employees at our Fairfield, Connecticut, West TeanfNew Jersey and Bremen, Indiana plants. Theseamgnts expire on January 31, 2
June 30, 2009 and October 31, 2009, respectively.

Intellectual Property

We own U.S. and foreign patents and trademark tragjisns and U.S. copyright registrations, and hev8. trademark and pat:
applications pending. We currently have 77 issuegending U.S. and foreign patents. We file paggoplications and maintain patent:
protect certain technology, inventions and improgata that are important to the development of ausiness, and we file tradem
applications and maintain trademark registratianprotect product names that have achieved brange recognition among our custom
We also rely upon trade secrets, knb@w and continuing technological innovation to depeand maintain our competitive position. Man'
our brands are well recognized by our customersaaactonsidered valuable assets of our businescuWently have 174 issued or penc
U.S. and foreign trademark registrations and appibas. We do not believe, however, that any irdligi item of intellectual property
material to our business. See "Risk Factors."

Regulation

Product Approvals. Essential to servicing the aerospace market iy to obtain product approvals. We have a taftgal numbe
of product approvals in the form of OEM approvatsParts Manufacturer Approvals, or “PMAdrom the FAA. We also have a substat
number of active PMA applications in process. Thagerovals enable us to provide products usedrinally all domestic aircraft platforr
presently in production or operation.




We are subject to various other federal laws, @guis and standards. Although we are not presemtbre of any pending legal
regulatory changes that may have a material impactis, new laws, regulations or standards or ctamgeexisting laws, regulations
standards could subject us to significant addifi@ests of compliance or liabilities, and coulduksn material reductions to our results
operations, cash flow or revenues.

Environmental Matters

We are subject to federal, state and local enviental laws and regulations, including those goveyrdischarges of pollutants ii
the air and water, the storage, handling and daépokwastes and the health and safety of employ@és also may be liable under
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatiwh/ iability Act or similar state laws for thests of investigation and cleamp of
contamination at facilities currently or formerlywvoed or operated by us, or at other facilities &iclw we have disposed of hazarc
substances. In connection with such contaminati@may also be liable for natural resource damag@gernment penalties and claims
third parties for personal injury and property dgmaAgencies responsible for enforcing these laav& rauthority to impose significant civil
criminal penalties for nogempliance. We believe we are currently in matez@hpliance with all applicable requirements of iemvmenta
laws. We do not anticipate material capital expemds for environmental compliance in fiscal 2009.

Investigation and remediation of contamination igaing at some of our sites. In particular, stajengies have been overset
groundwater monitoring activities at our facility Hartsville, South Carolina and a corrective actdan at our Clayton, Georgia facility.
Hartsville, we are monitoring low levels of contaraits in the groundwater caused by former opemti®he state will permit us to ce
monitoring activities after two consecutive samglperiods demonstrate contaminants are below algiais. In connection with the purch
of our Fairfield, Connecticut facility in 1996, vegreed to assume responsibility for completingrelga efforts previously initiated by the pr
owner. We submitted data to the state that we \elilemonstrates that no further remedial actiametsessary although the state may re:
additional cleantp or monitoring. In connection with the purchaseur Clayton, Georgia facility, we agreed to assuartain responsibilitir
to implement a corrective action plan concerning tbmediation of certain soil and groundwater cmiation present at that facility. T
corrective action plan is in the early stages. @lifjh there can be no assurance, we do not expeehgas associated with these activities
material.

Available Information

We file our annual, quarterly and current repgotexy statements, and other documents with the riesuand Exchange Commiss
(“SEC”) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1984e public may read and copy any materials filethwihe SEC at the SEE€’Public
Reference Room at 405 Fifth Street, N.W., Washimgf®.C. 20549. The public may obtain information the operation of the Pub
Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-3B30. Also, the SEC maintains an Internet webdigg tontains reports, proxy ¢
information statements, and other information rday issuers that file electronically with the SERhe public can obtain any documents
are filed by us at http://www.sec.gov.

In addition, this Annual Report on Form 10-K, adllvees our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, currexgarts on Form & and an'
amendments to all of the foregoing reports, areevaailable free of charge on our Internet wel{$itg://www.rbcbearings.com) as soor
reasonably practicable after such reports arerelgictlly filed with or furnished to the SEC. A gopf the above filings will also be provid
free of charge upon written request to us.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Cautionary Statement As To Forward-Looking Information

This report includes “forward-looking statememtgthin the meaning of Section 27A of the Securitfes of 1933 and Section 21E
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All statementker than statements of historical fact are "Bmehooking statements" for purposes
federal and state securities laws, including amjgetions of earnings, cash flows, revenue or ofinancial items; any statements of the pl
strategies and objectives of management for fubperations; any statements concerning proposed sewices or developments;
statements regarding future economic conditiongeoformance; future growth rates in the marketsseme; increases in foreign sales; su
and cost of raw materials, any statements of hedinfl any statements of assumptions underlying ainthe foregoing. Forwaréboking
statements may include the words "may," "estimdiaténd,” "continue,” "believe," "expect,” "antpzte,” the negative of such terms or
comparable terminology.




Although we believe that the expectations refleétedny of our forwardeoking statements are reasonable, actual resoltsl differ
materially from those projected or assumed in ahgup forwardiooking statements. Our future financial conditioesults of operations a
cash flows, as well as any forwalabking statements, are subject to change andhterémt risks and uncertainties, such as thoseodisdlit
this Annual Report on Form 1K- Factors that could cause our actual resultsfopmance and achievements or industry results fier
materially from estimates or projections contaiiretbrward-looking statements include, among others following:

« Weaknesses and cyclicality in any of the industineshich our customers operate;

« Changes in marketing, product pricing and salegesiies or developments of new products by us ocompetitors;

» Future reductions in U.S. governmental spendinghanges in governmental programs, particularlytamifi equipment procureme
programs;

« Our ability to obtain and retain product approvals;

» Supply and costs of raw materials, particularlgktand energy resources and our ability to passith these costs on a timely basis;

» Our ability to acquire and integrate complementarginesses;

» Unexpected equipment failures, catastrophic eventapacity constraints;

« The costs of defending, or the results of, newdition;

« Our ability to attract and retain our managemeatrtend other highly-skilled personnel,

« Increases in interest rates;

»  Work stoppages and other labor problems for uscamatustomers or suppliers;

« Contractual limitations on our ability to expand duisiness;

» Regulatory developments in the U.S. and foreigmurdes;

« Developments or disputes concerning patents or gitoprietary rights;

« Actual or anticipated changes in our earnings,télattons in our operating results or the failurenteet the expectations of finan
market analysts and investors;
» Changes in accounting standards, policies, guidantpretation or principles;

» Risks associated with operating internationallgjuding currency translation risks;
« The operating and stock performance of comparaiigpanies;

« Investors’ perceptions of us and our industry; and

« General economic, geopolitical, industry and madcgtditions.

Additional factors that could cause actual restdtgiffer materially from our forwardboking statements are set forth in this Ani
Report on Form 10-K, including under Item 1. “Bless,” Iltem 1A. “Risk Factors,” Iltem 7. “ManagemeanDiscussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” #eth 8. “Financial Statements and SupplementaraDat

We are not under any duty to update any forwaoking statements after the date of this reportdnform such statements to ac
results or to changes in our expectations. All fmiMooking statements contained in this report andsarbsequently filed reports are expre
qualified in their entirety by these cautionarytataents.

Our business, operating results, cash flows omnfife condition could be materially adversely aféetby any of the following risk
The trading price of our common stock could decliue to any of these risks, and you may lose aflast of your investment. You sho
carefully consider these risks before investinghares of our common stock.

Risk Factors Related to Our Company
The bearing industry is highly competitive, and th§ competition could reduce our profitability or limit our ability to grow.

The global bearing industry is highly competitieand we compete with many U.S. and ndis. companies, some of which ber
from lower labor costs and fewer regulatory burdéremn us. We compete primarily based on productifipaions, product line bread!
service and price. Certain competitors are largan tus or subsidiaries of larger entities and nepdtter able to manage costs than us ol
have greater financial resources than we have.tBtige competitiveness in the bearing industry vas mot be able to increase prices for
products to cover increases in our costs, or we faeg pressure to reduce prices, which could nakgreduce our revenues, gross margin
profitability. Competitive factors, including chaggyin market penetration, increased price competdind the introduction of new products
technology by existing and new competitors couiiliein a material reduction in our revenues arafifability.






The loss of a major customer could result in a mat&l reduction in our revenues and profitability.

Our top ten customers generated 31% and 32% afetsales during fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, retbpedy. Accordingly, the loss
one or more of those customers or a substantialedse in such customers' purchases from us cosldt i@ a material reduction in ¢
revenues and profitability.

In addition, the consolidation and combination efethse or other manufacturers may eliminate custofnem the industry and/or
downward pricing pressures on sales of componatd.ffeor example, the consolidation that has oeclim the defense industry in recent y
has significantly reduced the overall number ofedst contractors in the industry. In addition,riEf our customers is acquired or me
with another entity, the new entity may discontinuging us as a supplier because of an existinghessirelationship with the acquir
company or because it may be more efficient to clisiete certain suppliers within the newly formedezprise. The significance of the img
that such consolidation may have on our busined§fisult to predict because we do not know wherifmne or more of our customers \
engage in merger or acquisition activity. Howevesuch activity involved our material customergduld materially impact our revenues
profitability.

Weakness in any of the industries in which our cusiners operate, as well as the cyclical nature of bgustomers' businesses general
could materially reduce our revenues and profitabity.

The commercial aerospace, mining and constructipiipenent and other diversified industrial industrie which we sell our produs
are, to varying degrees, cyclical and tend to dedl response to overall declines in industriadpiction. Margins in those industries are hi
sensitive to demand cycles, and our customersadsetliindustries historically have tended to delagdacapital projects, including expens
maintenance and upgrades, during economic downtédsa result, our business is also cyclical, dral demand for our products by th
customers depends, in part, on overall levels dfistrial production, general economic conditiond basiness confidence levels. Downw
economic cycles have affected our customers anaceetisales of our products resulting in reductionsur revenues and net earnings.
future material weakness in demand in any of thedestries could materially reduce our revenuesganfitability.

In addition, many of our customers have historicakperienced periodic downturns, which often haeel a negative effect
demand for our products. For example, the sevewntlon in 2001 in the aerospace industry resulteddferrals or cancellations in airc
orders, which reduced the volume and price of argidaiced for products used to manufacture commatixaft, including our bearings a
other individual parts and components we manufactBrevious industry downturns have negativelycidfe, and future industry downtu
may negatively affect, our net sales, gross maagthnet income.

Future reductions or changes in U.S. government spding could negatively affect our business.

In fiscal 2008, 6.1% of our net sales were madectly, and we estimate that approximately an aoidliti 15.4% of our net sales w
made indirectly, to the U.S. government to suppaititary or other government projects. Our faildceobtain new government contracts,
cancellation of government contracts or reductionfederal budget appropriations regarding our potsl could result in materially reduc
revenue. In addition, the funding of defense prograalso competes with natefense spending of the U.S. government. Our bssiit
sensitive to changes in national and internatigmalrities and the U.S. government budget. A shifgovernment defense spending to c
programs in which we are not involved or a reduttioU.S. government defense spending generallidaoaterially reduce our revenues, ¢
flows from operations and profitability. If we, our prime contractors for which we are a subcombracail to win any particular bid, or we
unable to replace lost business as a result ofieedlation, expiration or completion of a contramiy revenues or cash flows could be reduced.

Fluctuating supply and costs of raw materials and mergy resources could materially reduce our revenug cash flow from operation
and profitability.

Our business is dependent on the availability arstiscof energy resources and raw materials, p&atlgisteel, generally in the form
stainless and chrome steel, which are commodigl pt®ducts. The availability and prices of raw enetls and energy sources may be su
to curtailment or change due to, among other thimgsv laws or regulations, suppliers' allocatioasother purchasers, interruptions
production by suppliers, changes in exchange ratesworldwide price levels. Although we currentlyaintain alternative sources for r
materials, our business is subject to the riskrimfepfluctuations and periodic delays in the delwef certain raw materials. Disruptions in
supply of raw materials and energy resources craugborarily impair our ability to manufacture oupgducts for our customers or require u
pay higher prices in order to obtain these raw nigdteor energy resources from other sources, whalld thereby affect our net sales
profitability.




For example, we purchase steel at market pricegshwduring the past three years have increasedstorital highs as a result o
relatively low level of supply and a relatively hidevel of demand. As a result, we are currentlyndp@ssessed surcharges on certain ¢
purchases of steel, and under certain circumstameehave experienced difficulty in identifying stéor purchase. If we are unable to purcl
steel for our operations for a significant periddime, our operations would be disrupted, whiclildoreduce or delay sales of our prodt
and, in turn, could result in a material reductiorour revenues, cash flow from operations andifaoifity. In addition, we may be unable
pass on the increased costs of raw materials tousiomers, which could materially reduce our dbsk from operations and profitability.

We seek to pass through a significant portion af additional costs to our customers through staetherges or price increas
However, even if we are able to pass these steeharges or price increases to our customers, thesebe a time lag of up to 3 month:
more between the time a cost increase goes intatedhd our ability to implement surcharges oreiiwreases, particularly for orders alre
in our backlog. As a result our gross margin petag® may decline, and we may not be able to imphkrother price increases for
products. We cannot provide assurances that webeilible to continue to pass these additional @yste our customers at all or on a tin
basis or that our customers will not seek altemeasiources of supply if there are significant arlpnged increases in the price of steel or ¢
raw materials or energy resources.

Our products are subject to certain approvals, andhe loss of such approvals could materially reduceur revenues and profitability.

Essential to servicing the aerospace market isathiity to obtain product approvals. We have a taftgal number of produ
approvals, which enable us to provide products usedrtually all domestic aircraft platforms presly in production or operation. Prod
approvals are typically issued by the FAA to deatgd OEMs who are Production Approval Holders ofAFApproved aircraft. The
Production Approval Holders provide quality contmlersight and generally limit the number of sugidirectly servicing the commerc
aerospace aftermarket. Regulations enacted by Altefovide for an independent process (the PMA ps3g, which enables suppliers \
currently sell their products to the Production Apgl Holders, to sell products to the aftermarkatr foreign sales may be subject to sin
approvals or U.S. export control restrictions. Alilgh we have not lost any material product appeoiwathe past, we cannot assure you thi
will not lose approvals for our products in theufi®t. The loss of product approvals could resulbst sales and materially reduce our reve
and profitability.

Restrictions in our indebtedness agreements couldrit our growth and our ability to respond to changng conditions.
The KeyBank Credit Agreement contains a numbeesffrictive covenants that limit our ability, amoottper things, to:

» incur additional indebtedness and issue prefe@ksand guarantee indebtedness;

» create liens on our assets;

« pay dividends or make other equity distributions;

« purchase or redeem capital stock;

« create restrictions on payments of dividends oelo#fmounts to us by our restricted subsidiaries;
« make investments;

« merge, consolidate or sell assets;

» engage in activities unrelated to our current bessn

» engage in transactions with our affiliates; and

« sell or issue capital stock of certain subsidiaries

In addition, the KeyBank Credit Agreement contagiBer financial covenants requiring us to maintaiminimum fixed char¢
coverage ratio and maximum senior leverage ratidsta satisfy certain other financial conditionsir®eyBank Credit Agreement prohibits
from incurring capital expenditures of more tha® $3illion per year. These restrictions could limitr ability to obtain future financings, m:
needed capital expenditures, withstand a futurentlanm in our business or the economy in generaltiberwise conduct necessary corpc
activities.

As of March 29, 2008, we had $41.0 of million oateting borrowings and letters of credit of $21.@iom under our $150.0 millic
KeyBank Credit Agreement. Under the KeyBank Crédjteement, we had borrowing availability of $87.4lion as of March 29, 2008.




Work stoppages and other labor problems could mateally reduce our ability to operate our business.

As of March 29, 2008, approximately 13% of our hp@mployees were represented by labor unionseérllts. While we believe o
relations with our employees are satisfactory,rgtley strike or other work stoppage at any of @ailities, particularly at some of our lar
facilities, could materially reduce our ability éperate our business. In addition, any attempturyemployees not currently represented
union to join a union could result in additioredpenses, including with respect to wages, benaifits pension obligations. We currently h
three collective bargaining agreements, one agreeowwering approximately 65 employees will expitelune 2009, one agreement cove
approximately 34 employees will expire in Octob862, and one agreement covering approximately §daraes will expire in January 2013.

Negotiations for the extension of these agreememay result in modifications to the terms of thesgeaments, and the
modifications could cause us to incur increasedsaetating to our labor force.

In addition, work stoppages at one or more of ast@mers or suppliers, including suppliers of tpamation services, many of wh
have large unionized workforces, for labor or othemisons could also cause disruptions to our bssitteat we cannot control, and tF
disruptions may materially reduce our revenuespanftability.

Our business is capital intensive and may consumeash in excess of cash flows from our operations.

Our ability to remain competitive, sustain our gtbwand expand our operations largely depends owrasir flows from operations ¢
our access to capital. We intend to fund our castds through operating cash flow and borrowingeuodr KeyBank Credit Agreement.
may require additional equity or debt financinguad our growth and debt repayment obligationsaddition, we may need additional caf
to fund future acquisitions. Our business may mutegate sufficient cash flow, and we may not be &blobtain sufficient funds to enable u
pay our debt obligations and capital expendituresve may not be able to refinance on commerciaflgsonable terms, if at all. ¢
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finan€a@idition and Results of Operations—Liquidity arapifal Resources—Liquidity."

Unexpected equipment failures, catastrophic eventsr capacity constraints may increase our costs andeduce our sales due 1
production curtailments or shutdowns.

Our manufacturing processes are dependent upoinatriieces of equipment, such as furnaces, cootiswcasters and rolli
equipment, as well as electrical equipment, suchrassformers, and this equipment may, on occadienput of service as a result
unanticipated failures. In addition to equipmerilufas, our facilities are also subject to the mdlcatastrophic loss due to unanticipated e\
such as fires, explosions, earthquakes or violezdtier conditions. In the future, we may experiemegerial plant shutdowns or periods
reduced production as a result of these types aoipetent failures or catastrophes. Interruptiongtinduction capabilities will inevitab
increase our production costs and reduce salesamihgs for the affected period.

Certain of our facilities are operating at a singftéft with light second and third shifts, and agidial demand may require additio
shifts and/or capital investments at these fagditiWWe cannot assure you that we will be able tbaaitlitional shifts as needed in a timely "
and production constraints may result in lost sdlesertain markets we refrain from making additibcapital investments to expand caps
where we believe market expansion in a particulad earket is not sustainable or otherwise doesjusitfy the expansion or capi
investment. Our assumptions and forecasts regardarget conditions in these end markets may beneows and may result in lost earnil
potential sales going to competitors and inhibit growth.

We may not be able to continue to make the acquigins necessary for us to realize our growth stratgg

The acquisition of businesses that complement peamct our operations has been and continues to he@ortant element of o
business strategy. We frequently engage in evalustof potential acquisitions and negotiations gossible acquisitions, some of whict
consummated, could be significant to us. We camsstre you that we will be successful in identiyattractive acquisition candidates
completing acquisitions on favorable terms in thieife for a number of different reasons including increased competition for targets, wi
may increase acquisition costs, and consolidatiorodr industries reducing the number of acquisittargets. Our inability to acqu
businesses, or to operate them profitably onceisemjucould have a material adverse effect on asirtess, financial position, cash flow .
growth.
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The costs and difficulties of integrating acquiredousinesses could impede our future growth.

We cannot assure you that any future acquisitidhemhance our financial performance. Our abildyeffectively integrate any futL
acquisitions will depend on, among other thingg tulture of the acquired business matching with auture, the ability to retain a
assimilate employees of the acquired businesslillity to retain customers and integrate custobseses, the adequacy of our implement:
plans, the ability of our management to oversee gpetate effectively the combined operations andatility to achieve desired operat
efficiencies and sales goals. The integration gf aguired businesses might cause us to incur eséen costs, which would lower our fu
earnings and would prevent us from realizing theeeked benefits of these acquisitions.

Even if we are able to integrate future acquiredifesses with our operations successfully, we daassgure you that we will reali
all of the cost savings, synergies or revenue esgraents that we anticipate from such integratiothat we will realize such benefits witl
the expected time frame. As a result of our actjois of other businesses, we may be subject toiskef unforeseen business uncertainti
legal liabilities relating to those acquired busises for which the sellers may not indemnify ushefinancially able to indemnify us. Fut
acquisitions may also result in potentially dil@iisssuances of securities.

We depend heavily on our senior management and oth&key personnel, the loss of whom could materiallyaffect our financial
performance and prospects.

Our business is managed by a small number of kegutive officers, including Dr. Michael J. Hartne®tur future success will depe
on, among other things, our ability to keep thevisess of these executives and to hire other highlglified employees at all levels.

We compete with other potential employers for emeés, and we may not be successful in hiring atadniag executives and ott
skilled employees that we need. Our ability to sssfully execute our business strategy, marketdmwelop our products and serve
customers could be adversely affected by a shodhgeailable skilled employees or executives.

Our international operations are subject to risks nherent in such activities.

We have established operations in certain countkside the U.S., including Mexico, France, Switaed, China and England. Of «
25 facilities, 6 are located outside the U.S.,udadg 4 manufacturing facilities.

Approximately 27% of our net sales were derivedrfreales directly or indirectly outside the U.S. fiscal 2008. We expect that t
proportion is likely to increase as we seek toéase our penetration of foreign markets, includimgugh acquisitions, particularly within 1
aerospace and defense markets. Our foreign opesatice subject to the risks inherent in such dEs/isuch as: currency devaluatic
logistical and communications challenges, costoafiplying with a variety of foreign laws and regidas, greater difficulties in protecting ¢
maintaining our rights to intellectual propertyffidulty in staffing and managing geographicallywelise operations, acts of terrorism or we
other acts that may cause social disruption whiehdéficult to quantify or predict and general aomic conditions in these foreign mark
We are not aware of any proposed material regylatbanges, but our international operations mayndgatively impacted by changes
government policies, such as changes in laws agdlatons (or the interpretation thereof), restoiss on imports and exports, source
supply, duties or tariffs, the introduction of meges to control inflation and changes in the ratenethod of taxation. To date we have
experienced significant difficulties with the for@gg risks associated with our international ogeret, however, as the size of our internati
operations has continued to grow, we expect thisks to become increasingly important to our bussneperations.

Currency translation risks may have a material impat on our results of operations.

Our Swiss operations utilize the Swiss Franc asftimetional currency, our French operations utilthe Euro as the functior
currency and our English operations utilize thetini Pound Sterling as the functional currency.ekpr currency transaction gains and lo
are included in earnings. Foreign currency transaaxposure arises primarily from the transfefakign currency from one subsidiary
another within the group and to foreign currencyateinated trade receivables. Unrealized curreranystation gains and losses are recogt
upon translation of the foreign subsidiaries' be¢asheets to U.S. dollars. Because our financééstents are denominated in U.S. dol
changes in currency exchange rates between thedbll&r and other currencies have had, and wilticoe to have, an impact on our earni
While we monitor exchange rates, we currently dohave exchange rate hedges in place to reducesthef an adverse currency excha
movement. Although currency fluctuations have rexd b material impact on our financial performanmcéhie past, such fluctuations may af
our financial performance in the future. The impattfuture exchange rate fluctuations on our resolt operations cannot be accurs
predicted. See "Quantitative and Qualitative Disules about Market Risk—Foreign Currency Exchargte "
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We may be required to make significant future contibutions to our pension plan.

As of March 29, 2008, we maintained one noncontalyudefined benefit pension plan. The plan wasrfoveled by $0.5 million i
the aggregate as of March 29, 2008 and underfubgle®il.1 million as of March 31, 2007, which are #mounts by which the accumuls
benefit obligations are less than or exceed, reéiadye, the sum of the fair market value of therpfaassets. We are required to make
contributions to our pension plan to the extentessary to comply with minimum funding requiremeimiposed by employee benefit laws
tax laws. The amount of any such required contidimstis determined based on annual actuarial viatuaf the plan as performed by the pk&an’
actuaries. The amount of future contributions dépend upon asset returns, tloemrent discount rates and a number of other factord, as
result, the amount we may elect or be requiredtdrdute to our pension plan in the future mayéase significantly. Additionally, there i
risk that if the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corpanatconcludes that its risk with respect to our pemglan may increase unreasonably if
plan continues to operate, if we are unable tafatihe minimum funding requirement for the plarfdhe plan becomes unable to pay bent
then the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation cterchinate the plan and take control of its asdetsuch event, we may be required to n
an immediate payment to the Pension Benefit Gugar@otrporation of all or a substantial portion oéthnderfunding as calculated by
Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation based upormows assumptions. The underfunding calculated ey Plension Benefit Guaral
Corporation could be substantially greater than uhderfunding we have calculated because, for el@ntpe Pension Benefit Guara
Corporation may use a significantly lower discotete. If such payment is not made, then the PerBarefit Guaranty Corporation co!
place liens on a material portion of our assets thedassets of any members of our controlled gr&ugh action could result in a mate
increase in our pension related expenses and aspamding reduction in our cash flow and net incolroe additional information concerni
our pension plan and plan liabilities, see Notedl8ur consolidated financial statements for teedi year ended March 29, 2008.

We may incur material losses for product liabilityand recall related claims.

We are subject to a risk of product and recalltegldiability in the event that the failure, usensisuse of any of our products result
personal injury, death, or property damage or aadpcts do not conform to our customers' specificat In particular, our products .
installed in a number of types of vehicle fleetgluding airplanes, trains, automobiles, heavyksuand farm equipment, many of which
subject to government ordered as well as voluntaeglls by the manufacturer. If one of our produst®und to be defective, causes a flel
be disabled or otherwise results in a product tesighificant claims may be brought against ugh8ligh we have not had any material pro
liability or recall related claims made against asgd we currently maintain product liability insncg coverage for product liability, althot
not for recall related claims, we cannot assure @i product liability or recall related claim$,made, would not exceed our insurs
coverage limits or would be covered by insuranc&kythin turn, may result in material losses relatethese claims, increased future insur.
costs and a corresponding reduction in our cash dlod net income.

Environmental regulations impose substantial costand limitations on our operations, and environmenta compliance may be mor
costly than we expect.

We are subject to various federal, state and lecalironmental laws and regulations, including thgexerning discharges
pollutants into the air and water, the storagedhag and disposal of wastes and the health aretysaf employees. These laws and regula
could subject us to material costs and liabilitiesjuding compliance costs, civil and criminaldmimposed for failure to comply with th
laws and regulatory and litigation costs. We alsayrhe liable under the federal Comprehensive Enwirental Response, Compensation,
Liability Act, or similar state laws, for the costd investigation and cleamp of contamination at facilities currently or foerty owned ¢
operated by us or at other facilities at which wagéhdisposed of hazardous substances. In connetitlorsuch contamination, we may alsc
liable for natural resource damages, governmendlpes and claims by third parties for personaliipjand property damage. Compliance !
these laws and regulations may prove to be moriirignand costly than we anticipate. New laws aadutations, stricter enforcement
existing laws and regulations, the discovery of/fmesly unknown contamination or the impositionngfw cleandp requirements could requ
us to incur costs or become the basis for newa@eased liabilities that could cause a materiaiiase in our environmental related compli
costs and a corresponding reduction in our cashk 8od net income. Investigation and remediatiorcaftamination at some of our site
ongoing. Actual costs to clearp these sites may exceed our current estimatésough we have indemnities and other agreementsefidair
pre<closing environmental liabilities from the prior oers in connection with our acquisition of severbur facilities, we cannot assure !
that the indemnities will be adequate to cover knawvnewly discovered pre-closing liabilities.
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Our intellectual property and other proprietary rig hts are valuable, and any inability to protect themcould adversely affect ou
business and results of operations; in addition, wemay be subject to infringement claims by third paties.

Our ability to compete effectively is dependent mmur ability to protect and preserve the intellettproperty and other proprieti
rights and materials owned, licensed or otherwseduby us. We have numerous U.S. and foreign [gategatdemark registrations and
copyright registrations. Our issued patents areetgal to expire by their own terms at various datesmost such patents will not expire fc
least 5 years. We also have U.S. and foreign tradernd patent applications pending. We cannotragsau that our pending trademark
patent applications will result in trademark regisbns and issued patents, and our failure torsegghts under these applications may |
our ability to protect the intellectual propertghits that these applications were intended to cénough we have attempted to protect
intellectual property and other proprietary rightgh in the United States and in foreign counttigsugh a combination of patent, tradem
copyright and trade secret protection and d@mwiosure agreements, these steps may be ingmffitd prevent unauthorized use of
intellectual property and other proprietary righgsysticularly in foreign countries where the prdime available for such intellectual prope
and other proprietary rights may be limited. Werzg@rassure you that any of our intellectual propeghts will not be infringed upon or tt
our trade secrets will not be misappropriated tientise become known to or independently develdpedompetitors. We may not he
adequate remedies available for any such infringgmeother unauthorized use. We cannot assurehailany infringement claims assertec
us will not result in our intellectual property hgichallenged or invalidated, that our intellectuiaperty will be held to be of adequate scoj
protect our business or that we will be able teedeurrent and former employees, contractors oeroplarties from breaching confidentia
obligations and misappropriating trade secretaddition, we may become subject to claims agaissthich could require us to pay dame
or limit our ability to use certain intellectualggrerty and other proprietary rights found to bevimlation of a third party's rights, and, in
event such litigation is successful, we may be lenebuse such intellectual property and other pedgary rights at all or on reasonable tel
Regardless of its outcome, any litigation, whet@nmenced by us or third parties, could be pragdeaind costly and could result in incree
litigation related expenses, the loss of intellatforoperty rights or payment of money or other dges, which may result in lost sales
reduced cash flow and decrease our net income :Bisiness—Intellectual Property.”

Cancellation of orders in our backlog of orders cold negatively impact our revenues.

As of March 29, 2008, we had an order backlog df72 million, which we estimate will be fulfilled ithin the next 12 month
However, orders included in our backlog are suliieciancellation, delay or other modifications ly oustomers prior to fulfillment. For the
reasons, we cannot assure you that orders incindaar backlog will ultimately result in the actualceipt of revenues from such orders.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of intenal controls, we may not be able to accurately repbour financial results or prevent
fraud.

Effective internal controls are necessary for ugptovide reliable financial reports and effectivelyevent fraud. Any inability 1
provide reliable financial reports or prevent frazalld harm our business. To date, we have nottdeteany material weakness or signific
deficiencies in our internal controls over finanaiaporting. However, we are continuing to evaluatel, where appropriate, enhance
policies, procedures and internal controls. If vedl fo maintain the adequacy of our internal colsiras such standards are modi
supplemented or amended from time to time, we cbeldubject to regulatory scrutiny, civil or criralrpenalties or shareholder litigation
addition, failure to maintain adequate internaltools could result in financial statements thatntd accurately reflect our financial conditi
Inferior internal controls could also cause invest lose confidence in our reported financiabiniation, which could have a negative el
on the trading price of our stock.

Risk Factors Related to our Common Stock
Provisions in our charter documents may prevent ohinder efforts to acquire a controlling interest inus.

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation abgaws may discourage, delay or prevent a mergeyuiaition or other change
control that stockholders may consider favorahtejuding transactions which might benefit our stowlklers or in which our stockhold
might otherwise receive a premium for their shaiidsese provisions may also prevent or frustratengtts by our stockholders to replac
remove our management.

Our certificate of incorporation authorizes theuasce of preferred stock with such designatiorggitsi and preferences as may
determined from time to time by our board of dicestwithout stockholder approval. Holders of thenowon stock may not have preemp
rights to subscribe for a pro rata portion of aapital stock which may be issued by us. In the eeéissuance, such preferred stock coul
utilized, under certain circumstances, as a metbfodiscouraging, delaying or preventing a changeantrol of us or could impede ¢
stockholdersability to approve a transaction they considerhigirt best interests. Although we have no presdantion to issue any new she
of preferred stock, we may do so in the future.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices are located at Orrébology Center, Oxford, Connecticut 06478. Weoalsse this facility fc
manufacturing.

We own facilities in the following locations:

Rancho Dominguez, California Bremen, Indiana

Santa Ana, California Plymouth, Indiana
Fairfield, Connecticut Bishopville, South Carolina
Torrington, Connecticut Hartsville, South Carolina
Canton, Georgia Walterboro, South Carolina

Clayton, Georgia

We have leases in effect with respect to the falhgwacilities:

Location of Leased Facility Lease Expiration Date Location of Leased Facility Lease Expiration Date
Baldwin Park, California April 30, 2013 Oklahoma City, Oklahoma September 30, 2021
Irwindale, California August 31, 2008 Bishopville, South Carolina January 31, 2016
Santa Fe Springs, California July 1, 2009 Hartsville, South Carolina September 30, 2014
Oxford, Connecticut September 30, 2014 Delmont, Switzerland December 31, 2009
Torrington, Connecticut December 22, 2008 Houston, Texas June 30, 2012
Gloucestershire, England May 20, 2012 Hoffman Estates, lllinois March 31, 2009
Reynosa, Mexico June 13, 2013 Shanghai, China May 24, 2009

West Trenton, New Jersey February 2, 2012 Les Ulis, France July 31, 2010

We have several small field offices located in @asi locations to support field sales operations.

We believe that our existing property, facilitiesdaequipment are generally in good condition, ae#l waintained and adequate
carry on our current operations. We also beliewa tur existing manufacturing facilities have stiffnt capacity to meet increased custc
demand. Substantially all of our owned domestigprties and most of our other assets are subjextiem securing our obligations under
KeyBank Credit Agreement.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are involved in litigationcaadministrative proceedings which arise in ther@any course of our business. '
do not believe that any litigation or proceedingaihich we are currently involved, either individiyabr in the aggregate, is likely to hav
material adverse effect on our business, finamzatition, operating results, cash flow or prospect

The Federal District Court of Connecticut has issae injunction against SKF USA Inc. in connectigith the sale of Nice®adia
ball bearings. Among other things, the Federal Céaund that SKF USA Incs use of its 2008 price list and other advertisdmereate
confusion in the marketplace about whether SKF UISA was still an authorized distributor of NICEoducts. The Federal Court found 1
SKF USA Inc.’s “2008 price list was missing a siggant portion of RBC’s product line,” making itésttibution by SKF USA Inc. far more
damaging to RBC and more likely to create confusion

The Federal Court’ injunction prohibits SKF USA Inc. from distribngj the current versions of its 2008 price list gmdduc
interchange document. The Federal Cauitijunction also prohibits SKF USA Inc. from sugtieg to consumers that SKF USA Inc. is
authorized distributor of Nice® products. To compligh the injunction, SKF USA Incs'price lists, advertisements and similar documenis
“clearly disclaim any authorized affiliation witheé NICE brand and clearly disclaim any status aawhorized distributor of Nice® products.”
The injunction was effective on Monday May 12, 2@@&%pm (EDT).
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matters were submitted to a vote of securitglad during the fourth quarter of the fiscal yazderl March 29, 2008.
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The executive officers are elected by the Boar®ioéctors normally for a term of one year and utité election of their successt
The executive officers of the company as of MayZi8 are as follows:

Name Age Current Position and Previous Positions During Lastive Years
Dr. Michael J. Hartnett 62 1992 Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Daniel A. Bergeron 48 2003 Vice President Finance

2003 Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and $&amy
2006 Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and Atsit Secretary

Phillip H. Beausoleil (a) 64 1995 General Manager
2007 General Manager
Thomas C. Crainer 50 2000 General Manager

2003 General Manager
2008 Vice President and General Manager

Richard J. Edwards 52 1996 Vice President and General Manager
Thomas J. Williams 56 2006 Corporate General Counsel and Secretary
Thomas M. Burigo 56 2003 Manager of Accounting

2005 Director of Accounting
2006 Corporate Controller

(&) Mr. Beausoleil retired from the company on March 3008.

PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT' S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Price range of our Common Stock

Our common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq Natioreakkt under the symbol "ROLL." As of May 20, 2088re were 54 holders
record of our common stock.

The following table shows the high and low saldsqw of our common stock as reported by the Nastsipnal Market during tt
periods indicated:

Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2007
High Low High Low
First Quarter $ 4290 $ 33.7C % 27.1¢ % 19.3:
Second Quarter 42.61 31.7i 25.5] 19.6:
Third Quarter 43.9¢ 33.4¢ 30.1Z 23.7¢
Fourth Quarter 43.8 27 .4¢ 34.8¢ 25.81

The last reported sale price of our common stoctherNasdaqg National Market on May 20, 2008 wasHB@er share.
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Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsuo common stock and do not expect to pay cagtatids for the foreseea
future. Our current policy is to retain all of cemrnings to finance future growth. In addition, eeants in our credit facilities restrict our aly
to pay dividends. Any future declaration of dividsnwill be determined by our board of directorssdth upon our earnings, car
requirements, financial condition, debt covenatats consequences and other factors deemed releyantr board of directors.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

On June 15, 2007, our board of directors authonimetb repurchase up to $10.0 million of our comrstmtk from time to time on t
open market, through block trades, or in privatedgotiated transactions depending on market comditialternative uses of capital and c
factors. Purchases may be commenced, suspendéscontihued at any time without prior notice. Thewnprogram, which does not have
expiration date, replaces a $7.5 million prograat #xpired on March 31, 2007.

Total share repurchases for the three months eMdech 29, 2008 are as follows:

Approximate

Number of dollar value
shares of shares still
purchased available to be
Total as part of the purchased
number Average publicly under the
of shares price paid announced program
Period purchased per share program (000's)
12/30/2007 — 01/26/2008 — 3 = — % 9,25(
01/27/2008 — 02/23/2008 9,79¢ 31.2C 9,79¢ 8,94+
02/24/2008 — 03/29/2008 45 ,56¢ 32.6( 4556¢ $ 7,45¢
Total 55,360 g 32.3¢ 55,36

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, we did issue any common stock that was not registereérue Securities Act.
Equity Compensation Plans

Information regarding equity compensation plansimegl to be disclosed pursuant to this Item istided elsewhere in Note 16, Itel
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Performance Graph
The following graph shows the total return to otackholders compared to a peer group and the NaSdawposite over the peri
from August 10, 2005 (the date of our initial pehdiffering) to March 29, 2008. Each line on thepjrassumes that $100 was invested ir

common stock on August 10, 2005 or in the respedtidices at the closing price on August 10, 200% graph then presents the valu
these investments, assuming reinvestment of didislethrough the close of trading on March 29, 2008.
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COMPARISON OF 31 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURNM*
AmongRECE earings corporated, The T-LA S0 CSorrgoo site ndex
And A Peer Group

£50
$0
810/05 41706 33107 3/29.08
—&— RBLC Bearingx hiwoxporated Ly MNASDAD Conpoxite = Peer Group
August 10, April 1, March 31, March 29,
2005 2006 2007 2008
RBC Bearings Incorporated $ 100.0¢ $ 134.2t  $ 218.9¢ $ 237.0(
Nasdaq Composite Indt 100.0( 109.0( 114.1¢ 106.8¢
Peer Group 100.0( 124.1¢ 179.4¢ 176.9(

The peer group consists of Kaydon Corporation, Mg, NN Inc., Precision Industries Castparts Colpmken Company at
Triumph Group Inc., which in our opinion, most @bsrepresent the peer group for our business setgme

*The cumulative total return shown on the stockfgenance graph indicates historical results onlgt Bnnot necessarily indicative
future results.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth our selected cordgattd historical financial and other data as ofdates and for the periods indica
The selected financial data as of and for the yeaded March 29, 2008, March 31, 2007, April 1,&08pril 2, 2005, and April 3, 2004 he
been derived from our historical consolidated ficiahstatements audited by Ernst & Young LLP, irelegent registered public accoun
firm. Historical results are not necessarily indilea of the results expected in the future. Youwtlaead the data presented below togt
with, and qualified by reference to, "Managemeitiscussion and Analysis of Financial Condition aRdsults of Operations” and «
consolidated financial statements included elsew/rethis Form 10-K.
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Statement of Operations Data:

Net saledd)
Cost of sales

Gross margin
Selling, general and administrati(®

Other, net

Operating income
Interest expense, net
Loss on early extinguishment of de®)
Other non-operating expense (income)
Income before income taxes
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes

Net income

Preferred stock dividends
Participation rights of preferred stock in undistried

earnings

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders
Net income (loss) per common she®)

Basic
Diluted

Weighted average common shai¥

Basic
Diluted

Other Financial Data:
Capital expenditures

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash

Working capital

Total assets
Total debt

Total stockholders' equity (deficit)

)

Fiscal Year Ended

March 29,
2008

March 31,
2007

April 1,
2006

April 2,
2005

April 3,
2004

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

$ 330,60( $ 306,06: $ 274,50¢ $ 243,01¢ $ 187,33:
217,02: 205,95: 191,56: 174,60:. 135,43
113,57¢ 100,10¢ 82,94¢ 68,41+ 51,89¢
48,90: 42,25¢ 41,94¢ 32,74¢ 28,10°

1,82¢ 5,93¢ 2,42¢ 3,52¢ 1,66:
62,85( 51,91¢ 38,57¢ 32,13¢ 22,12¢
3,407 5,78( 15,657 19,66¢ 20,38(
27 3,57¢ 3,771 6,95( —
(463) (1,509 78 (355) 16
59,87¢ 44,06 19,07 5,87¢ 1,73
19,68t 15,58t¢ 6,63« (1,385 1,07(
40,19 28,47¢ 12,43¢ 7,26( 662
— — (893) (2,280 (2,149

— — (630) (1,147) —

$ 40,19: $ 28,47¢ $ 10,91¢ $ 3,83t $ (1,487

$ 1.87 $ 1.3t $ 08¢ % 06z % (0.29

$ 184 $ 1.3: $ 0.7¢ $ 0.3t % (0.29

21,457,84 20,579,49 12,931,18 6,202,61! 6,188,90:
21,802,71 21,335,30 14,452,26 10,854,58 6,188,90.
$ 17,75¢ $ 16,17 $ 10,34: $ 9,52¢ $ 4,951
As of
March 29, March 31, April 1, April 2, April 3,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(in thousands)

$ 9,85¢ $ 5,18¢ $ 16,12¢ $ 2,63 $ 3,25(
176,26 138,97( 146,61. 120,65t 105,55(
337,11: 273,71 275,92 250,16 234,74t
57,75( 59,40: 165,74 220,07¢ 215,22:
223,91 168,17: 73,34( (7,759 (16,28Y)

Net sales were $330.6 million in fiscal 2008 congplato $306.1 million in fiscal 2007, an increaseb@#.5 million. Net sales in t

compared periods included net sales of $5.4 mill@rPhoenix (acquired in May 2007), $2.7 milliaar CBS (acquired in July 200
$0.3 million for AID (acquired in March 2008) an@.8 million for BEMD (acquired in March 2008).

Net sales were $306.1 million in fiscal 2007 congglato $274.5 million in fiscal 2006, an increaseb8f.6 million. Net sales in t
compared periods included net sales of $8.4 milliofiscal 2007 for All Power, which was acquiredSeptember 2006.

Net sales were $274.5 million in fiscal 2006 congplato $243.0 million in fiscal 2005, an increaseb8f.5 million. Net sales in t
compared periods included net sales of $1.7 millioiiscal 2006 for SWP, which was acquired in $efber 2005.

Net sales were $243.0 million in fiscal 2005 congplato $187.3 million in fiscal 2004, an increase$b65.7 million. Net sales in t
compared periods included net sales of $19.3 miiliofiscal 2005 and $6.1 million in fiscal 2004 RBC-API, which was acquired



December 2003.

2 Selling, general and administrative expense forfibeal year ended April 1, 2006 included n@turring compensation expenst
$5.2 million.
3 Loss on early extinguishment of debt in fiscal 2005 $3.6 million for the non-cash writdf of deferred financing costs associ:

with the early termination of the senior creditifiae.
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Loss on early extinguishment of debt of $3.8 miilin fiscal 2006 included $1.6 million for non-caskite-off of deferred financin
fees and unamortized bond discount associatedrefited debt, $1.3 million of redemption premiuns@siated with the retirement
all of our 13% discount debentures in Septembeb2@D.5 million of prepayment fees related to tlepayment of all of tf
outstanding balance under our second lien term ioakugust 2005 and $0.4 million in interest experigr the 30day call perio
related to the early extinguishment of our 13% alist debentures.

Loss on early extinguishment of debt of $7.0 millia fiscal 2005 included $4.3 million for non-cashite-off of deferred financin
fees associated with retired debt, $1.8 milliorredemption premium and $0.9 million of accrued ries¢ for the 3@ay call perio
related to the early extinguishment of $110.0 willof 95/8% senior subordinated notes in July 2004.

4) Amounts for the fiscal year ended March 31, 200ece the consummation of our secondary public rirfig in April 2006, whicl
included: (1) the sale by us of 8,989,550 sharesuofcommon stock (5,995,529 sold by certain of stockholders) at the offeri
price of $20.50 per share and (2) the repayme#is@f8 million of our Term Loan.

Amounts for the fiscal year ended April 1, 2008eaef the consummation of our initial public offegim August 2005, which include
(1) the sale by us of 7,034,516 shares at theinéfgrice of $14.50 per share, (2) the repaymeilasf our $38.6 million in aggrege
principal amount of 13% senior subordinated distalebentures due 2009, (3) the repayment of altantling indebtedness un
our $45.0 million second lien term loan, (4) theliidn of $40.0 million to our Term Loan and (5gtihedemption of all of our th
outstanding Class C and Class D preferred stocarf@aggregate redemption price of $38.6 million.

Amounts shown for periods prior to August 15, 20@&ude shares of both Class A common stock andgacommon stock, all
which were reclassified into a single class of cammtock on a one-fayne basis in connection with our initial publicefhg as ¢
such date.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION
Overview

We are a well known international manufacturer ighly engineered precision plain, roller and badhlings. Our precision solutic
are integral to the manufacture and operation adtmmachines and mechanical systems, reduce weaotmg parts, facilitate proper pov
transmission and reduce damage and energy losedcc@ysfriction. While we manufacture products ihrabjor bearing categories, we fo
primarily on the higher end of the bearing markéeve we believe our value added manufacturing awgiheering capabilities enable us
differentiate ourselves from our competitors antarte profitability. We estimate that approximatslp-thirds of our net sales during fis
2008 were generated by products for which we hieédriumber one or two market position. We have lgeniding bearing solutions to ¢
customers since 1919. Over the past ten yearsy tineldeadership of our current management teamhave significantly broadened our «
markets, products, customer base and geographih.r&¥e currently operate 25 facilities of which @& manufacturing facilities in fo
countries.

Demand for bearings generally follows the market gooducts in which bearings are incorporated drel économy as a whc
Purchasers of bearings include industrial equipraeat machinery manufacturers, producers of commleacid military aerospace equipn
such as missiles and radar systems, agriculturahimary manufacturers, construction, mining andciggieed equipment manufacturers
automotive and commercial truck manufacturers. fritagkets for our products are cyclical, and generatket conditions could negativ
impact our operating results. We have endeavoraditigate the cyclicality of our product markets égtering into soleource relationshij
and longterm purchase orders, through diversification acromiltiple market segments within the aerospace dafdnse and diversifi
industrial segments, by increasing sales to therratirket and by focusing on developing highly costed solutions.

During fiscal 2008, the world economy continuedytow and expand, and we experienced favorable tondiacross our two ma
markets: diversified industrial and aerospace afdrtse. In particular, the diversified industrianket has been driven by requirements in non
residential construction, mining and the oil and gectors. These conditions have resulted in denfi@andearings for both OEM a
replacement markets. In the aerospace marketgstezovery continued, and we believe it is atrttig-stages of an extended cycle. Expan
of the commercial aircraft sector, in responsentséased passenger demand and the need of thergaoriupgrade the worldwide fleet, dr
increased build schedules at Boeing and Airbus. défense sector continued to replace and devetowegpons and cargo platforms. ~
sector demonstrated increased requirements foagepient bearings for combat systems strained l@nsixe use in harsh environments «
the past four years.
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Approximately 22% of our costs are attributableae materials, a majority of which are related et and related products. Dur
the past three years, steel prices have increashistorically high levels, responding to unprecedd levels of world demand. To date,
have generally been able to pass through these tmsur customers through price increases anddkessment of surcharges, although
can be a time lag of up to 3 months or more.

Competition in specialized bearing markets is basedngineering design, brand, lead times andhiétiaof product and servic
These markets are generally not as price sensitithe markets for standard bearings.

We have demonstrated expertise in acquiring arebiating bearing and precisiemgineered component manufacturers that
complementary products or distribution channels ide significant potential for margin enhancemé&Ve have consistently increased
profitability of acquired businesses through a pescof methods and systems improvement coupledtmétintroduction of complementary ¢
proprietary new products. Since October 1992 weslempleted 18 acquisitions which have signifigabtbadened our end markets, prodt
customer base and geographic reach.

Sources of Revenue

Revenue is generated primarily from sales of bearto the diversified industrial market and theoapace and defense markets. ¢
are often made pursuant to sole-source relatiosslhiymgterm agreements and purchase orders with our cestortiVe recognize reveni
principally from the sale of products at the pahpassage of title, which is at the time of shipme

Sales to the diversified industrial market accodrfter 47% of our net sales for the fiscal year ehtiarch 29, 2008. Sales to
aerospace and defense markets accounted for 53%r afet sales for the same period. We anticipaie ghles to the aerospace and de!
markets will increase as a percentage of our nessa

Aftermarket sales of replacement parts for exiséggipment platforms represented approximately 58%ur net sales for fiscal 20(
We continue to develop our OEM relationships whidve established us as a leading supplier on mapgriant aerospace and defe
platforms. Over the past several years, we havereqred increased demand from the replacemend paatket, particularlywithin the
aerospace and defense sectors; one of our busitrasgies has been to increase the proportioale$ slerived from this sector. We beli
these activities increase the stability of our rexebase, strengthen our brand identity and pravidéiple paths for revenue growth.

Approximately 27% of our net sales were derivedrfrgales directly or indirectly outside the U.S. fiscal 2008, compared to 24%
fiscal 2007. We expect that this proportion wilciease as we seek to increase our penetrationr@ffomarkets, particularly within t
aerospace and defense sectors. Our top ten custogeserated 31% and 32% of our net sales in f&@8 and 2007, respectively. Out of
31% of net sales generated by our top ten custodueisg the fiscal year ended March 29, 2008, 20%eb sales was generated by our top
customers. No single customer was responsibledneigating more than 8% of our net sales for theegaeniod.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of sales includes employee compensation andfitee materials, outside processing, depreciatibmanufacturing machine
and equipment, supplies and manufacturing overhead.

During the past four years, our gross margin wasacted by rising raw material prices, in particuteel and related products
response, we have, to date, managed to pass onafbéty of these price increases of raw materi@alsur customers through steel surcha
assessed on, or price increases of, our bearirdupt® However, we have from time to time expergha time lag of up to 3 months or
in our ability to pass through steel surchargesuncustomers, which has negatively impacted oasgmargin. We will continue to pass
raw material price increases as competitive coolitiallow.

We have not been significantly impacted by recantdases in energy prices because energy costsiastesignificant component
which is natural gas used in heat treating oparaficepresent approximately 3% of our overall costs

We monitor gross margin performance through a m®cé monthly operation management reviews. We dellelop new products
target certain markets allied to our strategiedfitst understanding volume levels and product pgcand then constructing manufactu
strategies to achieve defined margin objectives.oig pursue product lines where we believe thatdbveloped manufacturing process
yield the targeted margins. Management monitorsgmargins of all product lines on a monthly bdsisletermine which manufacturi
processes or prices should be adjusted.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative, or SG&A, exgEnrelate primarily to the compensation and agssticosts of selling, gene
and administrative personnel, professional feesyremce, facility costs and information technologie expect SG&A expenses will increas
absolute terms as we increase our sales effortihandincreased costs related to the anticipateditdy of our business.

Other Expenses

In December 2007, our RBC Aircraft Products, Ingbsidiary relocated from a leased to an owned ifacibithin Torrington
Connecticut. Moving expenses related to the relocaif this manufacturing facility resulted in aache of approximately $0.5 million in fisi
2008.

In February 2007, our Tyson Bearing Company, lndbsgliary and the United Steelworkers of Americ&I(ACIO) Local 746101
entered into a shutdown agreement in connectioh @t decision to close operations at our Glasdtentucky facility. Under the shutdoy
agreement, the union agreed to take no action stgagin connection with such shutdown. The agre¢rakso addressed closure and ¢
transition issues related to pensions, workers emsgtion insurance, adjustment assistance and oth#ders. The production that v
conducted at the Tyson facility has been movedherocRBC locations. This consolidation resulte@ icharge of approximately $5.1 millior
fiscal 2007. Approximately $2.2 million of this aige related to the disposal of fixed assets.

In February 2006, our RBC Nice Bearings, Inc. sdilasy and the United Steelworkers of America (AFIOELocal 681612 entere
into a shutdown agreement in connection with owigden to close operations at our Kulpsville, Pefivemnia facility. Under the shutdoy
agreement, the union agreed to take no action stgafin connection with such shutdown. The agre¢éralso addressed closure and ¢
transition issues related to pensions, workers emsgtion insurance, adjustment assistance and oth#ders. The production that v
conducted at the Nice facility has been moved leoRBC locations. Shutdown costs included $0.@anilof severance and $0.4 million
fixed asset impairments which were recorded irefi2006.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth the various compdsesf our consolidated statements of operationgressed as a percentage of
sales, for the periods indicated that are usedrmection with the discussion herein:

Fiscal Year Ended

March 29, March 31, April 1,
2008 2007 2006

Statement of Operations Data:
Net sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Gross margin 34.4 32.7 30.2
Selling, general and administrative 14.¢ 13.¢ 15.z
Other, net 0.€ 1.9 0.9
Operating income 19.C 17.C 14.C
Interest expense, net 1.C 1.8 5.7
Loss on early extinguishment of debt — 1.2 14
Other non-operating expense (income) (0.2) (0.5) _
Income before income taxes 18.1 14.4 6.9
Provision for income taxes 6.C 5.1 2.4
Net income 12.1% 9.2% 4.5%

Segment I nformation
We have four reportable product segments: PlainriBgs, Roller Bearings, Ball Bearings and Otherhédtconsists primarily

precision ball screws and machine tool collets. Tdiwing table shows our net sales and operatitcpme with respect to each of
reporting segments plus Corporate for the lasttfiszal years:
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Fiscal Year Ended

March 29, March 31, April 1,
2008 2007 2006

(in thousands)

Net External Sales

Plain $ 154,53 $ 143,900 $ 115,09:
Roller 97,01¢ 92,12¢ 96,46¢
Ball 56,677 50,46¢ 46,37¢
Other 22,36¢ 19,56¢ 16,57+
Total $ 330,600 $ 306,06: $ 274,50¢
Operating Income
Plain $ 40,98: $ 41,167  $ 30,95¢
Roller 28,81¢ 18,76¢ 23,34(
Ball 14,28¢ 12,52 9,69:
Other 2,66¢ 2,20( 1,47¢
Corporate (23,909 (22,73)) (26,88¢)
Total $ 62,85( $ 51,91¢ % 38,57¢

Geographic Information

The following table summarizes our net sales, bgphg location, for the periods shown:

Fiscal Year Ended

March 29, March 31, April 1,
2008 2007 2006

(in thousands)

Geographic Revenues

Domestic $ 280,51( $ 265,64: $ 243,57¢
Foreign 50,09( 40,41¢ 30,93:
Total $ 330,60( $ 306,06. $ 274,50¢

For additional information concerning our businesgments, see Item 8, Note 21.
Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

Net Sales. Net sales for fiscal 2008 were $330.6 million, acréase of $24.5 million, or 8.0%, compared to $B@&illion for the sam
period in fiscal 2007. During fiscal 2008, we expaced net sales growth in all our four segmentged by demand across end markets as
as continued efforts to supply new products totedsand new customers. Overall, net sales to pamesand defense customers grew 14.£
fiscal 2008 compared to the same period last ydraren mainly by commercial and military aerospadermarket, OEM demand and a
year of All Power which was acquired in fiscal 200t sales to diversified industrial customersage7% in fiscal 2008 compared to
same period last year. Reflected in this changecore markets of construction, mining, semiconductpital equipment and distribution w
up 8.8% offset by a decline in year-owaar volume in our Class 8 truck market. The additof CBS and Phoenix during fiscal 2!
contributed $8.0 million towards this core growth.

The Plain Bearings segment achieved net sales ®.%nillion in fiscal 2008, an increase of $10.8lion, or 7.4%, compared
$143.9 million for the same period in the prior yebhe commercial and military aerospace marketvgb&5.2 million due to an increase
airframe and aerospace bearing shipments to dirorahufacturers and continued demand for aftermagskeduct. The inclusion of Al
accounted for $0.3 million of this increase. Thiaswoffset by a $4.6 million decline in net sale®tw diversified industrial customers. T
decline was mainly due to a shift in manufactugagacity in response to growing aerospace demashtbarer industrial OEM demand.

The Roller Bearings segment achieved net sale98f0dnillion in fiscal 2008, an increase of $4.9liom, or 5.3%, compared
$92.1 million for the same period in the prior yedet sales to the aerospace and defense marketassz by $2.9 million, while the inclus
of Phoenix accounted for $5.3 million of diversifisndustrial market sales, offset by a decreask3d million in diversified industrial mark
sales primarily driven by a continued slowdown im €lass 8 truck market.
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The Ball Bearings segment achieved net sales of7$Bfilion in fiscal 2008, an increase of $6.2 ioifl, or 12.3%, compared
$50.5 million for the same period in the prior ye@f this increase, $2.5 million was driven priradlp by increased aerospace and defense
related demand. Sales to our customers in the tndusarket increased $3.7 million compared to ffzene period in the prior year. -
inclusion of CBS accounted for $2.7 million of thet diversified industrial sales increase.

The Other segment, which is focused mainly on tle sf precision ball screws and machine tool ¢sllachieved net sales
$22.4 million in fiscal 2008, an increase of $2.8lion, or 14.3%, compared to $19.6 million for teame period last year. This increase
primarily due to increased sales of machine totétoin Europe. Included in this increase was $0ilion for the recent acquisition of BEM

Gross Margin. Gross margin was $113.6 million, or 34.4% of né¢sain fiscal 2008, versus $100.1 million, or 32.8f net sales, fi
the comparable period in fiscal 2007. The incréas®ir gross margin as a percentage of net salspvimarily the result of an overall incre
in volume and a shift in mix toward higher margiogucts combined with the corresponding effectsffifiency improvements.

Sling, General and Administrative. SG&A expenses increased by $6.6 million, or 15.6948.9 million in fiscal 2008 comparec
$42.3 million for the same period in fiscal 200h€Tincrease was primarily due to an increase ¢f 86llion for personnel necessary to sup
increased volume, higher stock compensation expeh$6.5 million, and $0.7 million associated wahkquisitions. As a percentage of
sales, SG&A was 14.8% in fiscal 2008 compared t8%3for the same period in fiscal 2007.

Other, net. Other, net in fiscal 2008 was $1.8 million compate®5.9 million for the same period in fiscal 2007 fiscal 2008, othe
net included $1.3 million of amortization of intablgs, $0.5 million of moving expenses related lie telocation of our aircraft produ
manufacturing facility and a loss on disposal gééi assets of $0.4 million, offset by other mismeélous income of $0.4 million. In fiscal 2C
other, net included plant consolidation expensedéh the Tyson and Nice facilities of $3.2 miflica loss on disposal of fixed assets of
million relating primarily to the Tyson plant coniglation, a gain on the sale of the Nice facilify$®.8 million, amortization of intangibles
$0.7 million and $0.2 million of bad debt expense.

Operating Income. Operating income was $62.9 million, or 19.0% of s&fes, in fiscal 2008 compared to $51.9 million18.0% o
net sales, in fiscal 2007. Operating income forRken Bearings segment was $41.0 million in fis2@08, or 26.5% of net sales, compare
$41.2 million for the same period last year, or628.of net sales. The Roller Bearings segment aeldien operating income in fiscal 200t
$28.8 million, or 29.7% of net sales, compared 18.8 million, or 20.4% of net sales, in fiscal 200he Ball Bearings segment achieve:
operating income of $14.3 million, or 25.2% of sates, in fiscal 2008, compared to $12.5 millian24.8% of net sales, for the same peric
fiscal 2007. The Other segment achieved an operatzome of $2.7 million, or 11.9% of net salesfigtal 2008, compared to $2.2 million
11.2% of net sales, for the same period in fis€l72 The increase in operating income in the RoBall and Other segments was dri
primarily by an increase in net sales and a shifiix toward higher margin products. The decreaseperating income in the Plain segn
was primarily driven by the decrease in net saléadustrial customers.

Interest Expense, net. Interest expense, net decreased by $2.4 milligB8td million in fiscal 2008, compared to $5.8 nailliin fisca
2007, driven by debt reduction.

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt. For fiscal 2007, loss on early extinguishment dftdeas $3.6 million for non-cash writef of
deferred financing fees.

Other Non-Operating Expense (Income). In fiscal 2008, we received approximately $0.3 imillin payments under the U.S. Contin
Dumping and Subsidy Offset Act (CDSOA) for 2007 isTbompared to $1.2 million in payments receivefisnal 2007 for 2006. The CDS(
distributes antidumping duties paid by overseaspamies to domestic firms hurt by unfair trade.

Income Before Income Taxes. Income before taxes was $59.9 million in fiscal 2@@mpared to income before taxes of $44.1 m
in fiscal 2007.

Income Taxes. Income tax expense in fiscal 2008 was $19.7 mililompared to $15.6 million in fiscal 2007. The effee income ta
rate in fiscal 2008 was 32.9% compared to 35.4%iscal 2007.The decrease in the effective income tax rate wasapily due to .
manufacturing deduction taken in 2008 and beneditsted to research and development credits, pgrtéfset by a lower international re
differential.
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Net Income. Net income was $40.2 million in fiscal 2008 comhre net income of $28.5 million in fiscal 2007.
Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

Net Sales. Net sales for fiscal 2007 were $306.1 million, aoréase of $31.6 million, or 11.5%, compared to4$2illion for the
same period in fiscal 2006. During fiscal 2007, experienced net sales growth in three of our fegneents, driven by demand across
markets as well as continued efforts to supply meeducts to existing and new customers. Overall, sades to aerospace and defi
customers grew 25.8% in fiscal 2007 compared tostree period last year, driven mainly by commerara military aerospace aftermar
OEM demand and the inclusion of recently acquirddPAwer. Net sales to diversified industrial custys grew 0.3% in fiscal 2007 compe
to the same period last year. Reflected in thisngba our core markets of construction, mining, semductor capital equipment &
distribution were up 6.8% offset by a decline imever-year volume in our Class 8 truck market.

The Plain Bearings segment achieved net sales48.$illion in fiscal 2007, an increase of $28.8lion, or 25.0%, compared
$115.1 million for the same period in the prior geEhe commercial and military aerospace markebacted for $28.2 million of the incret
due to an increase in airframe and aerospace Igeshipments to aircraft manufacturers and contindexiand for aftermarket product. |
sales to diversified industrial customers accoufe®0.6 million of the increase driven by geneénalustrial applications.

The Roller Bearings segment achieved net sales92fl$million in fiscal 2007, a decrease of $4.4lionl, or 4.5%, compared
$96.5 million for the same period in the prior ye®8.1 million of this decrease was attributablesates to customers in the industrial ma
mainly a result of the slowdown in the class 8 kratarket. The aerospace and defense market accolantthe offsetting $3.7 million increa
driven primarily by increasing build rates and ntairance requirements for commercial and militargratft.

The Ball Bearings segment achieved net sales of5$&0lion in fiscal 2007, an increase of $4.1 ioifl, or 8.8%, compared
$46.4 million for the same period in the prior yeBine increase was driven principally by increadechand from airframe, electaptical, an
satellite and communications applications and imsed penetration of the airframe market.

The Other segment, which is focused mainly on tile sf precision ball screws and machine tool tsllachieved net sales
$19.6 million in fiscal 2007, an increase of $3.0lion, or 18.1%, compared to $16.6 million for teame period last year. This increase
primarily due to increased sales of machine todetoto the industrial market in Europe and priecidall screws to aerospace and indus
applications.

Gross Margin. Gross margin was $100.1 million, or 32.7% of néésain fiscal 2007, versus $82.9 million, or 30.2%net sales, f(
the comparable period in fiscal 2006. The increas®ir gross margin as a percentage of net salspvimarily the result of an overall incre
in volume, higher prices, increased manufacturifigiency, and overall product mix.

Sling, General and Administrative. SG&A expenses increased by $0.4 million, or 0.786$42.3 million in fiscal 2007 comparec
$41.9 million for the same period in fiscal 200feTincrease was primarily due to higher stock camsgion expense of $0.4 million, hig
professional service fees of $1.3 million and acréase of $3.9 million for personnel necessaryutgpert increased volume, offset by §
million in non+ecurring compensation expense in fiscal 2006. psraentage of net sales, SG&A was 13.8% in fi208l7 compared to 15.2
for the same period in fiscal 2006.

Other, net. Other, net in fiscal 2007 was $5.9 million compare®2.4 million for the same period in fiscal 2006 fiscal 2007, othe
net included plant consolidation expenses for bla¢hTyson and Nice facilities of $3.2 million, astoon disposal of fixed assets of $2.7 mi
relating primarily to the Tyson plant consolidaticm gain on the sale of the Nice facility of $0.8lion, amortization of intangibles
$0.7 million and $0.2 million of bad debt expenisefiscal 2006, other, net included amortizationmaingibles of $0.7 million, severance c
of $0.6 million and losses on fixed asset dispos&l$0.4 million for the RBC Nice Bearings, Incapt consolidation, $0.2 million of non-
recurring management fees, $0.3 million of bad dspense, and $0.2 million of other expenses.

Operating Income. Operating income was $51.9 million, or 17.0% of sa&les, in fiscal 2007 compared to $38.6 million14.0% o
net sales, in fiscal 2006. Operating income forRken Bearings segment was $41.2 million in fi2@07, or 28.6% of net sales, compare
$31.0 million for the same period last year, or9%6.of net sales. The Roller Bearings segment aellien operating income in fiscal 200’
$18.8 million, or 20.4% of net sales, compared 28.8 million, or 24.2% of net sales, in fiscal 200te Ball Bearings segment achieve!
operating income of $12.5 million, or 24.8% of sates, in fiscal 2007, compared to $9.7 million26r9% of net sales, for the same peric
fiscal 2006. The Other segment achieved an operaicome of $2.2 million, or 11.2% of net salesfigtal 2007, compared to $1.5 million
8.9% of net sales, for the same period in fiscdl&20The increase in operating income in the PIB@) and Other segments was dri
primarily by an increase in net sales. The decreaeperating income in the Roller segment was arily driven by the decrease in net sale
industrial distributor customers.
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Interest Expense, net. Interest expense, net decreased by $9.9 milliggst® million in fiscal 2007, compared to $15.7 roifl in fisca
2006, driven by debt reduction.

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt. For fiscal 2007, loss on early extinguishment dftdeas $3.6 million for non-cash writeff of
deferred financing fees. For fiscal 2006, loss arlyeextinguishment of debt of $3.8 million incluti§1.6 million for non-cash writeff of
deferred financing fees and unamortized bond disttassociated with retired debt, $1.3 million oflemption premium associated with
redemption of all our 13% discount debentures ipt&aber 2005, $0.5 million prepayment fees relédetie prepayment of all the outstanc
balance under our second lien term loan in Aug@§52and $0.4 million in interest expense for theda§ call period related to the et
extinguishment of our 13% debentures.

Other Non-Operating Expense (Income). In fiscal 2007, we received approximately $1.2 imillin payments under the U.S. Contin
Dumping and Subsidy Offset Act (CDSOA). The CDSGtributes antidumping duties paid by overseas @nigs to domestic firms hurt
unfair trade.

Income Before Income Taxes. Income before taxes was $44.1 million in fiscal 2Z@@mpared to income before taxes of $19.1 m
in fiscal 2006.

Income Taxes. Income tax expense in fiscal 2007 was $15.6 miliompared to $6.6 million in fiscal 2006. The effee income ta
rate in fiscal 2007 was 35.4% compared to 34.8%saal 2006.The increase in the effective income tax rate fg@ar to year is primarily di
to the recording of a valuation allowance on certstiate net operating losses due to plant shutdasnsell as the elimination of the E
benefit, partially offset by a reduction in stea& £xpense due to the elimination of most statechise taxes.

Net Income. Net income was $28.5 million in fiscal 2007 comphre net income of $12.4 million in fiscal 2006.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our business is capital intensive. Our capital meoents include manufacturing equipment and malterin addition, we ha
historically fueled our growth in part through aigitions. We have historically met our working dapi capital expenditure requirements
acquisition funding needs through our net cashdlpwvided by operations, various debt arrangenmardssale of equity to investors.

Liquidity

On June 26, 2006, RBCA entered into a credit agee¢nithe “KeyBank Credit Agreementgnd related security and guare
agreements with certain banks, KeyBank Nationalo8isgion, as Administrative Agent, and J.P. Mordahase Bank, N.A. as Cleac
Arrangers and Joint Lead Book Runners. The KeyBarddit Agreement provides RBCA, as borrower, with1%0.0 million fiveyear senic
secured revolving credit facility which can be isased by up to $75.0 million, in increments of $2&illion, under certain circumstances
subject to certain conditions (including the ret&pm one or more lenders of the additional commeitt).

Amounts outstanding under the KeyBank Credit Agreengenerally bear interest at the prime rate,IBAR plus a specified marg
depending on the type of borrowing being made. dpy@icable margin is based on our consolidated &tnet debt to adjusted EBITDA frc
time to time. Currently, our margin is 0.0% forma rate loans and 0.625% for LIBOR rate loans. Am®wutstanding under the KeyB:
Credit Agreement are due and payable on the eigirdate of the credit agreement (June 24, 201¥) cah elect to prepay some or all of
outstanding balance from time to time without pgnal

The KeyBank Credit Agreement requires us to comglp various covenants, including among other tejninancial covenants

maintain a ratio of consolidated net debt to agid4EBITDA not to exceed 3.25 to 1, and a consddiddixed charge coverage ratio no
exceed 1.5 to 1. As of March 29, 2008, we wereoimgliance with all such covenants.
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The KeyBank Credit Agreement allows us to, amorgiothings, make distributions to shareholdersymapase our stock, incur otl
debt or liens, or acquire or dispose of assetsigedvthat we comply with certain requirements andthtions of the credit agreement. (
obligations under the KeyBank Credit Agreementsaeured by a pledge of substantially all of our RBICA’s assets and a guaranty by L
RBCA'’s obligations.

On June 26, 2006, we borrowed approximately $79l@munder the KeyBank Credit Agreement and usedh funds to (i) pay fe
and expenses associated with the KeyBank Creditéxgent and (ii) repay the approximately $78.0 orillbalance outstanding under a ci
agreement in place at that time. We recorded acash-preax charge of approximately $3.6 million in fis@007 to write off deferred de
issuance costs associated with the early termimatidhe Amended Credit Agreement. Deferred finagdees of $0.9 million associated v
the KeyBank Credit Agreement were also recordéftsaal 2007.

On September 10, 2007, we entered into an amendvhém KeyBank Credit Agreement. Pursuant to #rens of the amendment,
commitment fees payable under the KeyBank CredieAgent were decreased from a range of 10 to 2&#5 points, based on our lever
ratio (as defined under the KeyBank Credit Agreethema range of 7.5 to 20 basis points. Furthee, margin payable under the KeyB
Credit Agreement for revolving loans that are bade loans, based on our leverage ratio, was desildaom a range of 0 to 75 basis points
range of 0 to 25 basis points. The margin payabtieuthe KeyBank Credit Agreement for revolvingrisahat are fixed rate loans, base:
our leverage ratio (as defined under the agreemead)decreased from a range of 62.5 to 165 basitspo a range of 37.5 to 115 basis po
Also, the covenant requiring us to limit capitaperditures (excluding acquisitions) in any fiscaayto an amount not to exceed $20,000
amended to increase the limit to an amount noixteed $30,000As of March 29, 2008, $41.0 million was outstandimgler the KeyBar
Credit AgreementApproximately $21.6 million of the KeyBank Creditgfeement is being utilized to provide letters cdit to secure o
obligations relating to certain Industrial Develogmh Revenue Bonds (the “IRB’s&nd insurance programs. As of March 29, 2008, veethe
ability to borrow up to an additional $87.4 milliamder the KeyBank Credit Agreement.

On December 8, 2003, Schaublin entered into a beendit facility (the "Swiss Credit Facility") witlredit Suisse providing for 1(
million Swiss francs, or approximately $10.0 mitlicof term loan (the "Swiss Term Loan") and up 1 raillion Swiss francs, or approximat
$2.0 million, of revolving credit loans and letterScredit (the "Swiss Revolving Credit FacilityWe pledged 99.4% of the present and fu
share capital of Schaublin S.A. (1,366 shares)rafjahis facility. On November 8, 2004, Schaublmeaded the Swiss Credit Facility
increase the Swiss Revolving Credit Facility to sillion Swiss francs, or approximately $4.0 milioBorrowings under the Swiss Revolv
Credit Facility bear interest at a floating rateltBOR plus 2.25%. As of March 29, 2008, the teoar was paid off in full and there were
borrowings outstanding under the Swiss Credit RgciThe credit agreement for the Swiss Credit Rgccontains affirmative and negati
covenants regarding the Schaublin financial pasiiad results of operations and other terms customoasuch financings. As of March
2008, we were in compliance with all such covenants

On April 18, 2006, pursuant to a purchase agreemvéhtMerrill Lynch & Co., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, #éhner & Smith Incorporate
KeyBanc Capital Markets and Robert W. Baird & Gee, along with certain of our stockholders, sol@88,550 shares of our common si
(5,995,529 sold by certain of our stockholders)e ©ffering yielded us aggregate net proceeds ofcegpately $57.0 million after payment
the underwriting discount, commissions and offerxgpenses. The full amount of the net proceeds wsed to prepay outstanding balai
under a term loan outstanding at that time.

On August 15, 2005, pursuant to a purchase agrdemitnMerrill Lynch & Co., Merrill Lynch, Piercef-enner & Smith Incorporate
KeyBanc Capital Markets and Jefferies & Compang,,Ime, along with certain of our stockholders,dsb0,531,200 shares of our comr
stock (3,496,684 sold by certain of our stockhddjleThe offering yielded us aggregate net procedds92.1 million after payment of t
underwriting discount and offering expenses. Afetemption of our Class C and Class D preferreckstor $34.6 million, our net procee
were $57.5 million. Immediately prior to the consuaation of the initial public offering, all outstaing shares of Class B preferred stock \
converted in accordance with their terms into 1,846 shares of Class A common stock, 306,298 sludi@€kass C preferred stock and 240,
shares of Class D preferred stock. All shares ab€IC and Class D preferred stock were redeemadcaséh or common stock and all share
Class A and Class B common stock were reclasséfsedommon stock on a one-fone basis. In connection with the initial publi¢esing, we
fled an Amended and Restated Certificate of Inocapion (the "Amendment"). The Amendmeéntreased our authorized capital stoc
70,000,000 shares, (i) 60,000,000 of which is commstock, $0.01 par value per share, and (ii) 10@@D of which is preferred stock, $0
par value per share.

Our ability to meet future working capital, capiependitures and debt service requirements witledd on our future financ
performance, which will be affected by a range a@fremic, competitive and business factors, paditylinterest rates, cyclical changes in
end markets and prices for steel and our abilitpass through price increases on a timely basisyrnéwhich are outside of our control.
addition, future acquisitions could have a sigwifitimpact on our liquidity position and our needddditional funds.
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From time to time we evaluate our existing fa@hktiand operations and their strategic importanaestdf we determine that a giv
facility or operation does not have future strateighportance, we may sell, partially or completellocate production lines, consolidate
otherwise dispose of those operations. Althouglbelgeve our operations would not be materially imga by such dispositions, relocation:
consolidations, we could incur significant casmon-cash charges in connection with them.

Cash Flows
Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

In the fiscal year ended March 29, 2008, we geerdraash of $27.1 million from operating activitesmpared to $55.7 million for t
fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. The decreas@®®6dmillion was mainly a result of an increasebbl.7 million in net income, a change
operating assets and liabilities of $22.1 milliorddhe net of nomash charges of $18.2 million. The change in wayldapital investment w
primarily attributable to an increase in inventaiye to builds related to fiscal 2009 orders, ameiase in accounts receivable related to h
sales, an increase in prepaid expenses and othentassets, an increase in ramrent assets offset by an increase in accounsbies al
increase in accrued expenses and other curreilitiegband an increase in other non-current ligibs.

Cash used for investing activities for fiscal 2008luded $17.7 million relating to capital expemdés compared to $16.2 million
fiscal 2007. Investing activities also included ®1aillion relating to the acquisitions of the Phog CBS, AID and BEMD businesses.

In fiscal 2008, financing activities provided $8r6llion. We received $4.0 million from the exerciséstock options and an inco
tax benefit of $9.5 million related to the exercifenongualified stock options. This was offset by theurghase of common stock of $
million, a decrease in our revolving credit fagilof $1.0 million, the payoff of an IRB for $1.2 livn and capital lease payments of §
million.

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, we geerdraash of $55.7 million from operating activitesmpared to $24.6 million for t
fiscal year ended April 1, 2006. The increase df.$3nillion was mainly a result of an increase @6% million in net income, a change
operating assets and liabilities of $9.2 milliordahe net of norcash charges of $5.9 million. The change in worldagital investment w.
primarily attributable to a decrease in inventonedo improved turns and a decrease in accountabpaypffset by an increase in accol
receivable related to increased sales and an seiaanon-current assets.

Cash used for investing activities for fiscal 200@luded $16.2 million relating to capital expendés compared to $10.3 million
fiscal 2006. Investing activities also included&#hillion relating to the acquisition of the All Rer Manufacturing business offset by proce
of $3.6 million related primarily to the sale oBtRBC Nice Bearings facility.

In fiscal 2007, financing activities used $45.5lioil. We received net proceeds of $57.8 milliomirour secondary offering (see It
8, Note 1) which were used, in addition to $10.0liom in cash from operations, to pay down the tdoan under the Amended Cre
Agreement. The balance of approximately $78.0 arillivas refinanced and further reduced to $42.0ianilby using approximately $3¢
million in cash from operations. In addition, weeezed $3.1 million from the exercise of stock ops, received an income tax benefit of !
million related to the exercise of nqualified stock options, repurchased 37,356 shafretock for $1.1 million, used $0.3 million of fds fol
capital lease obligations and paid $0.9 milliorfio&ncing fees in connection with our KeyBank Ctefjreement.

Capital Expenditures

Our capital expenditures in fiscal 2008 were $IWillion. We expect to make capital expendituresapproximately $15.0 to $2(
million during fiscal 2009 in connection with ouxisting business and the expansion into the laegibg market segment. We have fur
our fiscal 2008 capital expenditures, and expeduna fiscal 2009 capital expenditures, principallyough existing cash, internally gener:
funds and borrowings under our KeyBank Credit Agrept. We may also make substantial additional ahpitpenditures in connection w
acquisitions.
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Obligations and Commitments

The contractual obligations presented in the taklew represent our estimates of future paymentieufixed contractual obligatio

and commitments. Changes in our business needseliion provisions and interest rates, as weli@ns by third parties and other fact
may cause these estimates to change. Becauseettasates are necessarily subjective, our actyahpats in future periods are likely to v
from those presented in the table. The followingldasummarizes certain of our contractual obligegtiand principal and interest paym
under our debt instruments and leases as of M&cROD8:

(1)

(@)

3)

Payments Due By Period

Less than 1lto 3to More than

Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 5 Years
(in thousands)

Total debi $ 57,75( $ 75C $ 1,85 $ 42,32( $ 12,83(
Capital lease obligations 60¢ 211 37C 28 —
Operating leases 19,84: 4,132 6,821 4,11¢ 4,77%
Interest on fixed rate de(@ 4,54¢ 1,33¢ 2,57¢ 63¢ —
Interest on variable rate de®) 6,644 1,067 2,082 1,16( 2,33t
Pension and postretirement benefits 17,36¢ 1,547 3,24¢ 3,347 9,22¢
Total contractual cash obligations $ 106,76 $ 9,041 $ 16,94¢ $ 51,60¢ $ 29,16¢

Includes the $41.0 million fivgear senior secured revolving credit facility under KeyBank Credit Agreement, $1.3 million n
payable and other debt totaling $15.5 million.

Interest payments are calculated based on a LIBXRaf 3.64% (per the interest rate swap agreerpém)the current bank margin
per our bank agreement.

Interest payments are calculated based on begimfipgriod debt balances that reflect contractwdit damortization over the term
the instruments and assume a constant LIBOR ra2el@6% plus bank margin per our KeyBank Creditefegnent. To the extent tl
actual rates change, our interest rate obligatidhshange accordingly.

Quarterly Results of Operations

1)
(2)

Quarter Ended

Mar. 29, Dec. 29 Sept. 29 Jun. 30 Mar. 31, Dec. 30 Sept. 30 Jul. 1,
2008 2007 2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006

(Unaudited)
(in thousands, except per share data)

Net sales $ 92,13¢ $80,407 $ 78,232 $79,82: $ 81,03¢ $76,54« $ 73,24¢ $75,23!
Gross margin 32,34. 27,55« 26,237 27,44% 28,55¢ 24,54: 23,500 23,50¢
Operating income 17,96 15,117 13,99¢ 15,78. 11,47¢ 14,33¢ 12,61( 13,49¢
Net income $12,03¢ $ 9581 % 8,74¢ $ 9,82F $ 6,71¢ $ 9,35¢ $ 7,37¢ $ 5,02«
Net income per common sha

Basic(M@) $ 05€$ 04:$ 041$% 046€$ 03z$ 045 $ 03€$ 0.2F

Diluted (1)) $ 055% 044$ 04C$ 045 $ 031$ 044$ 03E$ 024

See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statenfentsdiscussion of net income per common share.

Net income per common share is computed indepelydémt each of the quarters presented. Therefdre,dum of the quartel
earnings per share may not necessarily equal thefto the year.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Company adopted Financial Accounting Stand&aard ( “ FASB") Interpretation No. 48,Atcounting for Uncertainty

Income Taxes - an Interpretation of SFAS No. 1(9,FIN 48"), as of the beginning of its 2008 fiscal year. Thiteipretation clarifies tt
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. FIN pt8scribes a recognition threshold and measuremténibute for the financial statem



recognition and measurement of a tax position takezxpected to be taken on a tax return. Under4&8Nthe Company first asses
whether it is more likely than not that an indivéduax position will be sustained upon examinati@sed on its technical merits. If the
position is more likely than not to be sustainedger the presumption the taxing authority haselwant information, it is recognized. 1
recognized tax position is measured as the latmgstfit that is greater than 50% likely of beinglized upon ultimate settlement. Previol
recognized tax positions that no longer meet theertikely than not recognition threshold are deggiped in the period in which that threst
is no longer met. Accordingly, the unit of accountler FIN 48 is the individual tax position and adtigher level such as the aggregate c
various positions that are encompassed by the tatateturn filing. As a result of the adoption BN 48, the Company recognized a ¢

million increase in its income tax liabilities aadeduction to the April 1, 2007 beginning balanteetained earnings of $0.2 million (see M
15).
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In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement ofan€ial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 157Fdir Value
Measurements,” (“SFAS 157"This statement is effective as of the beginnin§iszfal 2009. SFAS 157 provides a common fair valiggarch
for companies to follow in determining fair valueeasurements in the preparation of financial statésn@nd expands disclosure requirenr
relating to how fair value measurements were de@eeEloSFAS 157 clarifies the principal that fairueakhould be based on the assumption:
the marketplace would use when pricing an assé#bitity, rather than company specific data. Thenthany does not expect SFAS 15
have a material impact on its results of operatems financial position.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of riéiiah Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 159THe Fair Value Option f
Financial Assets and Liabilities, Including an ah@ent of FASB Statement No. 115,” (“SFAS 159his Statement permits entities to chc
to measure many financial instruments and certéiaratems at fair value that are not currentlyuieeg to be measured at fair value. SFAS
is effective as of the beginning of fiscal 2009eT®ompany does not expect SFAS 159 to have a mlatapact on its results of operations
financial position.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of nEinh Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 141(R)Busines
Combinations,” (“SFAS 141(R)”) and Statement of dfinial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 160Actounting and Reporting
Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financkthtements, an amendment of ARB No.” (“SFAS 160"). These new standards v
significantly change the financial accounting ae@arting of business combination transactions amttontrolling (or minority) interests
consolidated financial statements.

In comparison to current practice, the most sigaifi changes to business combination accountingupat to SFAS 141(R) inclu
requirements to:

« Recognize, with certain exceptions, 100 percenthef fair values of assets acquired, liabilitiesuassd, and noncontrollit
interests in acquisitions of less than a 100 percentrolling interest when the acquisition congés a change in control of
acquired entity.

« Measure acquirer shares issued in consideratioa fusiness combination at fair value on the adéurisdate.

« Recognize contingent consideration arrangementheit acquisitiondate fair values, with subsequent changes in falue
generally reflected in earnings.

«  With certain exceptions, recognize preacquisitmssland gain contingencies at their acquisitioe-tkit values.

« Capitalize in-process research and developmeni&PRissets acquired.
« Expense, as incurred, acquisition-related transacbsts.
» Capitalize acquisition-related restructuring castly if the criteria in SFAS 146 are met as of doguisition date.

« Recognize changes that result from a business catidn transaction in an acquirerxisting income tax valuation allowan
and tax uncertainty accruals as adjustments tariedax expense.

The premise of SFAS 160 is based on the econontity @oncept of consolidated financial statemektsder the economic ent
concept, all residual economic interest holdersuinentity have an equity interest in the consadidagntity, even if the residual interes
relative to only a portion of the entity (i.e., @sidual interest in a subsidiary). Therefore, SH&S8 requires that a noncontrolling interest
consolidated subsidiary be displayed in the codatdid statement of financial position as a separataponent of equity because
noncontrolling interests meet the definition of gygwf the consolidated entity. SFAS 141(R) is riegd to be adopted concurrently with SF
160 and is effective for business combination taatiens for which the acquisition date is on oeafhe beginning of the first annual repor
period beginning on or after December 15, 2008ctviior the Company is fiscal 2010. Early adoptismiohibited. The Company is currel
assessing the impact that SFAS 141(R) and SFASvilbBave on its results of operations and finahpiasition.

In March 2008, the FASB issuedStatement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFANY. 161, Disclosures about Derivati
Instruments and Hedging Activities, an amendmerfA$SB Statement No. 133 (“SFAS 1613FAS 161 applies to all derivative instrumi
and related hedged items accounted for under FAS8eiBent No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hed¢
Activities” (“SFAS 133”). SFAS 161 requires entities to provide greater frarency about (a) how and why an entity uses déra
instruments, (b) how derivative instruments anddeeditems are accounted for under SFAS 133 anekliged interpretations, and (c) F
derivative instruments and related hedged itemectfan entitys financial position, results of operations, anghclow. To meet tho:
objectives, SFAS 161 requires (1) qualitative disates about objectives for using derivatives hiynary underlying risk exposure (e
interest rate, credit or foreign exchange rate) layngurpose or strategy (fair value hedge, casi fiedge, net investment hedge, and non
hedges), (2) information about the volume of ddiixaactivity in a flexible format the preparer ie#es is the most relevant and practicable
tabular disclosures about balance sheet locatiah gnoss fair value amounts of derivative instrureerihcome statement and ot
comprehensive income (OCI) location and amountgais and losses on derivative instruments by ¢fm®ntract (e.g., interest rate contre
credit contracts or foreign exchange contracts), @) disclosures about credit-risklated contingent features in derivative agreemeBiAS
161 is effective for financial statements issuedfiecal years or interim periods beginning aftenadmber 15, 2008, which for the Compar



fiscal 2010. Early application is encouraged, as @mparative disclosures for earlier periods, feither are required. The Compan
currently assessing the impact that SFAS 161 \aiehon its results of operations and financial tpasi
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Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caadiand results of operations are based upon asdlilated financial statemer
which have been prepared in accordance with U.8ergdly accepted accounting principles. The prdparaof these financial stateme
requires us to make estimates and judgments tfeattdahe reported amounts of assets, liabilitiesenues and expenses and related discl
of contingent assets and liabilities. On angming basis, we evaluate our estimates, includitape related to product returns, bad d
inventories, recoverability of intangible assetsome taxes, financing operations, pensions anel gihstretirement benefits and continger
and litigation. We base our estimates on historggderience and on various other assumptions tieabelieved to be reasonable undel
circumstances, the results of which form the b&mignaking judgments about the carrying valuesssfets and liabilities that are not rea
apparent from other sources. Actual results mdgifom these estimates under different assumgtiwrconditions.

We believe the following critical accounting poési affect our more significant judgments and esésased in the preparation of
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition. We recognize revenue in accordance with SEC Sta¢bAnting Bulletin 101 "Revenue Recognition in Fical
Statements as amended by Staff Accounting Bulleif”

We recognize revenue upon the passage of tittb@sdle of manufactured goods, which generally tisree of shipment.

Accounts Receivable. We are required to estimate the collectibility of @accounts receivable, which requires a considerminount c
judgment in assessing the ultimate realizatiorhe§é receivables, including the current c-worthiness of each customer. Changes in req
reserves may occur in the future as conditioneénmarketplace change.

Inventory. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mtavklue. Cost is principally determined by thstfin, first-out method. W
account for inventory under a full absorption meth@e record adjustments to the value of inventomged upon past sales history
forecasted plans to sell our inventories. The glatsiondition, including age and quality, of theentories is also considered in establishin
valuation. These adjustments are estimates, whaakdovary significantly, either favorably or unfaably, from actual requirements if futi
economic conditions, customer inventory levelsampetitive conditions differ from our expectations.

Goodwill. Goodwill (representing the excess of the amount paiacquire a company over the estimated fairevaluthe net asse
acquired) and intangible assets with indefinitefulskves are not amortized but instead are te$tedmpairment annually (performed by
during the fourth quarter of each fiscal year)wtren events or circumstances indicate that itsevatay have declined. This determinatio
any goodwill impairment is made at the reporting level and consists of two steps. First, we datee the fair value of a reporting unit ¢
compare it to our carrying amount. Second, if theying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its ¥alue, an impairment loss is recogni
for any excess of the carrying amount of the repgrinit's goodwill over the goodwill's implied faialue. The fair value of our reporting ul
is calculated by the weighted average of a presane of future cash flow method and a multipl&E8iTDA method. Although no changes
expected as a result of the comparison, if therapians management makes regarding estimated tagh ére less favorable than expec
we may be required to record an impairment chardke future.

30




Income Taxes. As part of the process of preparing the consoldiéiteancial statements, we are required to estintfe@eéncome taxes
each jurisdiction in which we operate. This procasslves estimating the actual current tax lidle$ together with assessing tempo
differences resulting from the differing treatmehitems for tax and financial reporting purposBEsese differences result in deferred tax a
and liabilities, which are included in the Consatied Balance Sheet. We must then assess the tikdlithat the deferred tax assets wil
recovered, and to the extent that we believe thabwery is not more than likely, we are requiredestablish a valuation allowance. |
valuation allowance is established or increasethduany period, we are required to include this ami@s an expense within the tax provi
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Sogmt judgment is required in determining our psion for income taxes, deferred tax as
and liabilities and any valuation allowance recagdiagainst net deferred tax assets.

Pension Plans and Postretirement Health Care. We have a noncontributory defined benefit pensiam govering union employees
our Heim division plant in Fairfield, Connecticutdhin our Bremen subsidiary plant in Plymouth, &di.

Our pension plan funding policy is to make the mmam annual contribution required by the Employeé&rB@ent Income Securi
Act of 1974. Plan obligations and annual pensigpeese are determined by independent actuaries asignber of assumptions providec
us including assumptions about employee demographétirement age, compensation levels, pay raiesover, expected longrm rate ¢
return on plan assets, discount rate and the anmandtiming of claims. Each plan assumption reflemir best estimate of the plan's fu
experience. The most sensitive assumption in therménation of plan obligations for pensions is thigcount rate. The discount rate that
use for determining future pension obligationsasdxd on a review of longrm bonds that receive one of the two higheshgatigiven by
recognized rating agency. The discount rate detexdhon this basis has increased from 5.75% at Ap8D06 to 6.00% at March 31, 2007,
increased to 6.25% at March 29, 2008. In develogliregoverall expected lontgrm rate of return on plan assets assumption,lditg block
approach was used in which rates of return in exoéiflation were considered separately for ggeécurities and debt securities. The ex
returns were weighted by the representative taafjetation and added along with an appropriate ddténflation to develop the over
expected long-term rate of return on plan assestgnagtion. The expected lorigrm rate of return on the assets of our pensiangpWas 8.5
and 9.0% in fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, respebtive

Lowering the expected lonigrm rate of return on the assets of our pensiamspby 1.00% (from 8.50% to 7.50%) would
increased our pension expense for fiscal 2008 Ipyosgmately $0.2 million. Increasing the expectedd+erm rate of return on the asset
our pension plans by 1.00% (from 8.50% to 9.50%likdnave reduced our pension expense for fiscaB 2§0approximately $0.2 million.

Lowering the discount rate assumption used to deter net periodic pension cost by 1.00% (from 6.0@%6.00%) would ha\
increased our pension expense for fiscal 2008 lpyoegmately $0.1 million. Increasing the discouater assumption used to determine
periodic pension cost by 1.00% (from 6.00% to 7.D0#buld have reduced our pension expense for fid@@8 by approximately $0.1 million.

Lowering the discount rate assumption used to deter the funded status as of March 29, 2008 by%.0Bom 6.25% to 5.259%
would have increased the projected benefit obligatf our pension plans by approximately $2.3 wnilli Increasing the discount r
assumption used to determine the funded statutMarch 29, 2008 by 1.00% (from 6.25% to 7.25%) \dduave reduced the projected ber
obligation of our pension plans by approximately9®illion.

Our investment program objective is to achieveta i return on plan assets which will fund thenplabilities and provide f
required benefits while avoiding undue exposuredb to the plan and increases in funding requireisieOur actual target allocation of [
assets was 100 percent short-term investmentsiarch 29, 2008 and 100 percent equity as of M&dg007.

Our foreign operation, Schaublin, sponsors a panplan for its approximately 160 employees, in comfance with Swiss pensi
law. The plan is funded with a reputable (S&P mtihA-) Swiss insurer. Through the insurance contract, Goenpany has effective
transferred all investment and mortality risk te fhsurance company, which guarantees the federalydated annual rate of return anc
conversion rate at retirement. As a result, tha plas no unfunded liability; the interest costxaatly offset by actual return. Thus, the
periodic cost is equal to the amount of annual jwempaid by the Company. For fiscal years 2008,7280d 2006, the Company repoil
premium payments equal to $0.5 million, $0.5 milliand $0.4 million, respectively.

The postretirement health care plans are unfundddcasts are paid as incurred. Postretirement hestdfgations as of March 2
2008 and March 31, 2007 were, respectively, $2.8iomi($2.6 million in “Other non-current liabiléis” and $0.3 million in Curren
liabilities”) and $2.7 million ($2.5 million in “Oter non-current liabilities” and $0.2 million in UWrent liabilities”)in our Consolidated Balan
Sheet.
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Our (income) expense for the Postretirement Plaas $0.2 million and $(0.3) million for the yearsded March 29, 2008 and Mal
31, 2007, respectively, and was calculated based apnumber of actuarial assumptions. The incomehi® year ended March 31, 2007
primarily the result of a gain on the curtailmehtwo of the plans.

We use a March 31 measurement date for our plaeseXgect to contribute approximately $0.3 millionour postretirement bene
plans in fiscal year 2009.

Sock-Based Compensation. Effective April 2, 2006, the first day of the Commyas 2007 fiscal year, we adopted SFAS No. 12!
“Share-Based Payment.” SFAS No. 123(R) requiresttieacompensation cost relating to all shia@ased payment transactions be recogniz
the financial statements. That cost is measureddbapon the grardate fair value of the instruments issued recoghizeer the requisi
service period. We have elected to use the “matifiimspective’method in adopting SFAS No. 123(R). Accordinglyteathe effective dat
compensation cost is recognized based on the srgeirts of SFAS No. 123(R) (all awards granted tpleyees prior to the effective date
SFAS No. 123(R) were accelerated in fiscal 2006 lzenee no compensation cost impact after the effeaate). Results for periods priol
fiscal 2007 have not been restated.

The fair value for our options was estimated atdhée of grant using the Bla&eholes option pricing model with the follow
weighted-average assumptions:

Fiscal Year Ended

March 29, March 31, April 1,
2008 2007 2006
Dividend yield 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Expected weighted-average life 5.C 4.¢ 7.C
Risk-free interest rate 5.C% 5.C% 3.5%
Expected volatility 35.2% 34.2% 32.(%

The BlackScholes option pricing model was developed for insestimating the fair value of traded options whitave no vestir
restrictions and are fully transferable. In additi@ption valuation models require the input ofhiygsubjective assumptions, including
expected stock price volatility. Because our optibave characteristics significantly different frémose of traded options, and because chi
in the subjective input assumptions can materiaifgct the fair value estimate, the existing modaklsnot necessarily provide a reliable sii
measure of the fair value of our options.

Derivative Instruments. We account for derivative instruments in accordaméth SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivativ
Instruments and Hedging Activitiesds amended. We recognize all derivatives on thanbal sheet at fair value. Derivatives that are
designated as hedges must be adjusted to fair talaegh earnings. If the derivative is designaad qualifies as a hedge, depending ol
nature of the hedge, changes in the fair valubefderivative is either offset against the chamgiir value of the hedged assets, liabilitie:
firm commitments through earnings or recognizedther comprehensive loss until the hedged iteradegnized in earnings. In fiscal 2008,
entered into an interest rate swap agreement tgehagortion of our debt. This instrument qualifissa cash flow hedge. Accordingly, the
or loss on both the hedging instrument and the ég&dgem attributable to the hedged risk are recghicurrently in other comprehens
income.

Impact of Inflation, Changes in Prices of Raw Materals and Interest Rate Fluctuations

To date, inflation in the economy as a whole hassigmificantly affected our operations. However purchase steel at market pri
which during the past three years have increaséukstorical highs as a result of a relatively loavél of supply and a relatively high leve
demand. To date, we have generally been able ®thasugh these price increases through price asee on our products, the assessme
steel surcharges on our customers or entry intg-lerm agreements with our customers which oftenanrgscalator provisions tied to
invoiced price of steel. However, even if we arkedb pass these steel surcharges or price in@éagrir customers, there may be a time |i
up to 3 months or more between the time a priceease goes into effect and our ability to implensmtharges or price increases, particu
for orders already in our backlog. As a result, guwss margin percentage may decline, and we map@@ble to implement other pr
increases for our products.

Competitive pressures and the terms of certairuofangterm contracts may require us to absorb at leastopahese cost increas
particularly during periods of high inflation. Oprincipal raw material is 440c and 52100 wire aad steel (types of stainless and chr
steel), which has historically been readily avd#alRecently, because of extraordinarily high dednfom certain grades of steel, suppliers |
in some instances allocated certain types of stedimited quantities to customers. However, toedatie have never experienced a v
stoppage due to a supply shortage. We maintainipteulsources for raw materials including steel drae various supplier agreeme



Through solesource arrangements, supplier agreements and garige have been able to minimize our exposureuiidhtions in raw mater
prices.
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Our suppliers and sources of raw materials arecbeséhe U.S., Europe and Asia. We believe thatsmurces are adequate for
needs in the foreseeable future, that there ekistnative suppliers for our raw materials and imamost cases readily available alterne
materials can be used for most of our raw materials

Because we have indebtedness which bears intdrdisiating rates, our financial results will be sg@ive to changes in prevaili
market rates of interest. As of March 29, 2008 had $57.8 million of indebtedness outstanding, loiclv $26.5 million bore interest at float
rates after taking into account an interest ratapsagreement that we entered into to mitigate tleeteof interest rate fluctuations. Under -
agreement, we pay a fixed rate of interest of 3.6 receive floating rates of interest based oa wmonth LIBOR, as required. T
agreement matures on June 24, 2011. Dependingmpdet conditions, we may enter into additionagiast swap or hedge agreements |
counterparties that, in our judgment, have sufficeedit worthiness) to hedge our exposure agaitestest rate volatility

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risks, which arise duttiegnormal course of business from changes inéstentes and foreign currel
exchange rates.

Interest Rates. We are exposed to market risk from changes inrttezdst rates on a significant portion of our anding indebtedne:
Outstanding balances under our KeyBank Credit Agesg generally bear interest at the prime ratelBOR (the London intebank offere:
rate for deposits in U.S. dollars for the applieabIBOR period) plus a specified margin, dependinghe type of borrowing being made.
applicable margin is based on our consolidate rattinet debt to adjusted EBITDA from time to timfes of March 29, 2008, our margir
0.0% for prime rate loans (prime rate at March 2808 was 5.25%) and 0.625% for LIBOR rate loan% (oonth LIBOR rate at March -
2008 was 2.65%).

Our interest rate risk management objective isnit the impact of interest rate changes on ourimetme and cash flow. To achie
our objective, we regularly evaluate the amourntwfvariable rate debt as a percentage of our ggtgalebt. During fiscal 2008 and 2007,
average outstanding variable rate debt, after ¢pkito account the average outstanding notatiomalwent of our interest rate swap agreen
was 46% and 99% of our average outstanding detgentively. We manage a significant portion of exposure to interest rate fluctuation
our variable rate debt through an interest ratepsagaeement. This agreement effectively conveterast rate exposure from variable rate
fixed rates of interest. Please read Notes 2 andol@ur Consolidated Financial Statements for tearyended March 29, 2008 inclu
elsewhere in this Annual Report which outline théengipal and notional interest rates, fair valuesl ather terms required to evaluate
expected cash flow from this agreement.

Based on the outstanding amount of our variabkiratebtedness of $26.5 million, a 100 basis pdhiange in interest rate would h.
changed our interest expense by $0.3 million per,yafter taking into account the $30.0 millioninoal amount of our interest rate s\
agreement at March 29, 2008.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates. As a result of increased sales in Europe, our axgo® risk associated with fluctuating curre
exchange rates between the U.S. dollar, the ElneoStviss Franc and the British Pound Sterling heseased. Our Swiss operations utilize
Swiss Franc as the functional currency, our Freopdrations utilize the Euro as the functional aucyeand our English operations utilize
British Pound Sterling as the functional curreriégreign currency transaction gains and lossesnateded in earnings. Approximately 16%
our net sales were denominated in foreign currenfdefiscal 2008 compared to 14% in fiscal 200% ®pect that this proportion is likely
increase as we seek to increase our penetratidor@fjn markets, particularly within the aerosparel defense markets. Foreign curre
transaction exposure arises primarily from the dfanof foreign currency from one subsidiary to theo within the group, and to forei
currency denominated trade receivables. Unrealm@dency translation gains and losses are recognigmn translation of the forei
subsidiaries’balance sheets to U.S. dollars. Because our finhstatements are denominated in U.S. dollars, gdsin currency exchar
rates between the U.S. dollar and other currerttde@e had, and will continue to have, an impact onearnings. We currently do not h.
exchange rate hedges in place to reduce the risi @fdverse currency exchange movement. Althougieroey fluctuations have not ha
material impact on our financial performance in gaest, such fluctuations may materially affect 6oancial performance in the future. 1
impact of future exchange rate fluctuations onresults of operations cannot be accurately predlicte
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
RBC Bearings Incorporated

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of RBC Bearings Incorporated as of Mag;i2008 and March 31, 2007, i
the related consolidated statements of operati&inskholders' equity and comprehensive income,casti flows for each of the three yeal
the period ended March 29, 2008. These financaksients are the responsibility of the Company'sagament. Our responsibility is
express an opinion on these financial statemersiscban our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaflo(United States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obt@asonable assurance about whether the finastaééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tiliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and diss in the financial statements. An &
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenemtekhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respedi® tonsolidated financial position of R
Bearings Incorporated at March 29, 2008 and Marh2807, and the consolidated results of its opmratand its cash flows for each of
three years in the period ended March 29, 2008iriormity with U.S. generally accepted accountinigiciples.

As discussed in Notes 2 and 13 to the consolidéitethcial statements, effective April 2, 2006, tGempany adopted the provisions
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No(R23'Share-Based Paymentjsing the modified prospective transition methdtgative
March 31, 2007, adopted the provisions of Statern&Rinancial Accounting Standards No. 158, “Emlisy Accounting for Defined Bene
Pension and Other Postretirement Plamas\d, effective April 1, 2007, adopted Financial egnting Standards Board Interpretation No
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - aelpretation of Statement of Financial Accountitgridlards No. 109.”

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the effectivenes
RBC Bearings Incorporated’s internal control ovieahcial reporting as of March 29, 2008, based riterta established in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissio, @ur report dated May 22, 2(
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Hartford, Connecticut
May 22, 2008
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RBC Bearings Incorporated
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(dollars in thousands, except share and per shareath)

March 29, March 31,
2008 2007
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash $ 9,85¢ $ 5,18¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $1,018 in 2008 and $867 in 2007 66,13" 54,63¢
Inventory 123,82( 103,02:
Deferred income taxes 5,567 7,11¢
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 9,97¢ 2,914
Total current assets 215,35¢ 172,87:
Property, plant and equipment, net 73,24 61,20¢
Goodwill 31,82: 29,63:
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortizaifds8,583 in 2008 and $2,329 in 2007 11,40¢ 5,79:
Other assets 5,28t 4,20¢
Total assets $ 337,11 $ 273,71:

See accompanying notes.
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RBC Bearings Incorporated
Consolidated Balance Sheets (continued)

(dollars in thousands, except share and per shareath)

March 29, March 31,
2008 2007
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 24,85, $ 21,29¢
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 13,48¢ 11,85:
Current portion of long-term debt 75C 75C
Total current liabilities 39,09( 33,90:
Long-term debt, less current portion 57,00( 58,65¢
Deferred income taxes 6,06¢ 6,47¢
Other non-current liabilities 11,04¢ 6,507
Total liabilities 113,20: 105,54.
Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; authorized sha@800,000 in 2008 and 2007; none issued ar
outstanding — —
Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized share®060000 in 2008 and 2007; issued and
outstanding shares: 21,782,186 in 2008 and 21,388(02007 21¢ 214
Additional paid-in capital 184,28! 169,48¢
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 1,312 (2,20¢)
Retained earnings 41,68t¢ 1,72¢
Treasury stock, at cost, 113,322 shares in 2008@r856 shares in 2007 (3,599) (1,050)
Total stockholders' equity 223,91( 168,17:
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 337,11: $ 273,711

See accompanying notes.
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RBC Bearings Incorporated

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(dollars in thousands, except share and per shareath)

Net sales
Cost of sales

Gross margin

Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Other, net

Total operating expenses

Operating income
Interest expense, net
Loss on early extinguishment of debt
Other non-operating expense (income)

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Net income
Preferred stock dividends
Participation rights of preferred stock in undistiied earnings

Net income available to common stockholders

Net income per common sha
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average common shares:
Basic
Diluted

See accompanying notes.

Fiscal Year Ended

March 29, March 31, April 1,
2008 2007 2006
$ 330,600 $ 306,06: $ 274,50¢
217,02. 205,95! 191,56:
113,57¢ 100,10¢ 82,94¢
48,90: 42,25¢ 41,94¢
1,82¢ 5,93¢ 2,42¢
50,72¢ 48,19( 44,36¢
62,85( 51,91¢ 38,57¢
3,407 5,78( 15,657
27 3,57¢ 3,771
(463) (1,509 78
59,87¢ 44,06 19,07:
19,68t 15,58t¢ 6,63¢
40,19 28,47¢ 12,43¢
— — (899)
— — (630)
$ 40,19« $ 28,47¢ $ 10,91¢
$ 1871 $ 13 $ 0.8¢
$ 182 % 13 % 0.7¢
21,457,84 20,579,49 12,931,18
21,802,71 21,335,30 14,452,26




RBC Bearings Incorporated

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity an@€omprehensive Income

(dollars in thousands)

Class B Class C Class D Accumulated Retained
Preferred  Preferred Preferred Additional Other Earnings Total
Stock Stock Stock Common Stock Paid-in Deferred  Comprehensive (Accumulated Treasury Stock Stockholders' Comprehensive
Amount Amount Amount Shares Amount Capital  Compensatior Income/(Loss) Deficit) Shares Amount Equit y Income

Balance at April 2, 2005 $ 2% — 3 —  6,202,76' $ 62$ 34,25: % (349 % (2,53) % (39,199 —$ — 3 (7,759
Net income — — — — — — — — 12,43¢ — — 12,43¢ $ 12,43¢
Stock compensation charge for options grant:

below market value — — — — — 16 (16) — — — — —
Amortization of deferred stock compensation — — — — — — 36E — — — — 36E
Conversion of Class B preferred stock (%) 3 2 1,846,391 19 (22) — — — — — —
Redemption of Class C preferred stock — 3) — — — (30,627 — — — — — (30,630)
Redemption of Class D preferred stock — — @) 275,86: 3 (4,00)) — — — — — (4,000
Net proceeds from issuance of common stocl — — — 7,034,511 70 92,05¢ — — — — 92,12¢
Exercise of common stock options and warra — — — 139,28: 1 497 — — — — — 49¢
Income tax benefit on IRS settlement — — — — — 2,47¢ — — — — — 2,47¢
Cashless exercise of common stock options ¢

warrants — — — 1,477,55: 15 (15) — — — — — —
Income tax benefit on exercise of non-qualifie

common stock options and warrants — — — — — 8,681 — — — — — 8,681
Currency translation adjustments — — — — — — — (569) — — — (56¢ (56%)
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of

taxes of $223 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ (291) _ _ _ (291) (291)
Comprehensive income $ 11,57¢
Balance at April 1, 2006 — — — 16,976,38 17c 103,31° — (3,392) (26,759 — — 73,34(
Net income — — — — — — — — 28,47¢ — — 28,47¢ $ 28,47¢
Net proceeds from issuance of common stocl — — — 2,994,022 30 57,79¢ — — — — 57,82¢
Repurchase of common stock — — — — — — — — — (37,356 (1,050 (1,050
Stock-based compensation — — — — — 767 — — — — — 767
Exercise of common stock options — — —  1,362,91 13 3,077 — — — — — 3,09(C
Issuance of restricted stock — — — 75,67¢ 1 — — — — — — 1
Income tax benefit on IRS settlement — — — — — 1,122 — — — — — 1,122
Income tax benefit realized on exercise of no

qualified common stock options — — — — — 3,412 — — — — — 3,41:
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of

taxes of $549 = = = = = = = 887 = = = 887 887
Currency translation adjustments — — — — — — — 90€ — — — 90€ 90€
Adoption of SFAS No. 158, net of taxes of $3 — — — — — — — (60€) — (60€)
Comprehensive income $ 30,27+
Balance at March 31, 2007 — — — 21,408,99 214 169,48¢ $ = (2,206) 1,72¢ (37,35€6) (1,050 168,17:
Net income — — — — — — — — 40,19« — — 40,19 $ 40,19«
Repurchase of common stock — — — — — — — — — (70,367 (2,30¢) (2,309)
Stock-based compensation — — — — — 1,258 — — — — — 1,258
Exercise of equity awards — — — 323,94 B 4,03¢€ — — — (5,599 (235) 3,80«
Change in net prior service cost and actuarial

losses, net of tax benefit of $199 — — — — — — — (322 — — — (322 (322)
Issuance of restricted stock — — — 49,25( 1 — — — — — — 1
Change in fair value of derivatives, net of tax

benefit of $288 — — — — — — — (464 — — — (464) (464)
Income tax benefit on exercise of non-qualifie

common stock options — — — — — 9,50% — — — — — 9,50¢
Currency translation adjustments — — — — — — — 4,302 — — — 4,30 4,30¢
Adoption of FIN 48 _ — _ — — _ _ — (230) _ — (230)
Comprehensive income $ 43, 71.
Balance at March 29, 2008 $ — $ — 3 — 21,782,18 $ 21€ $ 184,28' $ — $ 1,312 41,68¢  (113,32)% (3,599 % 223,91(

See accompanying notes.
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RBC Bearings Incorporated

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(dollars in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashkigea by operating activities:

Depreciation

Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation
Deferred income taxes

Amortization of intangible assets

Amortization of deferred financing costs and debtdunt
Stock-based compensation

Loss on disposition of assets

Loss on early extinguishment of debt (non-cashiqayt
Other

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, natqfiisitions:

Accounts receivable

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other non-current assets

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired
Proceeds from sale of assets

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in revolving credit fac
Net proceeds from sale of stock in initial publféeang
Net proceeds from issuance of common s
Repurchase of common stock
Redemption of Class C redeemable preferred stock
Redemption of Class D preferred stock
Exercise of stock options
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation
Proceeds from term loans
Retirement of senior subordinated discount debestur
Retirement of industrial revenue bonds
Retirement of term loans
Payments on term loans
Principal payments on capital lease obligations
Financing fees paid in connection with senior dréatiility

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

Cash and cash equivalents:
Increase (decrease) during the year

Fiscal Year Ended

March 29, March 31, April 1,

2008 2007 2006
40,19 $ 28,47¢ % 12,43¢
9,211 8,93: 8,66¢
(9,505 (3,419 —
1,11( 9,28: 3,95¢
1,25¢ 713 667
22¢ 353 82¢
1,25¢ 767 36¢
131 1,917 24
27 3,57¢ 1,53¢
— (169) 20
(6,24)) (1,215 2,71
(11,73) 2,48¢ (8,025
(6,99¢) (401 24¢
(2,189 37 29¢
341 917 47C
6,55% 4,73¢ (229
3,44( (1,269) 664
27,07: 55,73t 24,64:
(17,759 (16,179 (10,347
(13,89¢) (8,759 (2,682)
43 3,574 44
(31,619 (21,359 (12,979
(1,000 42,00( (5,000
— — 92,12¢
— 57,82¢ —
(2,549 (1,050 —
— — (30,630
— — (4,000
4,03¢ 3,09( 49¢
9,50¢ 3,41 —
— — 41,10(
— — (38,567)
(1,15%) — —
— (144,87Y (45,000
— (4,659 (7,059
(189 (317) (257)
(65) (903) (1,317
8,597 (45,479 1,911
617 14¢ (83)
4,67¢ (10,945 13,49:



Cash, at beginning of year
Cash, at end of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest
Income taxes

5,18/ 16,12¢ 2,63¢
$ 9,85¢ $ 5,18¢ 16,12¢
$ 3,068 $ 5,92¢ 17,13¢
$ 11,39%¢ $ 78C 892

See accompanying notes.
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RBC Bearings Incorporated
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(dollars in thousands, except share and per shareath)
1. Organization and Business

RBC Bearings Incorporated (the "Company", collesljvwith its subsidiaries), is a Delaware corpanatiThe Company operates
four reportable business segments—roller beariplgén bearings, ball bearings, other and corporatewhich it manufactures roller bear
components and assembled parts and designs andactames highprecision roller and ball bearings. The Companisgel a wide variety «
original equipment manufacturers ("OEMs") and dhisttors who are widely dispersed geographicallyfisnal 2008, 2007 and 2006, no
customer accounted for more than 8% of the Compaajes. The Company's segments are further destirsdNote 21.

On August 15, 2005, pursuant to a purchase agreemigmMerrill Lynch & Co., Merrill Lynch, Piercel-enner & Smith Incorporate
KeyBanc Capital Markets and Jefferies & Compang,,lthe Company and the selling stockholders s0l831,200 shares of the Compa
common stock (3,496,684 sold by the selling stotdérs). The offering yielded aggregate net procdedthe Company of $92,128 al
payment of the underwriting discount and offeringpenses. After redemption of the Company's Class@ Class D preferred stock
$34,630, the net proceeds to the Company were $87|tmediately prior to the consummation of thigah public offering, all outstandir
shares of Class B preferred stock were converteddordance with their terms into 1,846,396 shafé&dass A common stock, 306,298 sh
of Class C preferred stock and 240,000 sharesadsdD preferred stock. All shares of Class C ars<D preferred stock were redeemed
cash or common stock and all shares of Class AGads B common stock were reclassified as commockstn a one-foone basis. |
connection with the initial public offering, the @pany filed an Amended and Restated Certificattnodrporation (the "Amendment”). T
Amendment increased the Company's authorized tapitek to 70,000,000 shares, (i) 60,000,000 ofciwhs common stock, $0.01 par ve
per share, and (ii) 10,000,000 of which is preféstock, $0.01 par value per share.

The proceeds of the offering and additional teremlborrowings under the Amended Credit Agreementligscussed in Note 10) w
used as follows: (1) to redeem all of the Compaoutstanding 13% senior subordinated discount debes by payment to the Bank of N
York, as trustee for the holders of debenturesa tbtal payoff amount of approximately $40,000; ttPyedeem 293,536 shares of Cla
Preferred Stock held by Whitney RBHC Investor, LL®&/hitney") for an aggregate redemption price 09 854; (3) to redeem 12,762 sh:
of Class C Preferred Stock held by Dr. Michael Hettt for an aggregate redemption price of $1,24%tq repurchase 230,000 share
Class D Preferred Stock held by Whitney for an aggte repurchase price of $7,667, of which $3,888 paid in cash out of the proceed
the offering and term loan borrowings and the bagaof which was paid by issuance of 264,368 shaf€sommon Stock; (5) to repurchi
10,000 shares of Class D Preferred Stock held bynel for an aggregate repurchase price of $3B&hich $167 was paid in cash out of
proceeds of the offering and term loan borrowiregg] the balance of which was paid by issuance gf9blshares of Common Stock; (6
repay approximately $45,000 of indebtedness uriteeCompany's second lien term loan credit facilitiiich represented repayment in ful
all amounts owing under such facility, plus appnoaiely $1,400 in fees and expenses in connectidim svich repayment and amendm
(7) to pay approximately $5,000 in mandatory prepeayts under the Company's credit facility in conioacwith the initial public offering
and (8) to pay $2,732 in legal, printing, accougtamd other miscellaneous expenses payable in ctbonavith the initial public offering.

On April 18, 2006, pursuant to a purchase agreeméhtMerrill Lynch & Co., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, #éhner & Smith Incorporate
KeyBanc Capital Markets and Robert W. Baird & Qe Company, along with certain of its stockholdexsld 8,989,550 shares of
common stock (5,995,529 sold by certain of its ldhotders). The offering yielded the Company aggtegeet proceeds of approximal
$57,000 after payment of the underwriting discowatnmissions and offering expenses. The full amairthe net proceeds were use
prepay outstanding balances under a term loanamalistg at that time.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
General

The consolidated financial statements include twants of RBC Bearings Incorporated, Roller Bepi@ompany of America, In
(“RBCA") and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, InduatrTectonics Bearings Corporation (“ITB”), RBC lgar Precision Products, Inc. (“LPP”
RBC Nice Bearings, Inc. (“Nice”), RBC Precision Bugts - Bremen, Inc. (“Bremen (MBC)”), RBC Precisi®roducts Plymouth, Inc
(“Plymouth™), Tyson Bearings, Inc. (“Tyson”), Schaun Holdings S.A. and its wholly-owned subsidiarigSchaublin”),RBC de Mexico S D
RL DE CV (“Mexico”), RBC Oklahoma, Inc. (“RBC Oklama”), RBC Aircraft Products, Inc. (“API")Shanghai Representative office
Roller Bearing Company of America, Inc. (“RBC Shhatij), RBC Southwest Products, Inc. (“SWP"), All Wwer Manufacturing Co. @l
Power”), RBC Bearings U.K. Limited and its whollyvned subsidiary Phoenix Bearings Limited (“Phoephixtid RBC CBS Coastal Bear
Services LLC (“CBS”), as well as its Transport Dymes (“TDC”"), Heim (“Heim”), Engineered ComponentCD”), A.l.D. Compan



(“AID") and BEMD Company (“BEMD”) divisions. U.S. Barings (“USB")is a division of SWP and Schaublin USA is a divisaf Nice. All
material intercompany balances and transactions baen eliminated in consolidation.
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The Company has a fiscal year consisting of 523owBeks, ending on the Saturday closest to MarciB8%ed on this policy, fisc
years 2008, 2007 and 2006 contained 52 we

Certain reclassifications have been made to peary financial statements to conform with curngeeir presentation.
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymwith generally accepted accounting principleguiees management to m:
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartezints of assets and liabilities, and disclosfi@ntingent assets and liabilities, at the
of the financial statements, and the reported ansoofirevenues and expenses during the reportingceictual results could differ from thc
estimates. Estimates are used for, but not limitedhe accounting for the allowance for doubtfot@unts, valuation of inventories, accr
expenses, depreciation and amortization, incomestaxd tax valuation reserves, pension and postretint obligations and the valuatior
options.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmegmischased with an original maturity of three manth less to be cash equivale

Inventory

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mianksing the first-in, firsbut method. A reserve against inventory is recoride
obsolete and slow-moving inventory within each slakinventory.

Shipping and Handling

The sales price billed to customers includes shigp@nd handling, which is included in net salese Thsts to the Company
shipping and handling are included in cost of sales

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at ddspreciation and amortization of property, pland saequipment, includir
equipment under capital leases, is provided fotheystraightine method over the estimated useful lives of spective assets or the le
term, if shorter. Amortization of assets under tadpeases is reported within depreciation and déimaifon. The cost of equipment under ca|
leases is equal to the lower of the net presentevaf the minimum lease payments or the fair mavidme of the leased equipment at
inception of the lease. Expenditures for normalmeaiance and repairs are charged to expense aseiticu

The estimated useful lives of the Company's prgpetant and equipment follows:

Buildings 20-30 years
Machinery and equipment 3-10 years
Leasehold improvements Shorter of the term of lease or estimated usefil i

Recognition of Revenue and Accounts Receivable a@bncentration of Credit Risk
The Company recognizes revenue only after theviafig four basic criteria are met:

« Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;

« Delivery has occurred or services have been reddere
« The seller's price to the buyer is fixed or detaabhie; and
« Collectibility is reasonably assured.
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Revenue is recognized upon the passage of titlichwdrenerally is at the time of shipment. Accourgseivable, net of applical
allowances, is recorded when goods are shipped.

The Company sells to a large number of OEMs anttlilolisgors who service the aftermarket. The Compaaosedit risk associated w
accounts receivable is minimized due to its custdmse and wide geographic dispersion. The Comparfgrms ongoing credit evaluations
its customers' financial condition and generallgslomot require collateral or charge interest orstantling amounts. At March 29, 2008
March 31, 2007, the Company had no concentratibngedit risk greater than 10% of accounts recdiesb

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtfubaats for estimated losses resulting from the litghof its customers to ma
required payments. The Company reviews the collgityi of its receivables on an ongoing basis takinto account a combination of fact
The Company reviews potential problems, such ascsesaccounts, a bankruptcy filing or deteriomafio the customer's financial condition
ensure the Company is adequately accrued for patémss. Accounts are considered past due basedhen payment was originally due.
customer's situation changes, such as a bankraptcseditworthiness, or there is a change in theecti economic climate, the Company 1
modify its estimate of the allowance for doubtfetaunts. The Company will writeff accounts receivable after reasonable collectiffarts
have been made and the accounts are deemed utibtilec

Goodwill

Goodwill (representing the excess of the amourd paacquire a company over the estimated fairevafithe net assets acquired)
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives am amortized but instead are tested for impairnaemually, or when events or circumstai
indicate that its value may have declined. Thigdweination of any goodwill impairment is made at tieporting unit level and consists of -
steps. First, the Company determines the fair vafieereporting unit and compares it to its cargyamount. Second, if the carrying amour
the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, an impant loss is recognized for any excess of theysggramount of the reporting unit's good»
over the goodwill's implied fair value. The fairlva of the Companyg reporting units is calculated by comparing théghied average of tl
net present value of future cash flows and a mafgptoach based on the reporting units' carryingevalhe Company utilizes discount ri
determined by management to be similar with thell®f risk in its current business model. The Conypperforms the annual impairm
testing during the fourth quarter of each fiscadryand has determined that, to date, no impairmegbodwill exists. Although no changes
expected, if the actual results of the Companyless favorable than the assumptions the Compangsnadgarding estimated cash flows,
Company may be required to record an impairmentgehia the future.

Deferred Financing Costs
Deferred financing costs are amortized by the &ffednterest method over the lives of the relateetlit agreements.
Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company utilizes a derivative financial instemhto manage a portion of its interest rate expposthe Company does not eng
in other uses of these financial instruments. Fénancial instrument to qualify as a hedge, thenPany must be exposed to interest ra
price risk, and the financial instrument must rexltice exposure and be designated as a hedge. Rinerstruments qualifying for hed
accounting must maintain a high correlation betw#nenhedging instrument and the item being hedgeth at inception and throughout
hedged period.

The Company accounts for derivative financial imstents under Statement of Financial Accounting &tess, or SFAS, No. 1:
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and HedgiAgtivities,” as amended and interpreted which requires all déviss to be recorded in
Consolidated Balance Sheets at their fair valuémnGes in fair values of derivatives are recorgeddch period in comprehensive incc
since the derivative is designated and qualifies eash flow hedge.
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Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using thslitiamethod, which requires it to recognize aremt tax liability or asset f
current taxes payable or refundable and a defeavetiability or asset for the estimated future &ffects of temporary differences betweer
financial statement and tax reporting bases oftass®l liabilities to the extent that they are irzddle. Deferred tax expense (benefit) re:
from the net change in deferred tax assets antlitied during the year.

Temporary differences relate primarily to the tigiof deductions for depreciation, goodwill amortiaa relating to the acquisition
operating divisions, basis differences arising fraoguisition accounting, pension and retirementefitm} and various accrued and pre
expenses. Deferred tax assets and liabilities ezerded at the rates expected to be in effect vihenemporary differences are expecte
reverse.

The Company adopted Financial Accounting Stand&wlard ( “ FASB”) Interpretation No. 48,Atcounting for Uncertainty
Income Taxes - an Interpretation of SFAS No. 1(9,FIN 48"), as of the beginning of its 2008 fiscal year. Thiteipretation clarifies t
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. FIN pt8scribes a recognition threshold and measureatéritute for the financial statem
recognition and measurement of a tax position takesxpected to be taken on a tax return. Under4dNthe Company first assesses whetl
is more likely than not that an individual tax gasi will be sustained upon examination based steithnical merits. If the tax position is m
likely than not to be sustained, under the presionphe taxing authority has all relevant infornoati it is recognized. The recognized
position is measured as the largest benefit thgtdater than 50% likely of being realized upoimdtte settlement. Previously recognizec
positions that no longer meet the more likely thab recognition threshold are derecognized in #éog in which that threshold is no lon
met. Accordingly, the unit of account under FIN i4&he individual tax position and not a higherdesuch as the aggregate of the vai
positions that are encompassed by the total taxrréiling. As a result of the adoption of FIN 4Be Company recognized a $230 increase
income tax liabilities and a reduction to the Afdril2007 beginning balance of retained earningt280 (see Note 15).

Net Income Per Common Share

Basic net income per common share is computed\higlidg net income available to common stockholdemth Class A and Class
common stockholders share equally in net incomehbyweightedaverage number of common shares outstanding. ®ridugust 15, 200
the Company also had outstanding Class B convergiitticipating preferred stock (the Class B preféstock participated in all undistribu
earnings with the common stock). The Company alextaarnings to the common stockholders and thes@aconvertible participatil
preferred stockholders under the two-class metlsoetquired by Emerging Issues Task Force Issuéd8l6, "Participating Securities and
Two-Class Method under FASB Statement No. 128." flleclass method is an earnings allocation method uwtiéh basic net income g
share is calculated for the Company's common stadkits Class B convertible participating preferséatck considering both accrued prefe
stock dividends and participation rights in undlsited earnings as if all such earnings had bestrildited during the year. Since
Company's Class B convertible participating preférstock was not contractually responsible to shatbe Company's losses, in applying
two-class method to compute basic net income per conshare, no allocation was made to the Class B pegfestock if a net loss existec
if an undistributed net loss resulted from redugiegincome by the accrued preferred stock dividend

Diluted net income per common share is computedibigling net income by the sum of the weightadrage number of comm
shares, dilutive common share equivalents thentandég using the treasury stock method and, pgooAugust 15, 2005, the assur
conversion of the Class B convertible participatimgferred stock to common shares (if-convertechowt If the if-converted method was anti-
dilutive (that is, the ifeonverted method resulted in a higher net incomecpmmon share amount than basic net income pee sladculate
under the two-class method), then the tlesss method was used to compute diluted net ingeanecommon share, including the effec
common share equivalents. Common share equivatentsist of the incremental common shares issugisa the exercise of stock options.
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The table below reflects the calculation of weighé®erage shares outstanding for each year presaste!l as the computation
basic and diluted net income per common share:

Fiscal Year Ended

March 29, March 31, April 1,
2008 2007 2006
Numerator:
Net income $ 40,19 $ 28,47¢ $ 12,43¢
Preferred stock dividends* — — (893)
Participation rights of preferred stock in undistiied earnings — — (630
Numerator for basic and diluted net income per comshar—income available
to common stockholders under the two-class method 40,19« 28,47¢ 10,91¢
Preferred stock dividends and participation rigiftpreferred stock — — 1,527
Numerator for diluted net income per common s—income available to
common stockholders after assumed conversion &peel stock $ 40,19 $ 28,47¢ % 12,43¢
Denominator:
Denominator for basic net income per common shareighwedaverage shar 21,457,84 20,579,49 12,931,18
Effect of dilution due to employee stock options 344,86! 755,80¢ 866,72!
Effect of dilution due to convertible preferred ct® — — 654,35:
Denominator for diluted net income per common shaadjusted weighted-
average shares 21,802,71 21,335,30 14,452,26
Basic net income per common share $ 187 $ 13 % 0.8¢
Diluted net income per common share $ 182 $ 1.3: $ 0.7¢

* through August 15, 2005 (see Note 1).
For additional disclosures regarding the outstaggireferred stock and the employee stock opticesNote 16.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company assesses the net realizable valug lofhiglived assets and evaluates such assets for impatinvteenever indicators
impairment are present. For amortizable Idimge assets to be held and used, if indicatorsnglairment are present, management deterr
whether the sum of the estimated undiscounted dutash flows is less than the carrying amount. &iheunt of asset impairment, if any
based on the excess of the carrying amount ovdaiitsalue, which is estimated based on projedisdounted future operating cash flc
using a discount rate reflecting the Company'sagercost of funds. To date, no indicators of impaint exist.

Long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale orratieans are reported at the lower of carrying amoufair value, less costs to sell.
Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

Assets and liabilities of the Company's foreignragiens are translated into U.S. dollars usingetkehange rate in effect at the bale
sheet date. Results of operations are translated tise average exchange rate prevailing througtieiperiod. The effects of exchange
fluctuations on translating foreign currency assetd liabilities into U.S. dollars are included ancumulated other comprehensive inc
(loss), while gains and losses resulting from fgmecurrency transactions, which were not mateoalany of the fiscal years presented,
included in other nowperating expense (income). Net income of the Caryipdoreign operations for fiscal 2008, 2007 afb@&@amounted
$6,950, $5,767, and $2,624, respectively. Net assiethe Company's foreign operations were $47 dfidb $30,208 at March 29, 2008
March 31, 2007, respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sfuretash, accounts receivable, prepaids and otheemt assets, and accot
payable and accruals approximate their fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Company's borrowingdeurits KeyBank Credit Agreement, Swiss Credit Hgciand Industrie
Development Revenue Bonds approximate fair valaethase obligations have interest rates which Wrargonjunction with current mark
conditions.



Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
The components of comprehensive income that rdtatthe Company are net income, derivatives, foretgrrency translatic

adjustments and pension plan and postretiremdilitygand aftertax impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 158 on pem&ienefits, all of whic
are presented in the consolidated statements cftedtders' equity and comprehensive income.
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The following summarizes the activity within eagntgonent of accumulated other comprehensive income:

Fair Value Pension and
Currency of Postretirement
Translation Derivatives Liability Total

Balance at April 2, 2005 $ (81e) $ — 3 1,716 $ (2,539
Currency translation (569) — — (569)
Minimum pension liability, net of taxes — — (291 (291
Balance at April 1, 2006 (1,385 — (2,00%) (3,399
Currency translation 90¢ — — 90¢
Minimum pension liability, net of taxes — — 887 887
Adoption of SFAS No. 158, net of taxes — — (609) (609)
Balance at March 31, 2007 477) — (1,729 (2,20¢)
Currency translation 4,304 — — 4,30¢
Change in fair value of derivatives, net of taxes — (464) — (464)
Net prior service cost and actuarial losses, nédxas — — (322 (322
Balance at March 29, 2008 $ 3827 $ (464 $ (2,057 $ 1,312

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective April 2, 2006, the first day of the Commyas 2007 fiscal year, the Company adopted SFAS N8(R), “ShareBase!
Payment.” SFAS No. 123(R) requires that the comgiEms cost relating to all shalesed payment transactions be recognized in thadia
statements. That cost is measured based uponahedate fair value of the instruments issued recogh@eer the requisite service period.
Company elected to use the “modified prospectiwethod in adopting SFAS No. 123(R). Accordinglyteathe effective date, compensa
cost is recognized based on the requirements ofSSRA. 123(R) (the vesting of all awards granteénwployees prior to the effective date
SFAS No. 123(R) was accelerated in fiscal 2006tm®ino compensation cost impact after the effeckte). Results for periods prior to fis
2007 have not been restated.

The fair value of each option grant was estimatedhe date of grant using the BlaSkholes pricing model. The Company, with
assistance of an outside valuation firm, estimétedair value of stock option grants made durisgdl 2008 and fiscal 2007.

Prior to its adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the Compaccounted for options and warrants granted tpl@yees using the intrins
value method pursuant to APB No. 25, "AccountingStock Issued to Employees,” under which compémsabst was recognized only if 1
exercise price of grants issued was below thenfiairket value of the Company's common stock at #te df grant. Had compensation cos
these grants been determined based on the faie valuthe grant dates consistent with SFAS No. I28counting for StockBaset
Compensation,” the Company's net income would baes reduced to the following pro forma amounts:

Fiscal Year
Ended
April 1,
2006
Net income, as reporte $ 12,43¢
Plus: stock-based compensation expense includegborted net income, net of tax 23C
Less: stock-based compensation expense determimtksat fair value method, net of tax (1,842
Pro forma net income $ 10,821
Net income per common share, as repol
Basic $ 0.84
Diluted $ 0.7¢
Net income per common share, pro fort
Basic $ 0.7z
Diluted $ 0.64

For purposes of the pro forma disclosures, theneséid fair value of the options and warrants wasrtined to expense over !
service period that generally was the option orargrvesting period.



On April 1, 2006, the Company accelerated the mgstif 523,585 stock options whose exercise priceevbelow its closing sto
price on the date the vesting of the options waelacated. As a result, a charge of approximatéB; fiet of tax, was recorded in fiscal 2(
The accelerated vesting of these stock optionsimteaded to eliminate compensation expense assdcwith these options in future peri
due to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). The impdidche acceleration of vesting is also includethia pro forma table above.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement ofan€inl Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 157 Fdir Value
Measurements,” (“SFAS 157"This statement is effective as of the beginnin§safal 2009. SFAS 157 provides a common fair véliggarch
for companies to follow in determining fair valueeasurements in the preparation of financial statesnand expands disclosure requirerr
relating to how fair value measurements were d@eeEloSFAS 157 clarifies the principal that fairueashould be based on the assumption:
the marketplace would use when pricing an assé#bitity, rather than company specific data. Thenthany does not expect SFAS 15
have a material impact on its results of operatems financial position.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of réiiah Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 159THe Fair Value Option fi
Financial Assets and Liabilities, Including an amh@ent of FASB Statement No. 115,” (“SFAS 159his Statement permits entities to chc
to measure many financial instruments and certéiaratems at fair value that are not currentlyuieeg to be measured at fair value. SFAS
is effective as of the beginning of fiscal 2009eT®ompany does not expect SFAS 159 to have a mlatapact on its results of operations
financial position.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of neiah Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 141(R)Busines
Combinations,” (“SFAS 141(R)") and SFAS No. 16Qctounting and Reporting of Noncontrolling Intesesh Consolidated Financ
Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 51,” (“SFAS"L6lhese new standards will significantly change tharfcial accounting and report
of business combination transactions and noncdimtgofor minority) interests in consolidated findalcstatements.

In comparison to current practice, the most sigaifi changes to business combination accountingupat to SFAS 141(R) inclu
requirements to:

« Recognize, with certain exceptions, 100 percenthef fair values of assets acquired, liabilitiesuassd, and noncontrolli
interests in acquisitions of less than a 100 percentrolling interest when the acquisition congés a change in control of
acquired entity.

» Measure acquirer shares issued in consideratioa fusiness combination at fair value on the adéurisdate.

» Recognize contingent consideration arrangementheit acquisitiondate fair values, with subsequent changes in falue
generally reflected in earnings.

» With certain exceptions, recognize preacquisitmssland gain contingencies at their acquisitioe-kit values.

» Capitalize in-process research and developmeni&PRissets acquired.
» Expense, as incurred, acquisition-related transacosts.
« Capitalize acquisition-related restructuring castly if the criteria in SFAS 146 are met as of foguisition date.

« Recognize changes that result from a business catidn transaction in an acquirerxisting income tax valuation allowan
and tax uncertainty accruals as adjustments taniedax expense.

The premise of SFAS 160 is based on the econontity eoncept of consolidated financial statements.
Under the economic entity concept, all residuainecoic interest holders in an entity have an equitgrest in the consolidated entity, eve
the residual interest is relative to only a portaithe entity (i.e., a residual interest in a sdiasy). Therefore, SFAS 160 requires th
noncontrolling interest in a consolidated subsidiae displayed in the consolidated statement @frfomal position as a separate compone
equity because the noncontrolling interests meettfinition of equity of the consolidated entity.

SFAS 141(R) is required to be adopted concurrenitii SFAS 160 and is effective for business comtiamatransactions for whic
the acquisition date is on or after the beginnifighe first annual reporting period beginning onafter December 15, 2008, which for
Company is fiscal 2010. Early adoption is prohitit€he Company is currently assessing the impatt3FAS 141(R) will have on its rest
of operations and financial position.
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In March 2008, the FASB issuedStatement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFANY. 161, Disclosures about Derivati
Instruments and Hedging Activities, an amendmerffA8B Statement No. 133 (“SFAS 1613FAS 161 applies to all derivative instruma
and related hedged items accounted for under FA$BerBent No. 133, Accounting for Derivatives Instruments and Hed
Activities” (“SFAS 133”). SFAS 161 requires entities to provide greater frarency about (a) how and why an entity uses dara
instruments, (b) how derivative instruments anddeeditems are accounted for under SFAS 133 anekliged interpretations, and (c) F
derivative instruments and related hedged itemectfn entitys financial position, results of operations, andghclow. To meet tho:
objectives, SFAS 161 requires (1) qualitative disafes about objectives for using derivatives hiynary underlying risk exposure (e
interest rat, credit or foreign exchange rate) bBypdpurpose or strategy (fair value hedge, cash th@dge, net investment hedge, and non:
hedges), (2) information about the volume of ddiixaactivity in a flexible format the preparer ieses is the most relevant and practicable
tabular disclosures about balance sheet locatiah gnoss fair value amounts of derivative instrureerihcome statement and ot
comprehensive income (OCI) location and amountgais and losses on derivative instruments by ¢fm®ntract (e.g., interest rate contre
credit contracts or foreign exchange contracts),(@h disclosures about credit-risk-related corgimgeatures in derivative agreements.

SFAS 161 is effective for financial statements ébtor fiscal years or interim periods beginninteafNovember 15, 2008, which
the Company is fiscal 2010. Early application is@iraged, as are comparative disclosures for epeigods, but neither are required.

3. Acquisitions

On March 12, 2008, the Company acquired the asdefsl.D. Corporation, a manufacturer of integrateelaring assemblies ¢
aircraft components for the commercial and defeaes®@space markets, located in Clayton, Georgiapmroximately $3,254. The purch
price allocation is as follows: accounts receivg$#20), inventory ($2,094), other current assg18), property, plant and equipment ($1,6
intangible assets ($1,211), goodwill ($1,389), entrliabilities ($3,257) and longrm liabilities ($250). The products associatedhvthe
acquisition are complementary with products alreaayided by other Company businesses. AID is ithetlin the Plain Bearings segment.

On March 12, 2008, the Company acquired the asfeBEMD, Inc., a machining business of integratezhiing assemblies a
aircraft components for the commercial and defeae®space markets, located in Canton, Georgiadproaimately $2,719. The purchi
price allocation is as follows: accounts receivg¥&18), inventory ($1,275), other current assgi6), property, plant and equipment ($1,3
intangible assets ($565), current liabilities ($p7nd longterm liabilities ($250). The products associatedhwihe acquisition a
complementary with products already provided byeotBompany businesses. BEMD is included in the CGtbgment.

On July 25, 2007, the Company acquired the assefoastal Bearing Services, Inc., for approximatg®y671. Located in Houstc
Texas, CBS manufactures, inspects and refurbisiege Ibearings for the oil and mining industries,vasdl as other general indust
applications with sizes ranging up to 124 inchediameter. The purchase price allocation is a®fadt accounts receivable ($644), inven
($653), other current assets ($86), property, péart equipment ($825), intangible assets ($1,4¢dddwill ($671) and accrued exper
($672). The products associated with the acquisiticee complementary with products already providgather Company businesses. CB
included in the Ball Bearings segment.

On May 22, 2007, the Company acquired the capiteksof Phoenix, a manufacturer of bearings fordteel and mining industries
well as other general industrial applications witire sizes ranging from 100 millimeters to one mdteated in Gloucestershire, England
approximately $4,739. The purchase price allocasaas follows: accounts receivable ($1,369), inegn($1,538), other current assets ($3
property, plant and equipment ($456), intangibleess ($2,774), current liabilities ($1,701) andddarm liabilities ($82). The produc
associated with the acquisition are complementath products already provided by other Company messes. Phoenix is included in
Roller Bearings segment

On September 12, 2006, the Company acquired thiéatapock of All Power, a manufacturer of highéygineered precision pla
roller and ball bearings for the industrial, defenand aerospace industries, for approximately $9,9%he purchase price incluc
approximately $8,753 in cash, a $750 note payaideapproximately $423 in transaction expenses.ptiiehase price allocation is as follo
accounts receivable ($1,969), inventory ($1,382)eocurrent assets ($261), property, plant andpatent ($1,614), intangible assets ($3,6
goodwill ($4,708), current liabilities ($1,508) atwhgterm liabilities ($2,172). The products associatéith the acquisition are complement
with products already provided by other Companyirmsses. All Power, which is located in Santa Fengp, California, is included in t
plain bearings reportable segment. Goodwill assediaith the acquisition is expected to be dedletibr tax purposes.

The results of operations subsequent to the effectaites of the acquisitions are included in tisalts of operations of the Compa
Unaudited pro forma consolidated results of operatiof the Company, based upon aceuisition unaudited historical information prost
for the years ended March 29, 2008 and March 327 28s if the AID, BEMD, CBS, Phoenix and All Poveaquisitions took place on April
2006, are as follows:
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Fiscal Year Ended

March 29, March 31,
2008 2007

Net sales $ 343,24 $ 328,80:

Net income $ 40,79¢ $ 30,69(

Net income per common sha

Basic $ 19C $ 1.4¢

Diluted $ 187 $ 1.44

4, Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The activity in the allowance for doubtful accountsists of the following:
Balance at
Beginning of Balance at

Fiscal Year Ended Year Additions Other* Write-offs  End of Year
March 29, 2008 $ 867 $ 114 $ 37 $ — $ 1,01¢
March 31, 2007 83¢ 18: 39 (199 867
April 1, 2006 62¢ 244 — (39 83¢

*Acquisition transactions (see Note 3).
5. Inventory

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mtatksing the first-in, first-out method, and anmensnarized below:

March 29, March 31,
2008 2007
Raw materials $ 11,56 $ 8,13:
Work in process 38,48¢ 32,451
Finished goods 73,77 62,43:
$ 123,82( $ 103,02:
6. Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment consist of the foilawy
March 29, March 31,
2008 2007
Land $ 8,69¢ $ 8,152
Buildings and improvements 26,241 18,32:
Machinery and equipment 120,27- 109,05¢
155,21° 135,53:
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 81,97« 74,32¢
$ 73,24 $ 61,20¢

7. Restructuring of Operations

In January 2007, the Company began the consolidafidgts tapered bearing manufacturing capacitye Tompany has discontint
manufacturing tapered bearings in its Glasgow, Ket facility and has consolidated the remainingnafacturing into other Compa
manufacturing facilities. This consolidation reedltin a charge of approximately $5,088 in fiscad20Approximately $2,211 of this cha
related to the nowash disposal of fixed assets. The remaining chaff§2,877 includes termination benefits of appneiely $1,153, movir
costs of approximately $755, rent of approxima®8p8 and cleanup and turnover costs of approxim&250. As of March 31, 2007, $1,¢
had been paid and $893 had been accrued. Thisceaheas paid in fiscal 2008.

On December 18, 2006, the Company completed tla fihase of its Nice consolidation plan with thée saf its facility located i
Kulpsville, Pennsylvania. The asset was sold fopragimately $3,507 after expenses and the Compaalized a gain on the sale



approximately $807 before taxes.
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8. Goodwill and Amortizable Intangible Assets
Goodwill

During fiscal 2008, goodwill increased $2,190 wiltle acquisitions of CBS $671 and AID $1,292 in #&ddito a $227 adjustme
related to the fiscal 2007 acquisition of All PowBwuring fiscal 2007, goodwill increased $4,481cwnnection with the acquisition of ,
Power.

Goodwill balances, by segment, consist of the foithy:

March 29, March 31,
2008 2007
Roller $ 15,67 $ 15,67
Plain 15,471 13,95¢
Ball 671 —
$ 31,82. $ 29,63!
I ntangible Assets
March 29, 2008 March 31, 2007
Weighted Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Average Carrying Carrying
Useful Lives ~ Amount  Amortization Amount  Amortization
Product approvals 15 $ 6,261 $ 604 $ 3,08: $ 24C
Customer relationships and lists 10 4,81¢ 1,382 2,704 987
Trade names 11 1,391 44¢€ 1,19¢ 31¢€
Distributor agreements 5 722 722 722 61z
Patents and trademarks 13 812 29 — —
Other 5 98: 40C 41¢ 174
Total $ 14,987 $ 3,58: $ 8,127 $ 2,32¢

Amortization expense for definite-lived intangibdssets during fiscal year 2008, 2007, &t0)6 was $1,254, $713 and $¢
respectively. Estimated amortization expense feffitte succeeding fiscal years and thereafter foliswvs:

2009 $ 1,34¢

2010 98¢

2011 98¢

2012 98¢

2013 98¢

2014 and thereafter 6,102
9. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

The significant components of accrued expenseotrat current liabilities are as follows:

March 29, March 31,
2008 2007
Employee compensation and related benefits $ 559 $ 4,29(
Plant consolidation costs — 893
Taxes 2,19¢ 3,14(
Insurance 1,13¢ 1,10(C
Other 4,56 2,42¢

$ 13,48¢ $ 11,85
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10. Debt

On August 15, 2005, the Company entered into & FAfhended and Restated Credit Agreement (the "AmerZfedit Agreement'
among RBCA, the other Credit Parties signatorydteerGeneral Electric Capital Corporation, a Del@neorporation, for itself, as lender,
as agent for the lenders, concurrently with theialg of the Company's initial public offering. Puasit to the Amended Credit Agreement,
Company increased its term loan borrowings by apprately $40,000 from $110,000 under the term lpantion of the Amended Cre
Agreement. The Amended Credit Agreement providé$%000 revolving credit agreement (the "AmendeddReng Credit Facility”) and
$150,000 term loan (the "Amended Term Loan"). Thimgipal amount of the Amended Term Loan was torbpaid in twentyfive
(25) consecutive quarterly installments commendyegember 31, 2005. Each loan was secured by adjaimst substantially all of the as:
of the Company and subjected the Company to stdraffirmative and negative covenants, as well maricial leverage tests.

On June 26, 2006, RBCA terminated the Amended Creglieement, and the related credit, security amdllary agreements, a
entered into a credit agreement (the “KeyBank Gradreement”)and related security and guaranty agreements witfaio banks, KeyBal
National Association, as Administrative Agent, ahB. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. as-Lead Arrangers and Joint Lead Book Runners.
KeyBank Credit Agreement provides RBCA, as borroweith a $150,000 fiverear senior secured revolving credit facility whican b
increased by up to $75,000, in increments of $25,08der certain circumstances and subject toinectanditions (including the receipt frc
one or more lenders of the additional commitmeaithounts outstanding under the KeyBank Credit Agreetrgenerally bear interest at
prime rate, or LIBOR plus a specified margin, depieg on the type of borrowing being made. The aablie margin is based on
Company’s consolidated ratio of net debt to adpi&EBITDA from time to time. Currently, the Compasyhargin is 0.0% for prime rate lo:
and 0.625% for LIBOR rate loans. Amounts outstagdinder the KeyBank Credit Agreement are due agdlya on the expiration date of
credit agreement (June 24, 2011). The Company leah ® prepay some or all of the outstanding bagainom time to time without penal
The KeyBank Credit Agreement requires the Companydmply with various covenants. As of March 29020the Company was
compliance with all such covenants. The KeyBankd@ré&greement allows the Company to, among othémgd)y make distributions
shareholders, repurchase its stock, incur othet debens, or acquire or dispose of assets pravidi@t the Company complies with cer
requirements and limitations of the credit agreem&he Companys obligations under the KeyBank Credit Agreemeatsacured by a pled
of substantially all of the Company’s and RBCA'sets and a guaranty by the Company of RBCA's otitiga.

On June 26, 2006, the Company borrowed approxim&@#9,000 under the KeyBank Credit Agreement arad ssich funds to (i) p
fees and expenses associated with the KeyBank tCAggleement and (ii) repay the approximately $78,@@lance outstanding under
Amended Credit Agreement. As of March 29, 2008,,8d0 was outstanding under the KeyBank Credit Agesg. The Company recorde
non-cash preéax charge of approximately $3,576 in fiscal 200Wtite off deferred debt issuance costs associatédthe early termination
the Amended Credit AgreementApproximately $21,638 of the KeyBank Credit Agreeres being utilized to provide letters of credi
secure RBCA's obligations relating to certain Inttias Development Revenue Bonds (the “IRB’sid insurance programs. As of March
2008, RBCA had the ability to borrow up to an aidditl $87,362 under the KeyBank Credit Agreement.

On January 8, 2008, the Company entered into aneisit rate swap agreement with a total notionalevaf $30,000 to hedge a port
of its variable rate debt. Under the terms of tgeeament, the Company pays interest at a fixed(Ba62#%) and receives interest at vari
rates. The maturity date of the interest swap reR4, 2011. The fair value of this swap at Maréh 2008 was a liability of $752 and v
included in other current liabilities. This instrent is designated and qualifies as a cash flow éiefigcordingly, the gain or loss on both
hedging instrument and the hedged item attributtbtee hedged risk are recognized in other congrsifie income.

On September 10, 2007, the Company and RBCA enieteén amendment of the KeyBank Credit Agreemiatsuant to the tert
of the amendment, the commitment fees payable uhéeKeyBank Credit Agreement were decreased fraange of 10 to 27.5 basis poil
based on the Comparsyleverage ratio (as defined under the KeyBank iCrsgreement) to a range of 7.5 to 20 basis poiRtgther, th
margin payable under the KeyBank Credit Agreementdvolving loans that are base rate loans, bagettie Company leverage ratio, w
decreased from a range of 0 to 75 basis pointsrémge of 0 to 25 basis points. The margin payahfier the KeyBank Credit Agreement
revolving loans that are fixed rate loans, basethenCompanys leverage ratio (as defined under the agreemeas)decreased from a rang
62.5 to 165 basis points to a range of 37.5 toldddis points. Also, the covenant requiring the Camypto limit capital expenditures (exclud
acquisitions) in any fiscal year to an amount ootxceed $20,000 was amended to increase thetdirait amount not to exceed $30,000.

On December 8, 2003, Schaublin entered into a beadit facility (the "Swiss Credit Facility") wit@redit Suisse providing for 10,0
Swiss francs, or approximately $10,047, of terrmldéne "Swiss Term Loan") and up to 2,000 Swissidsa or approximately $2,009,
revolving credit loans and letters of credit (tf8wiss Revolving Credit Facility"). RBCA pledged 8% of the present and future share ca
of Schaublin S.A. (1,366 shares) against thisitgciDn November 8, 2004, Schaublin amended thes$@redit Facility to increase the Sv
Revolving Credit Facility to 4,000 Swiss francs,amproximately $4,019. Borrowings under the Swissd@ Facility bear interest at a float
rate of LIBOR plus 2.25%. As of March 29, 2008 réhesere no borrowings outstanding under the SwigsliCFacility.
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During fiscal 1995, the Company entered into a lagreement with the South Carolina Jobs EconomieDement Authority ("S
JEDA") which provided for borrowings up to $10,7@00der two industrial development revenue bondsi€Sd994 A and B) and, during fis
1999, the Company entered into an additional lgaeement with the SC JEDA which provided for borirmys up to $3,000 under an indus
development revenue bond (Series 1998). The irteats is variable and based on thed2Q- U.S. Treasury Bill rate. Additionally, duri
fiscal 2000, the Company entered into a loan ages¢mith the California Infrastructure and Econombievelopment Bank which provided
borrowings up to $4,800 under an industrial develept revenue bond (Series 1999) (collectively, '@3h The interest rate on the Bond
variable and based on the Bond Market Associati@ay” Municipal Swap Index. The proceeds from the ddoare restricted for workil
capital requirements and capital expenditure puapo®n September 4, 2007, the Company voluntadlg pff the Series 1998 bonds,
principal of which was $1,155. The Series 1994 A &bonds are secured by an irrevocable dipagtletter of credit issued by one of
Company's lenders. The letter of credit is equah&aggregate principal amount of the bonds phudass than fortfive days' interest therec
calculated at 12% per annum ($11,326 at March 2082 The Series 1999 bonds are likewise securegnbiyrevocable diregtay letter ¢
credit issued by one of the Company's lenders. Cbhmpany's obligation to its lenders is secured yansto the provisions of the Cre
Facility and is equal to the aggregate principabant of the bonds plus not less than fifty day&rast thereon, calculated at 12% per ar
($4,879 at March 29, 2008).

The balances payable under all borrowing faciliies as follows:

March 29, March 31,
2008 2007

KeyBank Credit Agreement
Five-year senior secured revolving credit facilaymounts outstanding bear interest at the pringe r

or LIBOR, plus a specified margin, depending ontgipe of borrowing being made (prime rate

6.00% at March 29, 2008 and LIBOR 3.75% and 6.06%ach 29, 2008 and March 31, 2007,

respectively) $ 41,000 $ 42,00(
Note Payable payable through September 2009 (weighted averdgeest rate was 6.30% and 6.5

at March 29, 2008 and March 31, 2007, respectively) 1,25( 75C
Industrial Development Revenue Bonds
Series 1994 A, due in annual installments of $18§inming September 1, 2006, graduating to $8

September 1, 2014, with final payment due on Selpéerh, 2017; bears interest at a variable rai

(weighted average interest rate was 5.20% and 5fé6%e fiscal years ended March 29, 2008

March 31, 2007, respectively), payable monthly tigto September 2017 7,70C 7,70C
Series 1994 B, bears interest at a variable radégyfmed average interest rate was 5.20% and 5.7¢

for the fiscal years ended March 29, 2008 and M&dcH2007, respectively), payable monthly

through December 2017 3,00( 3,00(
Series 1998, bears interest at variable rates btegigaverage interest rate was 4.39% for the fisce
year ended March 31, 2007) — 1,15¢

Series 1999, bearing interest at variable rateggfMed average interest rate was 3.81% and 4.0%'
the fiscal years ended March 29, 2008 and Marct23Q7, respectively), payable monthly throu

April 2024 4,80( 4,80(
Total Debt 57,75( 59,40¢
Less: Current Portion 75C 75C
Long-Term Debt $ 57,00 $ 58,65!

The current portion of longerm debt as of March 29, 2008 and March 31, 28&5hectively, includes a $750 note payable reltad
the All Power acquisition.

Maturities of debt during each of the followingditiscal years are as follows:

2009 $ 75C
2010 1,31(
2011 54C
2012 41,66(
2013 66C
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11. Obligations Under Capital Leases

Obligations under capital leases are included lreotiabilities. Machinery and equipment additiamsler capital leases amounte:
$440 and $246 in fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectivieig average imputed rate of interest on captdds at each year end was 3.8%, 3.9¢
4.7% in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Included in property, plant and equipment are tleWing assets held under capital leases:

March 29, March 31,
2008 2007
Machinery and equipment $ 4,271 $ 4,07
Accumulated depreciation (3,31¢) (3,28¢)
$ 95t $ 78¢
Future minimum lease payments under capital leasigkarch 29, 2008 are as follows:
2009 $ 231
2010 23C
2011 165
2012 29
Total minimum lease payments 652
Less: amount representing interest 44
Present value of net minimum lease payments 60¢
Less: current maturities 211
Non-current capital lease obligations $ 39¢
12. Other Non-Current Liabilities
The significant components of other non-curreriiilies consist of:
March 29, March 31,
2008 2007
Non-current pension liability $ 794 % 1,11:
Other postretirement benefits 2,61¢ 2,467
Non-current income tax liability 4,231 —
Other 3,407 2,927
$ 11,04¢  $ 6,507

13. Pension Plans

At March 29, 2008, the Company has one consolidatectontributory defined benefit pension plan cowguunion employees in
Heim division plant in Fairfield, Connecticut artd Bremen subsidiary plant in Plymouth, Indiana.

Effective March 31, 2007, the pension plan for Tlyson subsidiary in Glasgow, Kentucky was curtaifethe terms of the Shutdo
Agreement between Tyson Bearings Company, Inctlmdnited Steelworkers of America (AFL-CIO) Lo@d6101 dated February 6, 20
No further benefits will accrue against this plam ao new employees will become eligible for paptition in the plan. However, the Comp
will continue to maintain the plan. The impact aftailment was $202, which is included in the neiqdic benefit cost in fiscal 2007.

Effective May 1, 2006, the pension plan for theéNsubsidiary in Kulpsville, Pennsylvania was fromeaccordance with the terms
the Shutdown Agreement between RBC Nice Bearings,dnd the United Steelworkers of America (AFL-Cl®@cal 681612 dated Februa
15, 2006. No further benefits will accrue agaihss plan and no new employees will become eligibteparticipation in the plan. However,
Company will continue to maintain the plan. The &opof curtailment was $97, which is included ie tiet periodic benefit cost in fis
2007.

As of March 29, 2008, plan assets are comprisadgrily of cash and shoterm investments. The plan provides benefits aks



amounts based on a combination of an employee'aradjgears of service. The Company uses a Dece3ibmeasurement date for its plan.
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On March 31, 2007, the Company adopted the redognénd disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158, “HEogprs’ Accounting fo
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretiremean$! SFAS No. 158 required the Company to recognizeftingled status (i.e., t
difference between the Compasyfair value of plan assets and the projected liteoklfigations) of its defined benefit pension dain the
March 31, 2007 Consolidated Balance Sheet with reesponding adjustment to accumulated other congmstie income, net of tax. T
adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive ircainadoption represents the net unrecognizedrédti@sses, unrecognized prior sen
costs and unrecognized transition obligation remgirfrom the initial adoption of SFAS No. 87 and A3-No. 106, all of which we
previously netted against the plans’ funded statuke Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet in accordance witprilndsions of SFAS Ni
87 and SFAS No. 106. These amounts will be subsglyumcognized as net periodic benefit cost inoadance with the Comparsyhistorica
accounting policy for amortizing these amounts.

The following tables set forth the funded statustef Company's defined benefit pension plans amdathount recognized in 1
balance sheet at March 29, 2008 and March 31, 2007:

March 29, March 31,
2008 2007
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 18,11 $ 18,02«
Service cost 27C 484
Interest cost 1,18¢ 1,03¢
Actuarial (gain) loss 2,01z (16€)
Benefits paid (1,325) (1,269
Benefit obligation, at measurement date $ 20,25: $ 18,11:
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 16,997 $ 14,267
Actual return on plan assets 2,97 2,167
Employer contributions 2,09¢ 1,827
Benefits paid (1,32%) (1,269
Fair value of plan assets $ 20,74 $ 16,997
Reconciliation of funded status:
Over (under) funded status at measurement date $ 49z $ (1,119
Contributions in fourth quarter — 36C
Over (under) funded status, end of year $ 49z $ (754)
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balancetshee
Non-current assets $ 1,287 $ 35¢
Non-current liability (795) (1,119
Net asset (liability) recognized $ 49z % (754)
Amounts recognized in accumulated other compreklierisss:
Prior service cost $ 361 $ 2,157
Net actuarial loss 2,21¢ 85
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $ 258 $ 2,24;
Amounts included in accumulated other comprehensis® expected to be
recognized as components of net periodic beneditico2009:
$
Prior service cost 40
Net actuarial loss 64
Total $ 104

Benefits under the union plans are not a functibaroployees' salaries; thus, the accumulated heolgifigation equals the projec
benefit obligation.
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The following table sets forth net periodic benebt of the Company's plans for the three fiseary in the period ended March
2008:

Fiscal Year Ended

March 29, March 31, April 1,
2008 2007 2006
Components of net periodic benefit cost:

Service cost $ 27C $ 484 % 57t
Interest cost 1,18¢ 1,03¢ 984
Expected return on plan assets (1,479 (1,309 (1,130
Amortization of prior service cost 8 28 39
Amortization of losses 162 16€ 20¢
Additional amount recognized due to curtailment — 20¢ _
Net periodic benefit cost $ 151 $ 701 $ 677

The assumptions used in determining the net perioginefit cost information are as follows:

FY 2008 FY 2007 FY 2006
Discount rate 6.0(% 5.7t% 5.9(%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.5(% 9.0(% 9.0(%

The discount rate used in determining the fundatlistas of March 29, 2008 and March 31, 2007 w2k%.and 6.00%, respectively.

In developing the overall expected lotggm return on plan assets assumption, a buildiagkbapproach was used in which rate
return in excess of inflation were considered saedy for equity securities and debt securitiese Bxcess returns were weighted by
representative target allocation and added alonly an appropriate rate of inflation to develop twerall expected longerm return on ple
assets assumption.

The Company's investment program objective is fuieae a rate of return on plan assets which wilidfuhe plan liabilities ar
provide for required benefits while avoiding undegosure to risk to the plan and increases in imdéquirements. The Company's ta
allocation of plan assets was 100 percent sham-tevestments as of March 29, 2008 and 100% eauityf March 31, 2007.

The following benefit payments, which reflect fudgervice as appropriate, are expected to be Paalbenefit payments are base!
the same assumptions used to measure the Compangft obligation at the end of fiscal 2008.

2009 $ 1,272
2010 1,351
2011 1,382
2012 1,442
2013 1,452
2014-2018 8,00¢

The Companys foreign operation, Schaublin, sponsors a peryaim for its approximately 160 employees in confante with Swis
pension law. The plan is funded with a reputableR $ating AA-) Swiss insurer. Through the insurance contractChpany has effective
transferred all investment and mortality risk te fhsurance company, which guarantees the federalydated annual rate of return anc
conversion rate at retirement. As a result, tha plas no unfunded liability; the interest costxaatly offset by actual return. Thus, the
periodic cost is equal to the amount of annual jwempaid by the Company. For fiscal years 2008,7286d 2006, the Company m:
contribution and premium payments equal to $5306%hd $445, respectively.

The Company also has a defined contribution plaseursection 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Codeafbof its employees n
covered by a collective bargaining agreement. Tlaa 5 funded by eligible participants through eaygle contributions and by Compi
contributions which currently equal 30% of thefi886 of eligible employee compensation. Employerttabutions under this plan amounte:
$595, $328 and $284 in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2f¥pectively.
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Effective September 1, 1996, the Company adoptedrequalified Supplemental Executive Retirement PI&®ERP") for a sele
group of highly compensated management employesigrdged by the Board of Directors of the Compahlye SERP allows eligib
employees to elect to defer, until termination lo¢it employment, the receipt of up to 25% of thairrent salary. The Company ma
contributions equal to the lesser of 50% of theettals, or 3.5% of the employees' annual salarychwhest in full after three years of sen
following the effective date of the SERP. Emplogentributions under this plan amounted to $175A4$d3d $86 in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2(
respectively.

14. Postretirement Health Care and Life Insurance Benefs

The Company, for the benefit of employees at itarhl@Vest Trenton and Bremen facilities, sponsonstrdoutory defined bene
health care plans that provide postretirement naddicd life insurance benefits to union employeble Wave attained certain age and/or se
requirements while employed by the Company. Thapkre unfunded and costs are paid as incurredreBesment benefit obligations ¢
included in “Accrued expenses and other currebilitees” and "Other non-current liabilities” ineéhConsolidated Balance Sheet.

The postretirement medical and life insurance hndr the Tyson subsidiary in Glasgow, Kentuckgrescurtailed in the terms of 1
Shutdown Agreement between Tyson Bearing Compamy, and the United Steelworkers of America (AFL-ClObcal 746101 date:
February 6, 2007. The impact of curtailment was3$f4which was included in net periodic benefittd@scome) for fiscal 2007.

Effective May 1, 2006, the postretirement medica &fe insurance benefits for the Nice subsidierKulpsville, Pennsylvania we
curtailed in the terms of the Shutdown Agreemeivben RBC Nice Bearings, Inc. and the United Stedters of America (AFLEIO) Loca
6816412 dated February 15, 2006. Life insurance ben#dit:iinated July 31, 2006. Postretirement mediealefits were available until t
contract expired on January 31, 2008. The impacudgilment was $(131), which was included in petiodic benefit cost (income) for fis:
2007.

On December 8, 2003, the Medicare Prescription Dmygrovement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the t’Aaevas signed into lav
The Company's prescription drug benefit for alltpetirement plans is capped at a set amount eacithmevhich is paid to the retirees so t
can obtain prescription drug coverage. As suchCivmpany is not seffisured for prescription drugs and the Act hasmpadct on the record
obligation.

The impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 158 to ofhestretirement benefit plans increased currebtlii@s by $227, increased non-
current liabilities by $332 and increased the losaccumulated other comprehensive loss by $34%freeferred tax provision of $214.

The following table set forth the funded statusted Companys postretirement benefit plans, the amount receghia the balant
sheet at March 29, 2008 and March 31, 2007:

March 29, March 31,
2008 2007
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 2,69 $ 3,45¢
Service cost 6C 112
Interest cost 16¢ 182
Actuarial (gain) loss 191 (1898
Benefits paid (219 (211
Curtailment (gain) loss — (65€)
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 2,891 $ 2,69/
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ — 3 —
Company contributions 21¢ 211
Benefits paid (219) (211)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ — % _
Funded status, end of year $ (2,89) $ (2,699
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balancetshee
Non-current liability $ (2,616 $ (2,467

Current liability (275) (227)




Net liability recognized $ (2,89) $ (2,699
Amounts recognized in accumulated other compreker{giain) loss:

Prior service credit $ (13¢) $ (20)
Net actuarial (gain) loss (603) 57¢€
Accumulated other comprehensive (gain) loss $ (741) $ 55¢€

Amounts included in accumulated other comprehengja) loss expected to
recognized as components of net periodic beneditico2009:

Prior service cost $ 41
Net actuarial loss 26
Total $ 67
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Components of net periodic benefit cost:

Service cost

Interest cost

Prior service cost amortization
Amount of loss recognized
Curtailment

Net periodic benefit cost (incom

Fiscal Year Ended

March 29, March 31, April 1,
2008 2007 2006

$ 60 $ 11z $ 141

16k 182 19¢

(30) (45) (48¢€)

38 29 117

— (568) —

$ 23§ (290) $ (30

The Company uses a March 31 measurement dates folais.

The plans contractually limit the benefit to bepded for certain groups of current and futurerests. As a result, there is no he
care trend associated with these groups. The discate used in determining the accumulated pasneént benefit obligation was 6.50%
March 29, 2008 and 6.00% at March 31, 2007. Theodist rate used in determining the net periodicelienost was 6.00% for fiscal 20t
6.25% for fiscal 2007 and 5.90% for fiscal 2006eTRP2000 Combined Mortality Table was used to deternttirgepostretirement net perio
benefit costs in fiscal 2008; the 1983 Group Amniiortality table was used to determine the pos&etent net periodic benefit costs in fis

2007 and 2006.

The following benefit payments, which reflect fuduservice as appropriate, are expected to be paabenefit payments are base!

the same assumptions used to measure the Compangft obligation at the end of fiscal 2008:

15.

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014-2018

Income Taxes

Income before income taxes for the Company's damastl foreign operations is as follows:

Domestic
Foreign

$ 27k
282
23¢
22¢
224
1,217
Fiscal Year Ended
March 29, March 31, April 1,
2008 2007 2006
$ 51,66( $ 37,21 $ 15,95
8,21¢ 6,85¢ 3,12(
$ 59,87¢ $ 44,067 $ 19,07
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The provision for (benefit from) income taxes caisiof the following:

Fiscal Year Ended

March 29, March 31, April 1,
2008 2007 2006
Current:
Federal $ 6,781 $ 3,14C $ 1,61¢
State 1,42¢ 2,07¢ 56€
Foreign 1,26¢ 1,087 497
9,47¢ 6,30¢ 2,67¢
Deferred:
Federal 10,057 9,50¢ 3,69¢
State 15C (224) 262
10,207 9,28 3,95¢
Total $ 19,68 $ 15,58¢ $ 6,63¢

A reconciliation of income taxes computed usingth8. federal statutory rate to that reflectedperations follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

March 29, March 31, April 1,
2008 2007 2006
Income taxes using U.S. federal statutory rate $ 20,95¢ $ 15,42 $ 6,67¢
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 887 1,101 66(
Domestic production activities deduction (907) — —
Foreign rate differential (1,699 (1,312 (595)
Other 44€ 37¢ (207)
$ 19,68 $ 15,58¢ $ 6,63¢
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) consist ef fibllowing:
March 29, March 31,
2008 2007
Deferred tax assets (liabilities):
Postretirement benefits $ 1,106 $ 74C
Employee compensation accruals 1,112 1,491
Net operating losses 1,24 62€
Inventory 3,83¢ 4,83¢
Stock compensation 654 298
Pension (18¢) 502
Other 903 1,19¢
Valuation allowance 197 277
Total deferred tax assets 8,867 9,96¢
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment (5,500 (5,497
Amortization of intangibles (3,869 (3,83))
Total deferred tax liabilities (9,364) (9,329
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) $ (497) $ 63€

A valuation allowance has been recorded on cedigte net operating losses as it is more likely that that these losses will not

utilized.

The Company has determined that its undistributedign earnings of approximately $28,900 at Mar@h 2008 will be reanveste!
indefinitely based upon the need for cash in iteifn operations, potential foreign acquisitiond #me Company's inability to remit cash b



to the United States under its current foreign dedigations. Schaublin has a tax holiday that jztes a 75% reduction of the statutory
relating to its Swiss facility. This resulted irtax benefit of approximately $1,000 and $1,200isedl 2008 and fiscal 2007, respectively.
tax holiday expires in December 2009.

As the Company undistributed earnings in foreign subsidiaries @onsidered to be reinvested indefinitely, no ion for U.S
federal and state income taxes has been providpdn Wepatriation of those earnings, in the formdividends or otherwise, the Compi
would be subject to both U.S. income taxes (sulifeetn adjustment of foreign tax credits) and watkling taxes payable to various fore
countries. Determination of the amount of unrecpgdideferred U.S. income tax liability is not preable due to the complexities associ
with its hypothetical calculation.
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At March 29, 2008, the Company has state net opegrédsses in different jurisdictions at varying @amts up to $13,500, whi
expire at various dates through 2026. The Compday'seturns are subject to review and examinatiprvarious taxing authorities, whi
could result in changes to accrued tax estimates.

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 onilApr2007. As a result, the Company recognizedharease in the liability fc
unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $230 andeduction to the April 1, 2007 balance of regdirearnings. The total amount
unrecognized tax benefits as of April 1, 2007, udahg the cumulative effect of the adoption of HRB, is $3,210, substantially all of wh
represents liabilities that, if recognized, wouttpiact the effective tax rate.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.Slefal jurisdiction, and various states and forejgrisdictions. With fey
exceptions, the Company is no longer subject te siaforeign income tax examinations by tax autlesr for years ending before March
2002. The Company is no longer subject to U.S.riddax examination by the Internal Revenue Serficeyears ending before March
2004.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amooftinrecognized tax benefits are as follows:

Balance, April 1, 2007 $ 3,21(
Increases for tax positions taken during the ctipeniod 66€
Balance, March 29, 2008 $ 3,87¢

Included in the balance at March 29, 2008, are3d@ unrecognized tax benefits that would affeetannual effective tax rate.

The Company recognizes the interest and penaltigsied related to unrecognized tax benefits inmedax expense. The Comp.
had approximately $352 of accrued interest andlpesat March 29, 2008.

The Company does not believe that it is reasonpb$sible that the amount of unrecognized tax benefil significantly decreas
over the next twelve months.

16. Stockholders' Equity

Prior to the initial public offering of common slearin August 2005, the Company had three classeapifal stock outstandir
Class B preferred stock, Class A common stock ala$s® common stock. Prior to the consummationhef ihitial public offering, th
Company effectuated a series of transactions ieraiml among other things, simplify its capitalusture. The Compang’simplified capite
structure has two classes of authorized capitalksfoommon stock and preferred stock), of whichyosthares of common stock remai
outstanding after the Compasyinitial public offering. The recapitalization frsaction involved a number of steps that were afége
contemporaneously with the consummation of the Gomjs initial public offering. These steps werga@ws:

Sock Split. The Company amended its certificate of incorporatmeffect a 5-fo2 stock split of its common stock. All share and
share information in the consolidated financiatesteents has been retroactively restated to rethecstock split for all years presented.

Conversion of ClassB Preferred Sock. Immediately prior to the consummation of the retajation, all outstanding shares
Class B preferred stock were converted in accomlavith their terms into 1,846,396 (on a post stepkt basis) shares of Class A comr
stock, shares of Class C preferred stock and sldu@kss D preferred stock. All shares of Clasan@ Class D preferred stock were redee
with cash or common stock as described below.

Redemption of Class C Preferred Sock. Immediately after the conversion of the Class Bigred stock, the Company used proc:
from its initial public offering and the refinangjrof its then existing credit facility to redeenh @litstanding Class C preferred stock, inclu
any accrued and unpaid dividends, for an aggregdiemption price determined in accordance witlpliesoffering certificate of incorporatio
The aggregate redemption price of the Class C pesfestock was equal to $30,600.

Repurchase of Class D Preferred Stock. Immediately after the conversion of the Class Hered stock, the Company repurchase
of the outstanding Class D preferred stock for ggregate repurchase price equal to $8.0 millionapkey as follows: $4.0 million of tl
repurchase price paid in cash using proceeds fhamnitial public offering and the refinancing @$ iSenior Credit Facility, and $4.0 milli
paid in shares of its Class A common stock basetth@imnitial public offering price of $14.50 perask (before giving effect to the underwrit
discount).
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A summary of the status of the Companpteferred stock outstanding as of March 29, 20G8¢ch 31, 2007, April 1, 2006 and A
2, 2005 and changes during the year ended Ap2i0Q6 is presented below.

Class B Class C Class D
Balance at April 2, 2005 240,00( — —
Conversion of Class B preferred stock (240,000 306,29¢ 240,00(
Redemption of Class C preferred stock — (306,299 —
Redemption of Class D preferred stock — — (240,000
Balance at April 1, 2006, March 31, 2007 and M&8h
2008 — — —

Reclassification of ClassA Common Stock and ClassB Common Stock. Immediately after the transactions described abtive
Company amended and restated its certificate afrpuration to provide for, among other things, autted capital stock of 60.0 million sha
of common stock and 10.0 million shares of preférséock after giving effect to the 5-for-2 stocKitspAs a result, all of the Compary’
Class A common stock and Class B common stocku@iet shares of Class A common stock issued upamersion of the Class B prefer
stock and repurchase of the Class D preferred stoete reclassified as common stock, on a one-fiertmasis.

Sock Options and Warrants. Following the reclassification of the Compasighares, all outstanding options and warrantsitch@as
the Company’s Class A common stock and Class B aamstock became exercisable into shares of the @oygnewly created comm
stock in accordance with the terms of our stockoopplans and stock option and warrant agreemekgsof March 29, 2008, there wt
1,326,577 outstanding options, 714,308 of whichenetercisable. There are no outstanding warrants.

As part of its preparation for the initial publiffering, the Company reassessed the value ofés @lass A Common Stock given
significant improvement in the Compasyoperating performance during the fiscal year drfsaril 2, 2005. The retrospective review indice
that the fair value of the then Class A Common Eteas in excess of the option exercise price ($p€0share) at the various grant dates.
result, deferred compensation of approximately $#8S recorded for the intrinsic value of the stffatsed on the 2,500 options and 179
options granted during fiscal 2006 and 2005, rebpeyg), which was amortized over the vesting péridpproximately $365 and $420 v
recorded as compensation expense in fiscal 200@@Dl respectively.

Stock Option Plans
1998 Stock Option Plan

Effective February 18, 1998, the Company adoptedRBC Bearings Incorporated (f/k/a Roller Bearingldihg Company, Inc
1998 Stock Option Plan. The terms of the 1998 opilan provide for the grant of options to purchapeo 8,413,900 shares of common s
to officers and employees of, and consultants (igiclg members of the board of directors) to, then@any and its subsidiaries. Opti
granted may be either incentive stock options (uis#etion 422 of the Internal Revenue Code) or quaalified stock options. The 1998 opt
plan, which expires on December 31, 2008, is tgdeerned by the Comparsyboard of directors or a committee to which thartdalelegate
its responsibilities. As of March 29, 2008, therergv outstanding options to purchase 3,275 sharesrmfmon stock granted under the 1
option plan, all of which were exercisable. As afghist 15, 2005, the 1998 Stock Option Plan wasfrand no additional stock options
be awarded pursuant to the plan.

2001 Stock Option Plan

The RBC Bearings Incorporated (f/k/a Roller Beartglding Company, Inc.) 2001 Stock Option Plan wedepted in fiscal 2002 a
amended and restated on October 24, 2003. The tdrthe 2001 option plan provide for the grant pfions to purchase up to 1,008,553 st
of common stock to officers and employees of, andsaltants (including members of the board of dex) to, the Company and
subsidiaries selected by the CEO to participatthéplan. Options granted may be either incentteeksoptions (under Section 422 of
Internal Revenue Code) or non-qualified stock optioThe 2001 option plan, which expires in July20% to be governed the Company’
board of directors or a committee to which the Hoaifr directors delegates its responsibilities. Adviarch 29, 2008, there were outstanc
options to purchase 107,300 shares of common sp@rked under the 2001 option plan, all of whichremexercisable. As of August 15, 2C
the 2001 Stock Option Plan was frozen and no amfditistock options will be awarded pursuant topia.
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2005 Long-Term I ncentive Plan

The Company adopted the 2005 Lohermn Incentive Plan effective upon the completibiitinitial public offering in August 200
The plan provides for grants of stock options, Istappreciation rights, restricted stock and perfamoe awards. Directors, officers and o
employees and persons who engage in services doCtémpany are eligible for grants under the pldre purpose of the plan is to prov
these individuals with incentives to maximize stoakler value and otherwise contribute to the Comgfmauccess and to enable the Com
to attract, retain and reward the best availabtegyes for positions of responsibility.

1,139,170 shares of common stock were authorizets$oance under the plan, subject to adjustmetiterevent of a reorganizati
stock split, merger or similar change in the Conyparcorporate structure or in the outstanding shafesommon stock. Of this amou
683,502 options were awarded to the Company’s CEBeatime of the Company’initial public offering in August 2005 at the effing price
of $14.50 per share and the remainder was reséoveplants to the Company’s employees (other thenrGompanys CEO) at the discretion
the Company’s compensation committee. An amendrteiricrease the number of shares available foraissel under the 2005 Lorigerr
Incentive Plan from 1,139,170 to 1,639,170 was @yga by shareholder vote in September 2006. A éarimendment to increase the nur
of shares available for issuance under the 200%{J@m Incentive Plan from 1,639,170 to 2,239,170 apgroved by shareholder vote
September 2007. The Company may grant sharestatted stock to its employees and directors infthiare under the plan. The Compasy’
compensation committee will administer the plane Tompany’s board of directors also ttas authority to administer the plan and to tak
actions that the compensation committee is otheraighorized to take under the plan. The termscanditions of each award made unde:
plan, including vesting requirements, is set fahsistent with the plan in a written agreemenhtie grantee.

Sock Options. Under the 2005 Long-erm Incentive Plan, the compensation committeth@board may approve the award of gr
of incentive stock options and other ngualified stock options. The compensation commitis® has the authority to approve the gra
options that will become fully vested and exercisatutomatically upon a change in control. The cengation committee may not, howe
approve an award to any one person in any caleyetar options to purchase common stock equal to rtiene 10% of the total number
shares authorized under the plan (other than ftitieliaward to the Company’CEO discussed above), and it may not approvenandao
incentive options first exercisable in any calengizar whose underlying shares have a fair marleewgreater than $100,000 determined a
time of grant. The compensation committee will awerthe exercise price and term of any optionsrdiscretion; however, the exercise p
may not be less than 100% of the fair market vafue share of common stock on the date of grarthdrcase of any incentive stock option,
option must be exercised within 10 years of the ddtgrant. The exercise price of an incentive @ptwarded to a person who owns s
constituting more than 10% of our voting power mmept be less than 110% of such fair market valueswuch date and the option must
exercised within five years of the date of grardg. March 29, 2008, there were outstanding opttonsurchase 1,216,002 shares of com
stock granted under the 2005 plan, 603,733 of whiefe exercisable.

Restricted Stock. Under the 2005 Longderm Incentive Plan, the compensation committee approve the award of restricted st
subject to the conditions and restrictions, andtii@ duration that it determines in its discretids. of March 29, 2008, there were 107,
shares of restricted stock outstanding.

Sock Appreciation Rights. The compensation committee may approve the grastomk appreciation rights, or SARs, subject tc
terms and conditions contained in the plan. Untder2005 LongFerm Incentive Plan, the exercise price of a SARtagual the fair mark
value of a share of the Compasyommon stock on the date the SAR was grantedn @gercise of a SAR, the grantee will receive aowm
in shares of our common stock equal to the diffeedmetween the fair market value of a share of comstock on the date of exercise anc
exercise price of the SAR, multiplied by the numbkshares as to which the SAR is exercised.

Performance Awards. The compensation committee may approve the grapedbrmance awards contingent upon achieveme
the grantee or by the Company, of set goals anectibgs regarding specified performance critengra@ specified performance cycle. Awe
may include specific dollavalue target awards, performance units, the vafughich is established at the time of grant, angderformanc
shares, the value of which is equal to the fairkatwvalue of a share of common stock on the daggpaft. The value of a performance av
may be fixed or fluctuate on the basis of specifiedormance criteria. A performance award may did put in cash and/or shares of com
stock or other securities.

Amendment and Termination of the Plan. The board may amend or terminate the 2005 Lbaign Incentive Plan at its discreti
except that no amendment will become effective awithprior approval of the Comparsy’stockholders if such approval is necessar
continued compliance with the performarizased compensation exception of Section 162(mheflhternal Revenue Code or any s
exchange listing requirements. If not previouslyri@ated by the board, the plan will terminate loa tenth anniversary of its adoption.
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A summary of the status of the Company's warramisséock options outstanding as of March 29, 200&,ch 31, 2007 and April
2006, and changes during the years ended on tlates, ds presented below. All cashless exerciseptidns and warrants are handled thrc
an independent broker.

Number Of Weighted Average
Common Stock Weighted Average Contractual Life

Warrants/Options  Exercise Price (Years) Intrinsic Value
Outstanding, March 31, 2007 1,294,31' $ 15.6(
Awarded 356,20( 32.21
Exercised (323,94)) 12.47
Outstanding, March 29, 2008 1,326,57 $ 20.8: 6.7 $ 20,38
Exercisable, March 29, 2008 714,30( $ 14.5] 7C $ 15,48t¢

The fair value for the Company's options and wdsraras estimated at the date of grant using thekB3gholes option pricing moc
with the following weighted-average assumptions:

Fiscal Year Ended

March 29, March 31, April 1,
2008 2007 2006
Dividend yield 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Expected weighted-average life 5.C 4.¢ 7.C
Risk-free interest rate 5.C% 5.C% 3.5%
Expected volatility 35.2% 34.2% 32.(%

The weighted average fair value per share of optgranted was $12.79 in fiscal 2008, $8.70 in fi2g6@7 and $6.00 in fiscal 2006.

The expected weighteglserage life assumption was calculated by takiegaterage of the weighted vesting term and therachta
term of the options. In determining its risk-fregerrest rate assumption, the Company used the gielgeroeoupon U.S. Treasury strips
extrapolate a forwarglield curve. Finally, since the Company has onlgrbpublic since August 2005, it used six public panies (in additic
to itself), engaged in the manufacture of bearifgsthe determination of the volatility.

As of March 29, 2008, there was $5,950 of unrecogphicompensation costs related to options whiaxjEected to be recogniz
over a weighted average period of 3.9 years. Ttad fair value of options that vested in fiscal 802007 and 2006 was $1,738, $0 and $5
respectively. The total intrinsic value of optiamsercised in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $6,925,523 and $25,081, respectively.

Of the total awards outstanding at March 29, 2(0891,147 are either fully vested or are expectedesst. These shares hay
weighted average exercise price of $20.81, amsitrivalue of $19,863, and a weighted average acnial term of 6.7 years.

A summary of the status of the Companyéstricted stock outstanding as of March 29, 20@8changes during the year then er
is presented below.

Weighted-

Number Of Average
Restricted Stocl Grant Date Fair

Shares Value

Non-vested, March 31, 2007 74,77 $ 22.62
Granted 49,25( 32.1:
Vested (16,869 22.6¢
Non-vested, March 29, 2008 107,16: $ 26.9¢
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The Company recorded $272 (net of taxes of $16@pmpensation in fiscal 2008 related to restrictextk awards. These awa
were valued at the fair market value of the Compammpmmon stock on the date of issuance and areg lagnortized as expense over
applicable vesting period. Unrecognized expensedsiricted stock was $2,477 at March 29, 2008s Tbst is expected to be recognized
a weighted average period of approximately 3.6s/ear
17. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases facilities under reamcelable operating leases, which expire on varttates through September 2021,
rental expense aggregating $3,893, $3,708 and 1nX8scal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The Company also has neancelable operating leases for transportation,pcben and office equipment, which expire at var
dates. Rental expense for fiscal 2008, 2007 ané 2@Qregated $1,347, $1,356 and $1,220, respactivel

Certain of the above leases are renewable while bear material contingent rent or concession ekus

The aggregate future minimum lease payments unukratng leases are as follows:

2009 $ 4,132
2010 3,51
2011 3,30¢
2012 2,85(
2013 1,26¢
2014 and thereafter 4,77¢

$ 19,84:

As of March 29, 2008, approximately 13% of the Camgs hourly employees in the U.S. and abroad wepeesented by lab
unions.

The Company enters into government contracts abdositracts that are subject to audit by the govertmn the opinion of tt
Company's management, the results of such aufiisyi are not expected to have a material impacthe financial condition or results
operations of the Company.

The Company is subject to federal, state and lecaironmental laws and regulations, including thgseerning discharges
pollutants into the air and water, the storagedhiag and disposal of wastes and the health aretysaf employees. The Company also ma
liable under the Comprehensive Environmental Respo@ompensation, and Liability Act or similar stéaws for the costs of investigat
and cleanup of contamination at facilities curngmtt formerly owned or operated by the Companyatasther facilities at which the Comp:
may have disposed of hazardous substances. In diomevith such contamination, the Company may dieoliable for natural resou
damages, government penalties and claims by tlardeg for personal injury and property damage.igs responsible for enforcing th
laws have authority to impose significant civil ciiminal penalties for nomempliance. The Company believes it is currentlymiateria
compliance with all applicable requirements of eomimental laws. The Company does not anticipateenatcapital expenditures 1
environmental compliance in fiscal years 2009 dt®0

Investigation and remediation of contamination igyaing at some of the Company's sites. In particudeate agencies have b
overseeing groundwater monitoring activities at@mpany's facilities in Hartsville, South Caroliaad Fairfield, Connecticut. At Hartsvil
the Company is monitoring low levels of contamirsaim the groundwater caused by former operatiohs. State will permit the Company
cease monitoring activities after two consecutimengling periods demonstrate contaminants are baldwn levels. In connection with 1
purchase of the Fairfield, Connecticut facilitylif96, the Company agreed to assume responsilalitgdmpleting cleamup efforts previous!
initiated by the prior owner. The Company submittiadia to the state that the Company believes demades that no further remedial actio
necessary, although the state may require additadean-up or monitoring. In connection with therghase of the Comparg/Clayton, Georg
facility, the Company agreed to assume certainarsipilities to implement a corrective action plancerning the remediation of certain
and groundwater contamination present at thatifiacirlhe corrective action plan is in the earlygas. Although there can be no assuranct
Company does not expect any of those to be material

The Company received notice in 2003 from the U.BvitBnmental Protection Agency that the Company baén named
potentially responsiblee minimis party for past disposal of hazardous substanctéseaDperating Industries, Inc. Landfill in Montereyalif.
Any such disposal would have been conducted podhé Company's ownership, and the Company nottfiedformer owners of a poten
claim for indemnification based on the indemnitgchibed above. The Company is currently negotiaéidg minimis settlement with the U.



Environmental Protection Agency and expects thgtsmttlement, even if the Company is unsuccessfabtaining indemnification, will not |
material to its financial position or results ofepgtions.
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There are various claims and legal proceedingsagtie Company relating to its operations in tbemal course of business, non
which the Company believes is material to its ficiahposition or results of operations. The Compaugrently maintains insurance cover
for product liability claims.

18. U.S. Continued Dumping and Subsidy Offset AcCQDSOA) Payment

On December 7, 2007, the Company received appraeiyn&255 in payments under the U.S. Continued Oogpand Subsidy A
(CDSOA) for 2007. On December 1, 2006, respectjvillg Company received approximately $1,229 in gaymunder the CDSOA for 20!
The CDSOA distributes antidumping duties paid bgrgeas companies to qualified domestic firms hyrtiifair trade. These payments h
been classified below Operating Income in “Othem-operating expense (income)” on the ConsolidatateSients of Operations.
19. Related Party Transactions

On June 13, 2005, subject to the approval of thengamys senior lenders under the Credit Facility and 8édden Term Loat
which was subsequently obtained, the Board of Borscagreed to pay the CEO a divee special compensation payment of $5,2(
reimburse the CEO for taxes owed by him in conoectiith a previous stock sale by the CEO to WhitriBye Companys senior lende
approved the payment on July 13, 2005. As suchCirapany recorded a charge of $5,200 (classifiese#isng, general and administrat
expense) in the second quarter of fiscal 2006.
20. Other Operating Expense, Net

Other operating expense, net is comprised of thewmng:

Fiscal Year Ended

March 29, March 31, April 1,

2008 2007 2006
Management fees $ — 3 — 3 178
Loss on disposition of assets 131 1,917 24
Plant consolidation and moving costs 481 3,18¢ 1,02¢
Provision for doubtful accounts 114 18z 244
Amortization of intangibles 1,25¢ 713 667
Other expense (income) (15€) (67) 292
$ 182 $ 593, $ 2,42¢

21. Reportable Segments

The Company operates through operating segmentatimmh separate financial information is availatd@d for which operatir
results are evaluated regularly by the Companyisf dperating decision maker in determining resewafocation and assessing performa
Those operating segments with similar economicagttaristics and that meet all other required gatancluding nature of the products
production processes, distribution patterns ansisels of customers, are aggregated as reportaleestsy Certain other operating segmen
not exhibit the common attributes mentioned abowt @ not meet the quantitative thresholds for spalisclosure, and their informatiol
combined and disclosed as "Other". There is alsgganent reflecting corporate charges.

The Company has four reportable business segmegéged in the manufacture and sale of the following

Roller Bearings. Roller bearings are antiiiction bearings that use rollers instead of ballse Company manufactures four basic t
of roller bearings: heavy duty needle roller begsiwith inner rings, tapered roller bearings, treallers and aircraft roller bearings.

Plain Bearings. Plain bearings are produced with either self-ludtiiy or metal-to-metal designs and consists ofis#\subelasse:

including rod end bearings, spherical plain bearimgd journal bearings. Unlike ball bearings, whatle used in higlspeed rotation
applications, plain bearings are primarily usedeittify inevitable misalignments in various mecltahicomponents.
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Ball Bearings. The Company manufactures four basic types of kadribgs: high precision aerospace, airframe canifnot sectio
and commercial ball bearings which are used in4sigged rotational applications.

Other. Other consists of two minor operating locations tha not fall into the above segmented categoiiibe. Company produc
precision ground ball bearing screws at its LPRtpllaat offer repeatable positioning accuracy irchie tools, transfer lines, robotic hand
and semiconductor equipment. The Company's Schalddation produces precision machine tool coltbtt provide effective part holdi
and accurate part location during machining openati

Corporate. Corporate consists of expenses incurred at theocatig office.

The accounting policies of the reportable segmargghe same as those described in Note 2. Segredotmance is evaluated ba
on segment net sales, operating income and tosgtsasltems not allocated to segment operatingniecnclude corporate administrat
expenses and certain other amounts. Identifialdetady reportable segment consist of those djratgitified with the segment's operatic

Corporate assets consist of cash, fixed assetsatain prepaid expenses.

Fiscal Year Ended

March 29, March 31, April 1,
2008 2007 2006
Net External Sales
Roller $ 97,01¢ $ 92,12: $ 96,46¢
Plain 154,53! 143,90° 115,09:
Ball 56,67 50,46¢ 46,37¢
Other 22,36¢ 19,56¢ 16,57
$ 330,600 $ 306,06: $ 274,50¢
Operating Income
Roller $ 28,81¢ $ 18,76¢ $ 23,34(
Plain 40,98: 41,16: 30,95¢
Ball 14,28« 12,52: 9,69:
Other 2,66¢ 2,20( 1,47¢
Corporate (23,909 (22,739 (26,880
$ 62,85( $ 51,91¢ $ 38,57¢
Total Assets
Roller $ 88,05: $ 64,49. $ 52,54¢
Plain 203,20: 168,35( 142,95
Ball 37,30 27,417 21,02
Other 11,77 7,59¢ 6,93:
Corporate (3,219 5,86( 52,46¢
$ 337,11 $ 273,71: % 275,92:
Capital Expenditures
Roller $ 10,61: $ 10,87 $ 4,39(
Plain 3,91¢ 2,50z 3,49(
Ball 2,08¢ 1,37¢ 1,13(
Other 1,06t 1,007 83z
Corporate 79 41¢ 49¢
$ 17,75¢  $ 16,17 $ 10,34:
Depreciation & Amortization
Roller $ 3,36 $ 335 % 3,07:
Plain 4,53¢ 3,65 3,03t
Ball 732 601 1,29¢
Other 1,29¢ 1,23¢ 1,151
Corporate 537 79¢ 775
$ 10,46¢ $ 9,64¢ $ 9,331

Geographic External Sales



Domestic
Foreign

Geographic Long-Lived Assets
Domestic
Foreign

Intersegment Sales
Roller
Plain
Ball
Other
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280,51( 265,64 243,57t
50,09( 40,41¢ 30,93!
330,60( 306,06: 274,50¢
69,97¢ 57,91( 55,22
3,26¢ 3,29¢ 2,80
73,24 61,20¢ 58,02¢
8,29¢ 8,51 9,41
1,415 1,013 851
7,10¢ 5,05: 5,09¢
17,09: 14,82¢ 13,31¢
33,91: 29,401 28,67!




All intersegment sales are eliminated in consoiahat

ITEM 9. CHANGES AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Companys management is responsible for establishing aridtaiaing effective disclosure controls and proaedy as define
under Rule 1345(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Ashef end of the period covered by this report, Goenpany performed
evaluation, under the supervision and with theigagtion of the Compang’ management, including its Chief Executive Offiaad Chie
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the Canyp's disclosure controls and procedures. Based tipat evaluation, the CompasyChie
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer comdéd that the Comparg/disclosure controls and procedures provide redderassuran:
that the material information required to be diseld by the Company in the reports that it filesswbmits to the Securities and Exche
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act o#tii83ecorded, processed, summarized and repoithihwthe time periods specified in 1
Commission’s rules and forms. No changes were nadlege Company’s internal control over financigboging (as defined in Rule 13&(f)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) durveglast fiscal quarter that materially affectedam reasonably likely to materially affect,
Company'’s internal control over financial reporting
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Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management of RBC Bearings Incorporated is respimdor establishing and maintaining adequate iv@econtrol over financi
reporting, as such term is defined in SecuritiesHaxge Act of 1934.

The Companys internal control over financial reporting is soped by written policies and procedures that @rtain to th
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detedyrately and fairly reflect the transactions aigpositions of the Compars/assets; (i
provide reasonable assurance that transactionseaoeded as necessary to permit preparation ohdiah statements in accordance \
generally accepted accounting principles, and teaeipts and expenditures of the Company are beiage only in accordance w
authorizations of the Comparsymanagement and directors; and (iii) provide neaBle assurance regarding prevention or timelyctiete o
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of@menpany’s assets that could have a material effethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtwver financial reporting may not prevent or @ttaisstatements. Projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégibecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdaces may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participatioroof management, including our principal executificer and principal financi
officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effemiess of the Compargyinternal control over financial reporting as offdh 29, 2008
required by Securities Exchange Act of 1934. In imgikhis assessment, we used the criteria set forthe framework irinternal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadrtee Treadway Commission. Based on our evalnatitder th
framework inInternal Control-Integrated Framework , our management concluded that our internal cbmver financial reporting wi
effective as of March 29, 2008.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fioial reporting as of March 29, 2008 has been addiy Ernst & Young LLP, ¢
independent registered public accounting firm,tated in their report which appears on the follayjrage.

RBC Bearings Incorporated

Oxford, Connecticut
May 22, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
RBC Bearings Incorporated

We have audited RBC Bearings Incorporaseidternal control over financial reporting as oamdh 29, 2008, based on criteria establish
Internal Control-ntegrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissidre (€OS(
criteria). RBC Bearings Incorporatadmanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting, arud fts
assessment of the effectiveness of internal comivel financial reporting included in the accompagyManagemens Report on Intern
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsipil# to express an opinion on the comparpternal control over financial reporting basa
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stededof the Public Company Accounting Oversightf8g@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtabsonable assurance about whether effectiven@iteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corar@r financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiauthe design and operating effectiveness ofiratiecontrol based on the assessed risk
performing such other procedures as we considezedssary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis fol
opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @gpess designed to provide reasonable assurancaeliregthe reliability of financit
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeeacepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclsdnose policies and procedures that (1) pertathéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assut
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgreparation of financial statements in accor@amdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoazations of management :
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanaskurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company'’s assets that could lzareaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgext to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, RBC Bearings Incorporated maintdini@ all material respects, effective internal ttohover financial reporting as of Mat
29, 2008, based orthe COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolids
balance sheets of RBC Bearings Incorporated asastivi29, 2008 and March 31, 2007, and the relatedatidated statements of operati
stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income and cash flows, for ehtlfedhree years in the period endédarch 29, 2008, and our rep
dated May 22, 2008 expressed an unqualified opitiiereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Hartford, Connecticut
May 22, 2008
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
PART IlI

The information called for by Part lll (Items 1Q,,112, 13 and 14) of Form 10will be included in our Proxy Statement for o002
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which the Compantgrids to file within 120 days after the closetsffiscal year ended March 29, 2008
which is incorporated herein by reference to sudxy Statement.
PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@) 1. Financial Statements

The following Consolidated Financial Statementghef Company are included in Item &ifiancial Statements and Supplemer

Data”
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimm 35
Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 29, 2008 aardhivB1, 2007 3€
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeraded March 29, 2008, March 31, 2007, and AprdQD6 38

Consolidated Statements of Stockhold&guity and Comprehensive Income for the years eMiaah 29, 2008, Marc 3¢
31, 2007, and April 1, 2006

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yerailed March 29, 2008, March 31, 2007, and AprdQN6 4C
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 41
(@) 2. Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted because of thenabsef conditions under which they are requiredbecause the requir
information is presented in the financial stateraa@mtnotes thereto.

(@) 3. Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as part of thipoet.

Certain of the following exhibits have been prewgigufiled with the Securities and Exchange Commisdiy the Company pursui
to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1988 the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Such etdidnie identified by the parenthet
references following the listing of each such eithéind are incorporated herein by reference. Theizmy’s Commission file number is 333-

124824,

Exhibit
Number Description of Document

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatibRBC Bearings Incorporated dated August 13, 2008lad with Amendmel
No. 4 to RBC Bearings Incorporated's Registratiteie3nent on Form-1, file No. 333124824 (the "Registration Stateme
dated August 8, 2005 is hereby incorporated byreefee herein.

3.2 Bylaws of RBC Bearings Incorporated, as filed aiBix 3.3 to Amendment No. 4 to the Registratioat&ment on Form $-
dated August 8, 2005 is hereby incorporated byreefee herein.

4.1 Form of stock certificate for common stock, asdilas Exhibit 4.3 to RBC Bearings Incorporated's Adment No. 3 t
Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated Augu®0@5 is hereby incorporated by reference herein.
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4.2

10.1

10.Z

10.c

10.4

10.€

10.7

10.€

10.€

10.1(C

10.11

10.12

10.1:

Form of Amended and Restated Warrants to Purchasen®n Stock, as filed as Exhibit 4.7 to RBC Bearingorporateck
Registration Statement on Form S-8 dated Marcl2Q86, is hereby incorporated by reference herein.

Amended and Restated Warrants to Purchase ClasgpBr#ting Common Stock, as filed as Exhibit 4.8RBC Bearin
Incorporated’s Registration Statement on Form &t8dlMarch 15, 2006, is hereby incorporated byreefee herein.

Stock Option Plan of RBC Bearings Incorporated/&Roller Bearing Holding Company, Inc.), dated&Bebruary 18, 1998 wi
form of agreement filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Ré&gtion Statement on Form1Sdated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporate
reference herein.

Form of Stock Transfer Restriction Agreement betwB8C Bearings Incorporated (f/k/a Roller Bearinglding Company, Inc
and certain of its stockholders filed as Exhibit2l@ the Registration Statement on Forni 8Sated May 11, 2005 is here
incorporated by reference herein.

Amended and Restated 2001 Stock Option Plan of RB&ings Incorporated (f/k/a Roller Bearing Holdi@gmpany, Inc.), datt
October 24, 2003 filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Rigt®on Statement on Form BSedated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporate
reference herein.

Form of RBC Bearings Inc. 2005 Long-Term Equity dntive Plan, as filed as Exhibit 4.6 to RBC Bearingorporateck
Registration Statement on Form S-8 dated Novem®e2005, is hereby incorporated by reference herein

Agreement of Lease between Robear West Trentonchgss, L.P. and Roller Bearing Company of Amerina,, dated Februa
10, 1999, for West Trenton, New Jersey premisesl fidls Exhibit 10.6 to the Registration StatemenForm S1 dated May 1:
2005 is hereby incorporated by reference herein.

First Amendment to Office Lease, dated July 26,4200etween Robear West Trenton Associates, L.P.Ruwolter Bearin
Company of America, Inc. filed as Exhibit 10.7 toetRegistration Statement on Forml Siated May 11, 2005 is here
incorporated by reference herein.

Indenture of Lease dated March 31, 2004 betweeteRBearing Company of America, Inc., and Raymonghidke, LLC,
Connecticut limited liability company filed as Ekiiti10.8 to the Registration Statement on Forth &ted May 11, 2005 is here
incorporated by reference herein.

Executed counterpart of the Pledge and Securiteément, dated as of September 1, 1994, betweearR#hring Company
America, Inc., Heller Financial, Inc. and Mark TwaBank filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Registratioat8ment on Form $-datel
May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated by referengceihe

Loan Agreement, dated as of September 1, 1994 eeetthe South Carolina Joli=eonomic Development Authority and Ro
Bearing Company of America, Inc. with respect te 8eries 1994A Bonds filed as Exhibit 10.10 toRegistration Statement
Form S-1 dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporbtereference herein.

Trust Indenture, dated as of September 1, 1994ydset the South Carolina Joli=eonomic Development Authority and M.
Twain Bank, as Trustee, with respect to the S&r@IA Bonds filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the RegistratStatement on Form 5-
dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated by refezderein.

Loan Agreement, dated as of September 1, 1994 eeetthe South Carolina Joli=eonomic Development Authority and Ro
Bearing Company of America, Inc., with respecthe Series 1994B Bonds filed as Exhibit 10.13 toRlegistration Statement
Form S-1 dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporbtereference herein.

Trust Indenture, dated as of September 1, 1994ydset the South Carolina Joli=eonomic Development Authority and M.
Twain Bank, as Trustee, with respect to the Ser8IB Bonds filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the RegigtraStatement on Form B-
dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated by refegénerein.

Collective Bargaining Agreement between Heim, tinéernational Union, United Automobile, Aerospaced afdgricultura
Implement Workers of America, U.A.W., and Amalgaethtocal 376, U.A.W., expires January 31, 2008ifédes Exhibit 10.15"
the Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated MagQQ5 is hereby incorporated by reference herein.



10.1¢ Collective Bargaining Agreement between Roller BeiCompany of America, Inc. and the Internatiodaion U.A.W. and it
Local 502, expires June 30, 2007 filed as ExhibitLlh to the Registration Statement on Forrh @&ated May 11, 2005 is here
incorporated by reference herein.

10.1t Collective Bargaining Agreement between Tyson Bepi€Company, Inc. and the United Steelworkers of Acae AFL-CIO,
Local 7461- 01, expires June 13, 2008, as file@xdsbit 10.18 to Amendment No. 2 to the Registrati&tatement on Form 5-
dated July 26, 2005, is hereby incorporated byregfee herein.
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10.1¢

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2(

10.21

10.22

10.2:

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2%

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.3(C

10.31

Employment Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2005yéet the Company and Michael J. Hartnett, Ph.[ fde Exhibit 10.19 -
Amendment No. 4 to the Registration Statement dateglist 8, 2005 is hereby incorporated by referdrarein.

Amended and Restated Promissory Note, dated asoérbber 15, 2000, for $500,000, made by Michakladtnett, Ph.D. ar
payable to Roller Bearing Company of America, liedf as Exhibit 10.20 to the Registration Statem@nform St dated Ma
11, 2005 is hereby incorporated by reference herein

Loan Agreement, dated as of April 1, 1999, by aetiveen California Infrastructure and Economic Depelent Bank and Roll
Bearing Company of America, Inc filed as Exhibit2Dto the Registration Statement on Forrh &ated May 11, 2005 is her¢
incorporated by reference herein.

Indenture Of Trust, dated as of April 1, 1999, extw California Infrastructure and Economic DeveleptrBank and U.S. Ba
Trust National Association, as Trustee filed asikixH 0.22 to the Registration Statement on Forrh &ated May 11, 2005
hereby incorporated by reference herein.

Tax Regulatory Agreement, dated as of April 1, 1999and among California Infrastructure and Ecoitobevelopment Ban
U.S. Bank Trust National Association, as Truste®] Roller Bearing Company of America, Inc filed Bshibit 10.23 to th
Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated May 10528 hereby incorporated by reference herein.

Lease Agreement, dated as of December 17, 199@ebrtSchaublin SA and RBC Schaublin SA filed asilikii0.24 to th
Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated May 10529 hereby incorporated by reference herein.

Lease Agreement dated May 17, 2004 by and betwbaddsvmoss Properties, LLC, a South Carolina limitablility compan!
and Roller Bearing Company of America, Inc filedeagibit 10.33 to the Registration Statement omir&-1 dated May 11, 20(
is hereby incorporated by reference herein.

Credit Agreement, dated December 8, 2003, betwaeditCSuisse and Schaublin SA filed as Exhibit 40t@ the Registratic
Statement on Form S-1 dated May 11, 2005 is herelnyporated by reference herein.

Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement, dated Noven8h@004, between Credit Suisse and Schaublin B4 &s Exhibit 10.2
to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated May005 is hereby incorporated by reference herei

Letter Agreement by and among RBC Bearings Incatgak, Roller Bearing Company of America, Inc. Wéitr& Co. and Di
Michael J. Hartnett dated June 17, 2005, as fikeféhibit 10.36 to Amendment No. 2 to the RegigiraGtatement on Form 5-
dated July 26, 2005, is hereby incorporated byregfee herein.

Second Amended and Restated Stockholders' Agreebyeahd among RBC Bearings Incorporated, Whitne\HRBnvestor
LLC, Whitney V.L.P., Dr. Michael J. Hartnett and iitteett Family Investments, L.P. dated February@®filed as Exhibit 10.:
to Amendment No. 4 to the Registration StatemetedlAugust 9, 2005 is hereby incorporated by refezenerein.

Amendment No. 1 dated August 13, 2005 to the Sed&meénded and Restated Stockholders' Agreement dyaamong RB!
Bearings Incorporated, Whitney RBHC Investors, LMZhitney V.L.P., Dr. Michael J. Hartnett and Hattriéamily Investment
L.P. dated February 6, 2003, filed as Exhibit 10683Amendment No. 4 to the Registration Statemenéd August 9, 2005
hereby incorporated by reference herein.

Purchase Agreement dated August 9, 2005 filed dsbixl.1 to Form 8 dated August 15, 2005 is hereby incorporate
reference herein.

Purchase Agreement dated April 11, 2006 filed dsilik1.1 to Form 8 dated April 13, 2006 is hereby incorporated bigrenct
herein.

Credit Agreement, dated as of June 26, 2006, anRuiigr Bearing Company of America, Inc., RBC Begsrincorporated, ti
Lenders named therein, KeyBank National AssociatidA. Morgan Securities Inc. and LaSalle Bank dvetli Association, filed
Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K dated July 18, 2006 isdisrincorporated by reference herein.

Parent Guaranty, dated as of June 26, 2006, by B&gings Incorporated, in favor of KeyBank NatioAaisociation, filed ¢
Exhibit 99.2 to Form 8-K dated July 18, 2006 isdisrincorporated by reference herein.



10.32 Security Agreement, dated as of June 26, 2006, grRmtler Bearing Company of America, Inc., RBC Begs Incorporated, ti
Subsidiary Guarantors (as defined therein), andB&ek National Association, filed as Exhibit 99.3Rorm 8K dated July 1¢
2006 is hereby incorporated by reference herein.
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10.3: RBC Bearings Incorporated 2005 Long Term IncenBlen (Amended and Restated as of August 29, 20@d) ds Exhibit 10.
on Form 8-K dated August 30, 2007 is hereby incaafsal by reference herein.

10.3¢2 Amendment No. 2 to Credit Agreement, dated as pfe3eber 10, 2007 by and between Roller Bearing Goypf America, Inc
RBC Bearings Incorporated and KeyBank National A&g@n, as Administrative Agent and Lender filexdExhibit 10.1 on For
8-K dated September 10, 2007 is hereby incorpoiayegference herein.

10.3t¢ Agreement between RBC Heim Bearings and Local N6. 18ternational Union, United Automobile, Aerospaand Agriculture
Implement Workers of America effective February2008 filed as Exhibit 10.5 on Form I®-dated February 7, 2008 is her
incorporated by reference herein.

14.1 Code of Ethics of the Registrant filed as Exhibittb Form 10Q dated February 14, 2006 is hereby incorporatedefgrenc
herein.

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant. Filed herewith.

23 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. Filed herewith.
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant$ecurities Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a). FileaWwéh.
31.z Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant$ecurities Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a). FilecWwih.

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and Securities ExchangeRAite 13a14(b).* Filec
herewith.

32.z Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuamt 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and Securities ExchangeRAite 13a14(b).* Filec
herewith.

* This certification accompanies this Annual RepamtForm 10K, is not deemed filed with the SEC and is not ¢oifcorporated by referer

into any filing of the Company under the Securitheg of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exabakag of 1934, as amended (whe
made before or after the date of this Annual ReporEorm 10-K), irrespective of any general incogtion language contained in such filing.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this Rej
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedgetiveo duly authorized.

RBC Bearings Incorporated
(Registrant)

By: /s/ Dr. Michael J. Hartnett
Name: Dr. Michael J. Hartnett
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Date: May 28 , 2008

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgb Act of 1934, this Report has been signed éyaltowing persons on behalf
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdaticated.

Signature Title
/s/ Dr. Michael J. Hartnett Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Dr. Michael J. Hartnett (Principal Executive Officer and Chairman)

Date: May 28, 2008

/s/ Daniel A. Bergeron Chief Financial Officer

Daniel A. Bergeron (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
Date: May 28, 2008

/s/ Thomas Burigo Corporate Controller

Thomas Burigo
Date: May 28, 2008

/s/ Richard R. Crowell Director

Richard R. Crowell
Date: May 28, 2008

/s/ William P. Killian Director

William P. Killian
Date: May 28, 2008

/s/ Alan B. Levine Director

Alan B. Levine
Date: May 28, 2008

/s/ Dr. Amir Faghri Director

Dr. Amir Faghri
Date: May 28, 2008

/s/ Dr. Thomas J. O'Brien Director
Dr. Thomas J. O'Brien
Date: May 28, 2008
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Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Roller Bearing Company of America, Inc.
RBC Precision Products—Plymouth, Inc.
Industrial Tectonics Bearings Corporation
RBC Linear Precision Products, Inc.

RBC Precision Products—Bremen, Inc.
RBC Nice Bearings, Inc.

Tyson Bearing Company, Inc.

RBC Oklahoma, Inc.

RBC Aircraft Products, Inc.

RBC Southwest Products, Inc.

All Power Manufacturing Co.

RBC de Mexico S DE RL DE CV
Schaublin Holdings S.A.

Schaublin SA

J. Bovagnet SA

RBC France SAS

Shanghai Representative office of Roller Bearingy@any of America, Inc.
RBC Bearings U.K. Limited

RBC CBS Coastal Bearing Services LLC

Exhibit 21




Exhibit 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-129828gining to the RBC Bearings
Incorporated 2005 Long-Term Equity Incentive Pkiwe, RBC Bearings Incorporated Amended and Resgfi@dl Stock Option Plan, the RBC
Bearings Incorporated 1998 Stock Option Plan, aeditine 23, 1997 RBC Bearings Incorporated Wakgréements of our reports dated
May 22, 2008 with respect to the consolidated foia@rstatements of RBC Bearings Incorporated apceffectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting of RBC Bearings Incorporatettliuded in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for theay ended March 29, 2008.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Hartford, Connecticut
May 22, 2008




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Dr. Michael J. Hartnett, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fIRBC Bearings Incorporated,;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or amdtate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanceter which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegas presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as define«
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d -15(e)) atedrial control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresaused such disclosure controls and procedord® designed under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including any consolidbgeibsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepared

b) designed such internal control over financigbming, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargardang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles; and

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtiais report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls amatguiures, as of the end of the period covered iByréiport based on such evaluat
and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportingat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéfe, or is reasonably likely to materially affeitte registrans internal control ov
financial reporting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal abraver financial reportini
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiEthe registrant’s board of directors (or pesspearforming the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weases in the design or operation of internal cordx@r financial reporting which ¢
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidtsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrargt’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 28, 2008 By: /s/ Dr. Michael J. Hartnett

Dr. Michael J. Hartnett
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Daniel A. Bergeron, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fIRBC Bearings Incorporated,;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or amdtate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanceter which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegas presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as define«
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d -15(e)) atedrial control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresaused such disclosure controls and procedord® designed under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including any consolidbgeibsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepared

b) designed such internal control over financigbming, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargardang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles; and

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtiais report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls amatguiures, as of the end of the period covered iByréiport based on such evaluat
and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportingat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéfe, or is reasonably likely to materially affeitte registrans internal control ov
financial reporting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal abraver financial reportini
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiEthe registrant’s board of directors (or pesspearforming the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weases in the design or operation of internal cordx@r financial reporting which ¢
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidtsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrargt’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 28, 2008 By: /s/ Daniel A. Bergeron

Daniel A. Bergeron
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

The undersigned, Dr. Michael J. Hartnett, the Rieadi and Chief Executive Officer of RBC Bearingsdrporated (the “Company”pursuar
to 18 U.S.C. §1350, hereby certifies that:

(i) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year edid/larch 29, 2008 of the Company (the “Repdidlly complies with th
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S&earExchange Act of 1934; and

(i) the information contained in the Report fainyesents, in all material respects, the financ@idition and results
operations of the Company.

Dated: May 28, 2008

/s/ Dr. Michael J. Hartnett

Dr. Michael J. Hartnett
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

The undersigned, Daniel A. Bergeron, Chief FindnOficer, of RBC Bearings Incorporated (the “Comgd), pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 813!
hereby certifies:

(i) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the periatded March 29, 2008 of the Company (the “Repdtlly complies witt
the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of theuBities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(i) the information contained in the Report fainyesents, in all material respects, the financ@idition and results
operations of the Company.

Dated: May 28, 2008

/s/ Daniel A. Bergeron

Daniel A. Bergeron
Chief Financial Officer




